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NEEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREHREE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | would like to
present the annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

2017 is a year full of action for the Group. An open offer on the
basis of one offer share for every 2 shares held on the record date
at a price of HK$0.1 per offer share was completed successfully
in June 2017, raising a capital of approximately HK$220
million for the Group which helped to strengthen the financial
position of the Group for future development and acquisition.
In Hong Kong, we have completed the acquisition of an asset
management company with the asset under management of
approximately US$9 million in the second half of the year. In Oct
2017, the acquisition of Sino Wealth Group, which is engaged in
the provision of credit-based financing guarantee and financing
consultancy services in the PRC, was completed. Following such
acquisitions, our Group is able to offer more comprehensive
services in the financial markets in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead, we will strive to develop each of our financial
service operation teams and continue to identify potential
investment opportunities to maximize the returns to the
shareholders of the Company (the "Shareholders").

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our management team and employees for their
commitment and contribution to the Group. | would also like
to thank our Shareholders, business partners and professional
parties for their continued support.

Liu Kequan
Chairman
Hong Kong
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding, industrial
property development, general trading of consumable goods,

BEEENWE DT

X 1% B R K Rl =

AEEXIENEREER TXROERER
HEmN—REH [HEEL RRERL &
EERELERREXE (BREXRE BE

securities brokerage, insurance brokerage, asset management
and loan financing operation includes loan financing, financial
guarantee services, loan referral and consultancy services.

Revenue and segment results of the Group for the year of 2017
are stated in the table below:

ERRT  EREN MFEARE) o

AEER-_FT—tFNRARDHFREHR

T&:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=t—BLEE

2017 2016
—EB—tF —ZT—RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT

Revenue from: RELATEEZKA :
Industrial property development TERAMEERRE 6,518 8,904
General trading —REZ 64,182 36,448
Securities brokerage B 3,436 2,356
Insurance brokerage Ri&a 14,072 4,581
Asset management EEER 1,323 8
Loan financing EXRmE 41,121 22,878
130,652 75,175

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016

—F—tF —T—RF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Segment (loss) profit from: KENTRIEZDE (E1B) &AM :

Industrial property development TERYMEERRE (11,905) (7,637)
General trading —RES 1,605 1,035
Securities brokerage BHLA (545) (1,217)
Insurance brokerage Ri& L (6) 111
Asset management BEEE (704) 1
Loan financing BEXmE 27,755 (43,568)
16,200 (51,275)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Industrial Property Development

The revenue from industrial property development segment
mainly represented the rental income generated from the
warehouse operation. The warehouse of the Group is located in
Taicang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and the total rentable areas of
which is approximately 48,600 square meters. It is divided into 6
units for rental.

Revenue from the warehouse operation recorded a decrease
of HK$2,386,000 to HK$6,518,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$8,904,000) and a segment loss of
HK$11,905,000 has resulted (2016: HK$7,637,000). During the
first half of 2017, certain warehouse spaces were vacant upon
expiry of the lease agreement, resulting in a drop of income. New
lease agreements have been signed in the second half of the
year and hence revenue started picking up gradually. However, 2
units of the warehouse are being repaired due to leakage issue
and thus the overall rentable areas were reduced, affecting the
revenue and resulting in the segment loss for the year.

The repair and maintenance works are expected to complete by
mid 2018 and the Group will continue to seek potential business
partners for the vacant warehouse space. At the same time, we
are also looking into other possible ways to increase the overall
income generated by the warehouse operation including but
not limited to the leasing of outdoor areas of the warehouse to
suitable business partners.

General Trading

Our co-operation with a major distribution agent of Moutai (i.e.
a reputable distilled Chinese liquor) to sell Moutai and other
popular Chinese liquors established in the second half of 2016
continued. The revenue generated from the liquors trading
amounted to HK$64,182,000 (2016: HK$36,448,000), resulting
in segment profit of HK$1,605,000 (2016: HK$1,035,000). Under
the co-operation framework, we are authorized to distribute
Moutai and other popular Chinese liquors from our supplier in
the authorized regions in the PRC including but not limited to
Jiangsu Province, Zhejiang Province, Anhui Province, Shanghai
and Beijing, etc. to the respective wholesalers and/or re-sellers.

TERNERR

THRAMEBRRDPHFIWMAETEREEER
EEZHSWA -ANEB 22 BEMRF BT &
EXEM HoReEEMEEL ATHERE
F& 4 548,600 F 75 K °

BE _T—+&+_-_A=+—HIFE &&=
¥ B UL A 8218 T #2,386,0007 7T £6,518,000
BT (ZZF— 754 :8,904,00087T) © MES
20 BB E 1 A11,905,000/ T (ZE— /N F:

7,637,00087L) - R_E—tF LF¥F - FF
EETEHEAHEREEMEBEE BRKRAT
B AFETNHFTUBMHAERZE WA
Bl Ut R 06 3 BT (B o A i - B EE RY2{E B o A
A2 REREEETHE AT HEREERE R
L HETRFERAREEDEBERE-

HEMREIERBRAR -Z—-\FPaI=<I "
MAKREREEREZEREZHSREEESR
BBt AR RATSREMENE EXS
ERRANAERE BREETRRAGEE
BRHLEREZFINEE -

—REZ

BPR_ZE—AFTHFH-—FF & (A
AHEEBAOR) AAKHRERYZHEE
FeakEMGHEFPEBB A EBERIDAR
BoRBEEME SR AG4,182,000% 7T
(ZZ— /5% 36,448,000 7T ) * BEE D B
#J1,605,0007% 7T ( —=F — 7~ : 1,035,000/
T0) o MBIBEAEIESR  RMEREED RTE
HE (BIFEETRNIHE IE  T'/E -
EEMERIEETE)ASHER R HNEHEE
RENF e RHEMGHEPBEAE-
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Due to the popularity of Moutai in the PRC and the limited
number of authorized distribution agents, the key for such
trading is to secure the supply of Moutai as the demand of
Moutai in the PRC is far exceed its supply. It is the normal
commercial practice that no credit term is granted from the
supplier and to the wholesalers and/or re-sellers and the liquors
will only be delivered upon full payment of the liquors ordered.
Since the commencement of such co-operation in late 2016,
our management has established a strong mutual trust with
the supplier which is a reputable wine distributor and is able to
obtain stable supply of Moutai from the wine producer, which is
crucial to the long term stable development of our wine trading
operation.

According to our co-operation, the supplier agreed to provide a
minimum quantity of RMB30,000,000 worth of Moutai or other
popular Chinese liquors to the Group. Our customers are mainly
wholesalers and re-sellers in the food and beverages business
within the authorized regions of our operation.

Due to the stable and continued growth in the demand of
Chinese liquors, especially Moutai, the Group will continue the
operations of this segment and further develop the sales network
to increase its volume and profitability gradually.

Securities Brokerage

The securities brokerage operation continues to provide a variety
of securities related services including securities brokerage,
securities trading, margin financing, underwriting and placements
in Hong Kong. Revenue from the segment was HK$3,436,000
(2016: HK$2,356,000) and segment loss of HK$545,000 (2016:
HK$1,217,000) has resulted.

Due to the keen competition in the securities brokerage
operation, the profit margin on regular brokerage and securities
trading is very slim. The Group will strengthen the sales team
in order to increase the number of new clients and at the same
time will further develop the margin financing business should
opportunity arises.

BEEENWE DT

HRFEETEEIBLERED HRIERD
FEEAER ZEZNHEREBRT QOHE
ARFaETBEBERERNEE - ZR K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Insurance Brokerage

Greater China Wealth & Risk Management Limited (“GCWRM"),
an insurance broker, is a member of Professional Insurance
Brokers Association and a principal intermediary for carrying
on MPF regulated activities. It is engaged in the insurance and
MPF scheme brokerage business and provides a comprehensive
professional insurance and financial planning services to satisfy
clients’ needs. GCWRM provides tailor-made financial solutions
to its clients and independent advisory services in connection
with insurance products. It operates long term (including linked
long term) and general insurance business plus MPF regulated
activities.

GCWRM develops business relationship with the insurance
companies by entering into the distribution agreements after
an in-depth due diligence process. It provides financial planning
services to clients through licensed representatives. A majority
of its business is being generated from referrals and direct
marketing activities.

Revenue from insurance brokerage was approximately
HK$14,072,000 with net loss HK$6,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 compared to 2016 with revenue of
HK$4,581,000 and net profit of HK$111,000. It is the result
from the GCWRM team adding different insurance products
and partners in diversified product varieties to steadily grow the
revenue of insurance business. However, the performance was
affected by challenging marketing competition and other policy
change. The PRC government has repeatedly tighten restrictions
on mainland residents from coming to Hong Kong to purchase
insurance products, including restrictions on credit card for
premiums payment and setting the amount of insured limit.
Nonetheless, we will continue to diversify our business varieties
and widen our recurring income stream. In addition, general
insurance will be another income stream to bring the steady
growth of the business in the coming future.

Asset Management

The Group has completed the acquisition of a company under
a license to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") together with its investment
team at a consideration of HK$8 million and the result of which
has been consolidated to the Group in the second half of 2017.
Revenue of HK$1,323,000 and segment loss of HK$704,000
were recorded during the year. The fund under management
is called “Spruce Light Absolute Return Fund” which is a
hedge fund and the asset under management is approximately
US$9 million.

RER &AL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite the severe global stock market fluctuation in 2017,
the fund managed to achieve a promising annualized return in
this first year of launch. We believe that with an experienced
investment and research team, we are well positioned to meet
the demand and needs of the high net worth clients in asset
management services.

In the year ahead, we will continue to develop and expand our
asset management division and develop different investment
fund to meet the needs of different clients.

Loan Financing

Loan financing segment includes the provision of financing
guarantee services, loan financing, financing consultancy and
loan referral services in both Hong Kong and the PRC.

The segment revenue generated from loan financing for year
ended 31 December 2017 was HK$41,121,000 with segment
profit of HK$27,755,000, compared to the segment revenue of
HK$22,878,000 and segment loss of HK$43,568,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The increase in segment revenue and
profit was mainly contributed by the newly acquire PRC financing
consultancy and loan referral service business in late 2016. As
at 31 December 2017, the balance of the loans and interest
receivables was approximately HK$189,891,000. The amount of
individual loan granted on average ranged from HK$2,000,000
to HK$15,000,000 with occasional loan amounted to over
HK$15,000,000 for strategic customers with the objective to
establish a long-term business relationship. The period of loan
ranged from 3 months to 1 year mainly. Interest rate of the loans
ranged from 6.6% to 18% (2016: 12% to 36%) per annum.

Greater China Financing Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the Money Lenders Licence
in early 2016 to start money lending business in Hong Kong.
As the Hong Kong Monetary Authority has been implementing
tight controls on lending activities of the financial institutions
under its surveillance, our money lending business is positioned
as an alternative to licensed banks by providing mortgage loans,
securities financing and other secured loan services, with the
competitiveness of diversified financing and loan arrangements
and quick response to the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

Hong Kong residential housing prices continue to waft skywards,
despite the government’s efforts to keep the property price
within the affordability range of the private household income.
Market watchers have seen no slowdown in the upward trend,
but have started looking at the top of the market. Our position
of loan financing operations in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2017 focused on mortgage type of finance.
We mainly replied on business partner to refer potential loan
application case. To remain competitive while mitigating the
overall credit risk, we only co-operated with reliable loan referral
agencies and before the loan was approved, we worked closely
with reputable professionals for property valuation in valuing the
property provided by customers for the mortgage loan application
to ensure the loan to value ratio of the relevant properties are
maintained at a reasonable level. Also credit assessment including
full review of credit history and personal TU credit report of the
potential customers is performed. In addition, we installed tools
to monitor the trend in the property market which will provide
alert to our credit team in case of significant fluctuation or
irregularity is noted in the mortgage under supervision.

The Group will continue to implement a prudent strategy
and maintain its focus on high net worth customers through
building closer partnership with our business partners which act
as loan referral agents and has established stringent internal
loan management system, including credit assessment and risk
management as mentioned above. In addition, we cooperate
tightly with external professionals for property valuation, credit
check and legal counsel.

In October 2017, the Group has acquired a business which
provides credit-based financing guarantee and financing
consultancy services (“Sino Wealth Group”) in the PRC at a
consideration of HK$300,000,000. The consideration is to be
settled as follows:

(i) as to HK$40,000,000 was payable by the Group to vendor
after the date of signing the sale and purchase agreement;

(i) as to HK$180,000,000 was payable upon completion;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(iii) as to HK$33,000,000 was payable by the Group to vendor
on 31 December 2017;

(iv) as to HK$30,000,000 (subject to the adjustment) shall be
settled in cash within 5 business days after the issue of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Target
Group for the year ending 31 December 2017,

(v) as to HK$11,000,000 (subject to the adjustment) shall be
settled in cash within 5 business days after the issue of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Target
Group for the year ending 31 December 2018; and

(vi) as to HK$6,000,000 (subject to the adjustment) shall be

settled in cash within 5 business days after the issue of the

audited consolidated financial statements of the Target

Group for the year ending 31 December 2019.

The vendor agreed to provide a guarantee of consolidated
net profit after tax of RMB10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and
RMB30,000,000 of Sino Wealth Group for the year ending
31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019 respectively.

Our PRC loan financing team will strive to open up new sources
of fund, such as bank financing and P2P platform in order to
match with the financial needs for our customers. At the same
time, we will perform stringent due diligence and credit check
procedures as we explore in different business segment, such as
agriculture sector and wine sector. Since the completion of the
acquisition in October 2017, the new operation has contributed
positively to the results of the loan financing segment as well as
the performance of the Group as a whole.

BEEENWE DT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Litigation
PRC

The Company has appointed PRC legal advisers and the
applications for arbitration to enforce the variable interest entity
contracts (the VIE Contracts”) have been filed and accepted by
8P £ & & € (Shanghai Arbitration Commission,”SAC") in
August 2016 (the “Arbitration”). Details of the applications are
set out in the announcement dated 18 August 2016.

On 22 February 2017, the PRC legal advisers of the Company
received three decisions issued by the SAC to suspend the
Arbitration as (i) _£/& %7 &% # & A R A 7] (Shanghai Xinsheng
Pawnshop Limited, “Xinsheng”), E/BHRERE (EE)ER
‘A 7] (Shanghai Kuailu Investment Group Company Limited,
“Shanghai Kuailu”) and £+ R # & H R A 7 (Shanghai
Zhongyuan Pawnshop Company Limited, “Zhongyuan”) are
involved in a criminal investigation conducted by the public
security authority of Shanghai City, PRC; and (ii) the shares of
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were freezed by PRC public security
authority. As such, it was stated that such circumstances would
create obstacles for submitting evidence to SAC, and SAC agreed
to suspend the Arbitration with effect from 21 February 2017.
As we are not a party of the criminal investigation in relation to
Shanghai Kuailu conducted by the public security authority of
Shanghai City, PRC, we have no access to the latest status nor the
outstanding matters and the expected time of the completion of
such investigation. Up to the date of this report, the Arbitration
was still suspended and the PRC legal advisers of the Company
has not received any oral or written updates from SAC on when
the Arbitration will be resumed nor the status of the criminal
investigation. Since the effective control of the Group over the
two subsidiaries was governed by the VIE Contracts, the feasible
way to re-gain control of the subsidiaries was to enforce such
VIE Contracts through the Arbitration and the PRC legal advisers
of the Company will closely monitor the latest development of
the cases and would proceed to resume the Arbitration once
the criminal investigation is completed. The financial impacts of
the de-consolidation resulting from the incident has been fully
reflected in the financial year of 2016 and the suspension of the
Arbitration claim is not expected to create any adverse impact on
the Group as whole. The Group will continue to follow up the
progress of the incident and will keep Shareholders informed if
there is any updates.

Company'’s plan to address the audit issue

The Directors continue to follow up the progress of the incident
addressed in section “Litigation”.

The audit qualification for the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 regarding the opening
balance and the comparative figures is resulted from the
disclaimer of opinion in respect of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. The
management of the Company believes that the qualified opinion
affects the opening balances as at 1 January 2017 and similar
qualified opinion will not be issued in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly consist
of the operating expenses of each of industrial property
development, general trading, loan financing, securities
brokerage and insurance brokerage as well as the overall
administrative expenses including but not limited to the office
utilities and administration, legal and professional fee, operating
lease payments, employee benefit expenses, depreciation and
amortization, etc. Administrative and other operating expenses
amounted to approximately HK$99,800,000 during the year
under review, which is increased by HK$17,600,000 as compared
to last period. The increase mainly resulted from acquisition
of a financing guarantee operation in Beijing and the asset
management operation, the increase in staff salary and overall
expenses as a consequence of the growth in different operations
of the Group.

Finance Costs

Finance costs have increased from approximately HK$15,200,000
in 2016 to approximately HK$16,340,000 in 2017. The increase
in the finance costs was caused by the increase in other loan
interest expenses on the loan financing business and the
inclusion of the imputed interest of the deferred consideration in
cash payable to the vendor of the financing guarantee operation
acquired in 2017.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group adopts the policy of prudence in managing its
working capital. The operation of the Group was primarily
financed by internally generated cashflow and external financing.

As at 31 December 2017, the shareholders’ fund and net current
assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$714,829,000
(31 December 2016: HK$421,227,000) and HK$464,442,000
(31 December 2016: HK$174,950,000) respectively. On the
same date, the Group's bank balances and cash amounted to
HK$410,117,000 (31 December 2016: HK$240,969,000) and the
current ratio was 3.03 (31 December 2016: 1.88).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$159,093,000 (31 December
2016: HK$113,066,000) of which approximately HK$66,039,000
is repayable within 1 year, approximately HK$9,005,000 is
repayable between 1 to 2 years, approximately HK$36,021,000
is repayable between 2 to 5 years and approximately
HK$48,028,000 is repayable over 5 years. The gearing ratio,
measured on the basis of total borrowings over net assets, was
22% as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: 27%).

There was no capital commitment in respect of the acquisition
and construction of property, plant and equipment for the period
under review (31 December 2016: nil).

The Group does not anticipate any material foreign exchange
exposure since its cash, borrowings, revenue and expenses are
mainly in Hong Kong dollars & Renminbi. Therefore the Group
did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Capital Structure

In February and March 2017, upon the exercise of the share
options at an exercise price of HK$0.232 per share, 195,680,000
new shares of HK$0.001 each were issued.

In Jun 2017, 2,287,947,142 new shares of HK$0.001 each
were allotted and issued upon completion of an open offer on
the basis of one offer share for every two existing shares of the
Company at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per offer share.

In November 2017, upon the exercise of the share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share (as adjusted following
the open offer), 6,215,753 new shares of HK$0.001 each were
issued.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Charges on Assets

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group:

BERBNWmR DN

BEHREE

ERAEEER 2 —RBITEEMIEL KM
ZEERBEWT

31.12.2017 31.12.2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Rl S Y — - —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Property, plant and equipment e & 102,527 102,883
Prepaid lease payments A E KA 25,040 23,994
Bank deposits RITER - 27,918
127,567 154,795
Contingent Liabilities RREE
There are no significant contingent liabilities noted. MEEMEASREE-
Employees and Remuneration Policy EERFMBE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 138
employees. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
respective qualifications and experiences and according to the
prevailing industry practice. Besides salary payments, our staff
benefits include contribution of mandatory provident fund, a
discretionary bonus program and a share option scheme.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2018 AGM") is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 6 June
2018. For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the 2018 AGM, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from Friday, 1 June 2018 to Wednesday, 6 June 2018,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order for a Shareholder to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited of Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 31 May 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Kequan, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He was re-designated as an executive
Director, chief executive officer of the Company and the
chairman of the Board on 30 June 2016. Mr. Liu is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He was previously
the chief executive officer of ZEE F T EER B B R A 7
(Yunnan Ziyuan Group Co., Ltd.), a conglomerate specialising in
investment, real estate development, tourism development and
bio-pharmaceutical biotechnology industry and has extensive
management experience. Mr. Liu graduated from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University with a major in Applied Chemistry in July 1994.
He also obtained an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Tsinghua University in July 2005.

Mr. Zhang Peidong, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-designated as
an executive Director on 5 July 2016. Mr. Zhang is currently the
managing director of Yongsheng (HK) International Co., Limited
which was previously owned by a Hong Kong listed company.
He has over 20 years of experience in investment, corporate
management and international trade industry. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Jilin University of Technology (now known as Jilin
University) with a major in Metallic Materials Engineering.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 4 May 2015. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 10 years of experience in corporate accounting and
worked in a number of listed companies. He was the company
secretary of C&D International Investment Group Limited (Stock
Code: 1908), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), from July 2015 to May
2016. Mr. Kwan holds a Master's degree in Accounting from
Curtin University of Technology (now known as Curtin University).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Lyu Ziang, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 5 July 2016. He is currently the vice
president of Ak #P it 2 {5 BHZ AR 2 7] (Chengdu Shulianyixin
Technology Company Limited). Dr. Lyu was the director of /&
2 5 8IRZ 48 g A T2 BT 3£ 0 (Shanghai Trade Data
Mining and Application Engineering Technology Research Center)
from 2011 to 2016. He has years of experience in identification
and control of trade and financial risks. Dr. Lyu graduated
from Tsinghua University with a degree in Thermo-Dynamic
Engineering and Control in July 1994 and also received a
Master’s degree in Computer Software and Theory as well as a
Doctoral degree in Computer Technology Application from Beijing
Jiaotong University in May 2003 and July 2012 respectively.

Dr. Rui Mingjie, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 7 October 2015. He has over 25
years of experience in corporate management and development
research. Dr. Rui is currently a Professor and the head of the
Department of Industrial Economics of the School of Management
of Fudan University. His main research areas are industry &
enterprise development, enterprise strategy & management,
reformation theory of state owned enterprises, theory of modern
firms and knowledge management & innovation. He was
previously the Associate Dean of the School of Management of
Fudan University from 2001 to 2003 and has been a professor
in the School of Management of Fudan University since 1995.
Dr. Rui is currently an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jin Jiang International Hotels (Group) Company Limited
(Stock Code: 2006), a company listed on the Stock Exchange and
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corporation Limited ( & && /8 5 i%
D AR AR ) (SHA:600848), a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. He holds a Doctoral degree in Industrial
Economics from Fudan University.

Mr. Zhou Liangyu, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2016. He is currently the
managing director of RIIBAL KR EME FHBR A A (H&H
Microelectronics Co., Ltd.), a company specialising in ODM
service and overall supply chain management service in
electronics industry. Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of experience in
investment, corporate management and technology industry. He
graduated from PEFEA #HMEFIIZEBT (Shaanxi Province Foreign
Training College) with a major in Foreign Trade English.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance with a view to assuring the conduct of
management of the Company as well as protecting the interests
of all Shareholders. The Company has always recognised the
importance of the transparency and accountability towards the
Shareholders. It is the belief of the Board that Shareholders can
maximise their benefits from good corporate governance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules (the
“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange, except for the following deviations:

— Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu”) was elected as the chairman of
the Board and chief executive officer of the Company in
June 2016. The Board considers that Mr. Liu has extensive
management experience and is responsible for the overall
corporate strategies, planning and business development of
the Company. As he is under the supervision by the Board
which is comprised of four independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than half of the members of
the Board, the Board considered that the interests of the
Shareholders are adequately and fairly represented.

— Code Provision A.5 stipulates that a nomination committee
should be established to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and reappointment of Directors
and succession planning for Directors.

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
its own members. The chairman of the Board is responsible
for identifying appropriate candidates and proposing qualified
candidates to the Board for consideration. The Board will
review profiles of the candidates recommended by the
chairman and make recommendation of the appointment,
re-election and retirement of the Directors. Candidates are
appointed to the Board on the basis of their skill, competence
and experience that they can contribute to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. Board diversity
is achieved through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience. The current Board
comprise of Directors with diverse perspectives and varied
educational background and expertise made-up from extensive
knowledge and experience in technology, investment, trade
and financial risks identification and control, international
trade, corporate management to professional qualification in
accounting fields. All Directors share their competence to bring
sustainable growth to the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors
of the Company. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2017.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises two executive Directors, being
Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and
Mr. Zhang Peidong, and four independent non-executive
Directors, being Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, Dr. Lyu Ziang, Dr. Rui Mingjie
and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERRE

14 board meetings and 2 general meetings were held during the
year of 2017. The individual attendance record is as follows:

RIE—LFRN BETUREEFSSAENM
IRBECRA G - B FIA B /O ERCE T

Board General

Meetings Meetings

Attended/ Attended/

Eligible to Eligible to

Directors attend attend

EHE BHE

BERLEE SERUE

Exg IR R

B= CEYN RERE

Executive Directors: HITEE -

Mr. Liu Kequan B REAE 14/14 2/2

Mr. Zhang Peidong o )M R S A 14/14 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors: BB ITESE -

Mr. Jin Bingrong (Note 1) S RE A (H3E1) 8/8 0/2

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BEEEL 14/14 212

Dr. Lyu Ziang e 14/14 0/2

Dr. Rui Mingjie REARE T 14/14 0/2

Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 14/14 0/2

Note:

1. Mr. Jin Bingrong retired as Director on 28 April 2017.

Due to other business engagement, some of the independent
non-executive Directors were unable to attend the general
meetings held during the year.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances, but the day-to-day management
is delegated to the two executive Directors, Mr. Liu Kequan and
Mr. Zhang Peidong.

The list of Directors and their roles and functions is posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to each
board meeting. Directors are given the opportunity to include
matters in the agenda for regular board meetings while Directors
are entitled to have access to board papers and related materials
to allow them to make informed decisions on matters arising
from board meetings.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of other committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and are open
for inspection by Directors.
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Each of the non-executive Directors is appointed for a term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber with academic and professional qualifications in the area
of accounting, financial, management and various business fields
which provide the Group with a wide range of valuable expertise.
With their experience gained from senior positions held in other
organisations, they provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board.

Mr. Kwan Kei Chor, an independent non-executive Director,
possesses appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise states under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. Individual Directors are encouraged
to attend courses relating to the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director or further enhancement of their
professional development by way of attending training courses
or via online aids or reading relevant materials. The company
secretary of the Company continuously updates all Directors on
the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices. The current Directors,
namely, Mr. Liu Kequan, Mr. Zhang Peidong, Mr. Kwan Kei Chor,
Dr. Lyu Ziang, Dr. Rui Mingjie and Mr. Zhou Liangyu had attended
training sessions. The participation by the Directors in continuous
professional development are recorded.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and monitor the financial reporting and
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee currently comprises four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman),
Dr. Lyu Ziang, Dr. Rui Mingjie and Mr. Zhou Liangyu.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management and the auditors the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and discussed
the auditing, risk management, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the unaudited interim financial statements of the Group for
the six months ended 30 June 2017.

In additional, the Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the related results announcement and auditor’s report, and made
recommendation to the Board that the same be approved.

Two Audit Committee meetings were convened during the year.
The individual attendance records are as follows:
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Number of
Directors attendance
= R &
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (Chairman) BERELE (F/F) 2/2
Dr. Lyu Ziang BFHELT 2/2
Dr. Rui Mingjie WIARE L 2/2
Mr. Zhou Liangyu BARFEE 2/2
Mr. Jin Bingrong (Note 1) ML LA (HEET) 1/1
Note: Bt o -

1. Mr. Jin Bingrong ceased to serve as the member of Audit Committee
on 28 April 2017.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code Provisions of the CG Code. The
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to advise
and recommend the Board on the remuneration policy and
framework of the Company’s Directors and senior management,
as well as review and determine the remuneration of individual
executive Directors and senior management with reference to
the Company’s objectives from time to time. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman), Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
and Dr. Rui Mingjie and one executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang
Peidong.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration policy and framework of
the Company’s Directors and senior management, assessed
the performance of executive Directors and determined the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management with reference to the Company’s objectives.

A Remuneration Committee meeting was convened during the

A

=

HEE 8

EEgCERUFMEZE e ([FMEEE])
A5 3 1 7 & T B A 8D
ERARBIEENSRER
R N2
#Z URBETRK2EARARFN B R ME
EEBNATESLSREERBNHM -FME
BEeRd=-f2BIUFATESE THBL(E
) BEBEERNARNBLIAR —RHAT

I & IR b E <7 I H 5T
&

E-HMEZEEeR

il

Il

MEFMBERMRAERNESSIREER

BERRMRCEAK -

REIBER - FHME

EREREEENFMTE -

FA BER-—RFHEZESSH -ERIKE

BRI ARRIESER
SREEENFMBERRMAE FHERTES
MERR W2ERARANBREE@ANTE

year. The individual attendance records are as follows: B E T

Number of
Directors attendance
= R
Dr. Lyu Ziang (Chairman) (Note 1) BFREL (EE) (M) 1/1
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor BER A 1/1
Dr. Rui Mingjie NEANRE L 1/1
Mr. Zhang Peidong (Note 2) SROM R S A (FfEE2) 171
Mr. Jin Bingrong (Note 3) SR L AE (HI5E3) 0/0

Notes:

1. Dr. Lyu Ziang became the chairman of Remuneration Committee on
28 April 2017.

2. Mr. Zhang Peidong became the member of Remuneration
Committee on 28 April 2017.

3. Mr. Jin Bingrong ceased to serve as the chairman of Remuneration
Committee on 28 April 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole performed the following corporate
governance duties which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practice on corporate governance;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by the Company’s auditors, HLM
CPA Limited, amounted to HK$1,000,000 and HK$1,130,000
respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist of interim
results review and other reporting services.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year, the company secretary of the Company is
Ms. Chan Siu Mun who had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with Shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is
disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a
number of formal channels, which include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Our published documents
together with the latest corporate information and news are also
made available on the website of the Company. The Company
also welcomes comments and questions from Shareholders at its
annual general meeting.

Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate and vote in
Shareholder’s meetings. According to Bye-law 57 of the bye-laws
of the Company, any 2 or more Shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of a written requisition in aggregate not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid up capital of the Company
as at the date of the deposit have the right to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board. Such requisition must
state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at Company’s head office.

Pursuant to Bye-law 89 of the bye-laws of the Company, no
person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless recommended
by the Directors for election, be eligible for election to the office
of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
by some Shareholders (not being the person to be proposed)
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given of his intention to propose that person for election as a
Director and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to
be elected shall have been given to the Company provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the
day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than seven days
prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice
must state that person’s biographical details as required by Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to the
Board through these means.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there had not
been any changes in the Company’s constitutional documents.
The Company's bye-laws are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and the
Company’s assets and reviewing their effectiveness. Review of
the Group's internal controls include major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions.
The risk management and internal control system are designed
to manage, not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The key elements of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are to ensure their effectiveness include
providing a clear policies and procedure, as well as a reporting
mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks across
business operations.

The Group’s risk management policy includes the following
elements:

e I|dentification of significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those;

e Develop necessary measures to manage those risks; and

e Monitor and review the effectiveness of such measures.
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Risks that affect the achievement of the Group’s objectives are
identified, evaluated and prioritized by department managers.
Management will assess the nature and impact of those risks, risk
register are then established. The Audit Committee is responsible
to manage the risk management process. Risks which cannot be
accepted by the Group are transferred, eliminated or controlled
through risk mitigation measures. Each risk mitigation measure
has a risk owner who is a department manager or designated
person who will be assigned to ensure accountability. Risks
owners are also responsible for monitoring the status of the risk
mitigation measures for risks under their areas of responsibility.

Due to the size of the Group and cost effectiveness consideration,
the Group does not have an internal audit function. Instead, the
Group has engaged an independent professional advisor to assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring of
internal control systems of the Group, assessing the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems and in
performing the internal audit functions for the Group. The review
covers major activities of the Group in rotation basis and also
the risk management functions. Deficiencies are identified and
improvement recommendations as well as remedial actions are
proposed.

Audit Committee and the Board receives the risk management
report and internal control report by the independent professional
advisor annually. The Board, through the Audit Committee, had
performed annual review on the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system.

Regarding the procedure and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group is aware of
its obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The handling
and dissemination of inside information are regulated to ensure
the information is kept strictly confidential before disclosure is
appropriately approved. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of inside information. The Group will immediately
disclose the information to the public if it believes that the
confidentiality may have been breached.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
EESRE

The Directors present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provide corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Detailed review and the future development of the Group's
business are set out in the Chairman’s Statement and the
Management Discussion and Analysis sections of this report.
Those sections form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 59.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 215 of
this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in notes 50 and 51 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2016: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, there were no purchase, sale or redemption of
the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers accounted for approximately
36% and 68% of the Group's total revenue for the year
respectively. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 100% and 100% of the Group's total purchases
for the year respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any Shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Kequan (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Peidong
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Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Bingrong
(retired on 28 April 2017)
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor
Dr. Lyu Ziang
Dr. Rui Mingjie
Mr. Zhou Liangyu

Pursuant to Bye-law 99(B) of the bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Kwan Kei Chor (“Mr. Kwan”) and Dr. Rui Mingjie (“Dr. Rui")
will retire from office as Directors at the 2018 AGM and
Mr. Kwan, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election. Dr. Rui
will not offer himself for re-election due to his other business
commitments.

The Company confirms that it has received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors regarding his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company still considers all the existing
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares
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EERTBITHRABRKS MIH
BAR D B pE e SR B

T NOR B

)

RZE—tF+ZA=1+—HB BEFKAEARQ
I;z?:fﬂlj\iﬁ/\$ Tifﬂ"ﬁfﬁ %/f. (E%f%
REFRBAEGRN ([FBHEBAEGH])EXV
‘E)E'Jﬂxﬁ HEARN REEZIFHEE ()RR
%&Hﬁiﬂmﬂ%xv45%7&%8“4 //\%u
7T'< CRFTER (BERERES R
%-%117%%*@E%flme)ﬂ‘ZﬂE”‘f’EWﬁ?%%ﬁE’]%
KAKRE) : 3i(b) BB IR IR E 5 K B E 1§51
%*3521%55@21&@%6’1%\ P (O IRIRIR
EFRBHE AN A KRBTSR T

A\

R REERDHNER

Total number Approximate

Number of Number of of sharesand  percentage of
issued shares underlying underlying the issued share
Director Nature of Interests held shares held shares capital
HEE#T
FREE BT PR E Bt AR BRABL
E=x BanitE BRH &8 RO EE Ro B Bl
Liu Kequan (“Mr. Liu") Corporate interests 807,750,000 - 807,750,000 11.76%
(Note 1)
Bl ([B1%4]) EEER (PezET)
Note 1: The entire issued share capital of Eastern Spring Global MsEl: RRBIKAERAFR([RE])E2HB 81T

Limited (“Eastern Spring”) is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Liu and Eastern Spring is the legal and beneficial owner of
807,750,000 shares.
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Long position in shares and underlying shares of the

Company'’s associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO)

REATDHEBEIE(EXZREFRBEKL
EXVE) RGO REBRONER

Approximate
Number of  percentage to
shares/amount issued shares/

of registered registered
Director Name of associated corporation Nature of interest  Class capital capital
EERITRG,/
k4H#E,/ dAMERZ
B HEEE AR BImME 55l dAMEXTE BREDL
Mr. Liu Intraday Financial Information Corporate interests ~ Ordinary 55 shares 55%
Service Limited (Note 2)
s ERERESBRBEERAT EBER (M) Eak S5k
aBCD Enterprise Limited Corporate interests  Ordinary 3 shares 100%
(Note 2)
EERER (2) Tak 3k
SRENKREDH(LE)ERAF Corporate interests  Registered capital RMB31,000,000 100%
(Dingtai Runhe Investment (Note 2)
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.) EEER (HE2) HMER AR
31,000,0007T

Note 2: 65.80% of the issued share capital of Long Tu Limited (“Long
Tu") is owned by Mr. Liu. Long Tu is the legal and beneficial
owner of 55 shares of Intraday Financial Information Service
Limited (“Intraday”), which is 55% of its issued share capital,
whilst the remaining 45 shares, which represents 45% of the
issued share capital of Intraday, is owned by the Company.
Intraday is the legal and beneficial owner of 3 shares of aBCD
Enterprise Limited (“aBCD"), which is 100% of its issued share
capital. aBCD is the holder of RMB31,000,000 of the registered
capital of Dingtai Runhe Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which is its entire equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors, chief executive or their associates had any interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (c)
were otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

M2 : EEABRAE ([EBE])EBEHITRAK
65.80% NHELEEHEE -EEAERSE
BEERBERAR ([EXREH]) 255
AR (BEE ZFHITRA 255% ) 25 TE

EnEBA M TH4KREKD (BE
RXKEMEBITIRA Z245% ) YA AR R A
7B - & X% 8 JyaBCD Enterprise Limited
([aBCD J) 23 in (BE 22 21T
RIZEEREZHEA A aBCD BRFH
MTEFER (LB ERAR ZFMERA
[R#31,000,0007T (S H 2 HMRARER) 2
BHA

BRENEBEEN R_E—tF+_A=1—
B BEE5 ITRITRABARSFIOBEA
RARAHEEMABRZE(EERESR
HIE RGBS XV #) /9 B in ~ R0 M (B HERE
RHEE (@) RIEE SR AERGIFEXVEHBETR
FED B AME NN KB Fren st KX R
(BRRIEESEBEGOEBEXEFEE
ERRAERNEESIAR)  H(b) iCEIR
BEAFRIAEGKRIFEIEEEF 2B Ma
BamlRE  HORBEETRHAMNEAR
Bl R B R Py s MUK R o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements and the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares”, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. The effect of such arrangements would enable the
Director involved to be the Shareholder.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to
which (i) the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party with
a controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and (ii) in
which the Directors or an entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors are considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, so far as is known to the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, the persons/companies, other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

T ERFRBG RAABRG L E
ERAA

RIBE—LF+-_A=1t—H BEFRAR
AIEBITHABRA  RAR AR KE#EAK
f*%’&ﬁ@?ﬁﬁ g5 MG RGIE XV EBE2 R
FIDFE IR BAM AR LB FTHE 3
paﬁ"ﬁ’\$ AR IR R %&Hﬁfflﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂ%
FEzERMOERIARNOAL DA (E
FHARBEEZITHRABRINDT

Long position in shares and underlying shares REBHREBERGNER
Approximate
percentage
No. of to issued
Name Nature of interest shares held share capital
HEBITRA
a2l A EmitE FEROGEE #MOBEIL
Eastern Spring Global Limited Beneficial owner 807,750,000 11.76%
RRREARAE EnERAA
Eternally Sunny Limited Beneficial owner 612,810,000 8.92%
(Note)
EF5HR AR EnEBA (B sE)
Mr. Yang Dayong Corporate interests and 614,826,000 8.95%
family interests (Note)
BABLRE EEER R R EER (BaE)

Note:  Mr. Yang Dayong is the beneficial owner of 100% of Eternally
Sunny Limited and Eternally Sunny Limited is the beneficial
owner of 612,810,000 shares. As Mrs. Yang, being the spouse
of Mr. Yang, is interested in 2,016,000 shares, Mr. Yang is also
deemed to be interested in those 2,016,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as is
known to the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
no other parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Mist: BABLEABESERARNZEEEHRE
A A mERARAFA612,810,0000% %
MZERBEBA - BRBGEEZEBER
T 72,016,0008% f 10 R B % - 5 5T
A TR AR VE #2552,016,00008 B 10 R A

T /\o
B%szﬁfriﬁéé%’ﬂl\’ﬂ:; t$+ A
=+—H BEENXARQ ﬂﬁz}\,\ﬁﬁ
G tﬁiﬁﬁﬁ\m/\ir(i%jﬂi BT A
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Convertible Notes

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 20 November
2014 (the "Oriental SPA") in relation to the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Oriental Credit Holdings Limited
("Oriental Credit”), the consideration shall be satisfied by the
Company by way of issue of convertible notes. The holder of
the convertible notes is entitled to convert it into new ordinary
shares at any time between the 30th business day after the issue
of 2015 convertible notes and ending on the 21st business day
before the maturity date (i.e. the 5th anniversary of the date of
issue of the respective convertible notes). If the convertible notes
have not been converted, it will be redeemed on maturity date
at the entire principal amount. The convertible notes bear no
interest.

On 3 June 2015, the Company issued the 2014 convertible notes
with principal amount of HK$85,401,768.19 with conversion
price of HK$1.2 per conversion share.

Following the completion of share subdivision of the Company
on 28 December 2015, the conversion price was adjusted to
HK$0.24 per conversion share and pursuant to the second
supplemental agreement to the Oriental SPA dated 8 January
2016, the conversion period of the convertible notes was
amended to a period from the 5th business day after the issue
of the audited accounts of the Oriental Credit for the respective
financial years and ending on the 21st business day before the
maturity date.

On 8 March 2016, the Company issued the 2015 convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$42,000,000 with conversion
price of HK$0.24 per conversion share.

During the year of 2016, convertible notes with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$119,757,662.10 were converted and
498,990,258 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued by
the Company accordingly.

On 21 March 2017, the company announced that according
to the audited financial statements of Oriental Credit and
its subsidiaries (“Oriental Credit Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2016 issued by HLM CPA Limited on 20 March,
2017, Oriental Credit Group was making a loss for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Based on the adjustment
formula, the adjusted principal amount of the 2016 convertible
note was a negative amount. As such, the Company was not
required to issue the 2016 convertible note according to the
Oriental SPA.
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As at 31 December 2017, no convertible note was converted

during the year and no new ordinary share was allotted and
issued by the Company accordingly.

Details of the convertible notes are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movement of the convertible notes during the year
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ended 31 December 2017 are as follows: REBOEEHFBLOT
Amount of convertible notes
TRREESHE

Number of share Balance as at
Balance as at Granted Exercised allotted and issued 31 December
Holder 1 January 2017 during the year during the year Conversion price upon conversion 2017
RZB-t%§
RZB-tF REBRERER = Sir
BEA —B—B#&# RERR L RERTE BRE BITHROHUE &eh
Vendors of the SPA HK$7,644,106.09 - HK$0.24 - HK$7,644,106.09
BEMENES 7,644,106.097% 7T - 0247 - 7,644,106.09% T

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted pursuant to the Shareholders’ resolution passed on
20 June 2011.

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit
and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

The participants of the Scheme are as follow:

(@) any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries and any invested entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any invested entity;

() any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any invested entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any invested entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any invested
entity;
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(f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any invested
entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any invested entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any invested entity; and

any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute, by way of joint venture,
business alliance, other business arrangement or otherwise,
to the development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 641,262,454 which comprises
183,673,026 shares to be issued under the outstanding options
unexercised and 457,589,428 shares to be issued under the
options not yet being granted, representing 9.33% of the issued
share capital (i.e. 6,870,057,179 shares).

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the share options and the share options
granted under any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant
of the option and subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof.

There is no minimum period required under the Scheme for
holding of the share options before it can be exercised, unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer
of the grant of share options to a grantee. An option may be
accepted by a participant within 28 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option by payment from the participant and
receipt by the Company of HK$1.00 prior to or on the last date
of the said 28 day period.
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The exercise price will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme will expire on 19 June 2021.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of movements in the share options granted under the

TEE/RRESSBETENER B AERNI
TH&EE: (VEONEL B BRERXME R R
BRI THE: () RHNERRL A S
Al B A S % AR FT & B 3RE XA
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AER T —F XA+ NRER-
HEIFFBEN R A MBS IRARM FE40

BHE_Z—+F+__A=1T—HBLEFERE

Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 were as &R H 2 BIRENE B FEBOT
follows:
Number of share options held
fsBREHE
Closing
Price of
share
immediately
Balance as Balance before
at Granted Exercised Lapsed as at Exercise  the date of Weighted
1 January during during during 31 December Price grant of average
Category Date of grant 2017 theperiod  theperiod the period 2017 Exercise Period of Share Options HKS  share options  closing price
#
R “E-tE RANEE
“E-tF =8 BRERH
-A-H =1=H EE BEAH il 33
£7 RHAH g% HRRE  BRTE HRXX &5 BRENGES B WHE YHE
Employees and 20 Nov 2015 30,000,000 - - - 37,294,520 3 tranches from (i) the expiry date of the put option 074 0.70 -
consultants (adjusted)  period as stated in the sale and purchase (adjusted) (adjusted)
(R%)  agreement dated 20 November 2014 (as (E5%) (E58)
amended by the first supplemental
agreement dated 3 June 2015 and the second
supplemental agreement dated 8 January 2016);
(i) 20 November 2016; and (jii) 20 May 2017 to
19 May 2018
EERER —%-1% ARZH BOBHA-T-DET-A-TANEERA
T-A=tA (BRBA-Z-RE AZANE-RBRRER
AH ~NE-RN\BHEZDHERBEE)
Fial DEARERESL: (12T 1%
t-AZtAERGi) =T tERA-THRE
“E-\ERLATHA
28 Dec 2016 323,428,000 - (201,895,753)  (5,096,918) 147,497,342  Any time within 28/12/2016 to 27/12/2018 0.187 0.19 0.23
(adjusted) (adjusted) (adjusted) (adjusted) (adjusted) (adjusted)
(ER%)  (g3%) (888 (E5%) (E8%) (E52%)
“EBRE ZE-AETZAZTNBEE
TZAZTNR “E-N\FTACTERERAKE
Total 353,428,000 - (201,895753) (5,096,918 184,791,862

@t

Note: An aggregate of 1,118,836 share options were lapsed after the
reporting period.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the share
option scheme is set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, every Director shall
be entitled to be indemnified by the Company out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities which he may sustain or incur or about the execution
and discharge of his duties or in relation thereto. Directors’
liability insurance policies containing permitted indemnity
provisions have been taken out and maintained in force during
the financial year and as at the date of approval of this report to
provide appropriate cover for the Directors and directors of the
subsidiaries of the Group in respect of the relevant liabilities and
costs associated with legal proceedings against them.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
business and operations of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees and ensures they all are reasonable
remunerated. The Company regular reviews and updates its
policies on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety.

The Group also recognises that it is important to maintain good
relationship with business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
During the year, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its business partners.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
adheres to the principle of recycling and reducing. Double-sided
printing and copying, using recycled paper and reducing energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and electrical
appliance are being implemented in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from
time to time and will consider further eco-friendly measures and
practices in the operation.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group has reviewed the possible risks and uncertainties
which may affect its businesses, financial condition, operations
and prospects. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

B 7 =5 AH A 05 O A (&
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Strategy Risk
SR BE B By

Risk Description
2| B 4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Risk Mitigation
e

Main business
transformation risk

TEXHEER

The Group is still situated in the phase of
business transformation.

AREENENEFEREE -

The most recent acquisition by the Group
are two companies, one is engaged in
the provision of credit-based financing
guarantee and one is related to loan
arrangement and consultancy services
in the PRC.

REERIETHWRERMR AR
—XRHPEYFREEREENRE
R S—ZXRPEREERTH R
5 AR 7 o

It may be difficult for the Group to set
the long-term performance objectives
and plans for the new business. The
sustainable growth and competitiveness
of the company may be impacted
because of all the new unknowns.

REBAIRE AR I EBHRPRER
B NG - AR A RE R R
FNAREERMBMNAMEARZMX

|| B2 4B
j:lJ/'j_"&El °©

Senior management to monitor regularly
the key performance indicators of the new
business such as sales, cost, profit margin,
market trends, competitions activities,
regulation changes, technologies changes
etc. Any sign of issue will need to report to
the Board immediately for actions.

—SRERETMEENEBNERREA

1RIE NSHERE A FB RTS8

ZBRER EEEY RWEHF -
HIREMA LR - RASEESSER
DA BRERTTED

Different possible business scenarios

are considered within the planning and
budgeting process by senior management.
Appropriate plans to be put in place to
address the possible outcomes.
BREEBNE RGBT RBIERE
EARIMBEZRIER W HlIES @S
FRRTBE IR B 45

External consultants could be
commissioned to improve business
performances or provide an independent
assessment of a particular situation or
issue.

AIRE R LI B R R e E RS RIS R A
EBEREREH BT
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Strategy Risk
SR G 3 By

Risk Description
2| B 4

Risk Mitigation
e

New business risk and
insufficient experience

The Group needs in-house technical
experts and managements that are
risk experienced and qualified in running

FEBRRNKEBRTE  the new line of businesses.

Ja\ Bz REBFTZABRENEBRRLERE

HAMRMERREEAS -

The new line of businesses are regulated,
IT technology driven, and highly
specialized. The Group currently
might not have that type of expertise,
experience, and management skills.

MEBAXRAE AGERMEDHAS
BEX- $EIEMTAETEﬁ
EHENEEMNE KREEEREE-
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— The Group should employ experienced
staffs in the new line of business.

—AREEREFEREENHERHRET -

— To recruit new staffs and provide
development for the existing staffs to
upgrade skill sets in the new business
areas.

—HREME T UMIRAE TRHERE
ABEHE RN RIS R I BE B3R o

— The Group should provide extensive
in-house or external trainings for the staffs
to be knowledgeable about the new lines
of business.

—$E@Fﬁﬁlkh%sz$i%%

Boll ARE TR ET -

— Remuneration policies to be designed to
attract, retain, and reward employees with
ability and experience to execute Group’s
new businesses.

— Il E Fr BN BUR AR 5] - #8582 E) A R

MBI AEEMEBNES -



Strategy Risk
SR BE B By

Risk Description
2| B 4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Risk Mitigation
e

Acquisition risk

Wi R R

The Group from time to time needs
to expand by acquiring new line of
business.
REENRHEEBWENRGETE
& o

If the acquisition is not done properly such
as valuation of the new business is too
high, this could lead to signification
write-offs.

B AR A ZE T W R BAER
SR - EN

— Before investment in a new project or

acquisition of new business, the Board has
to perform full management assessment
and due diligence on the project, business
models, financial performance, market
trend, growth opportunities, risk etc. The
new business needs to be consistent with
the Group's overall business objectives.
—EREMBEIWBEBFIEB A EFE
RETER  XBEEN BBERE M58
FoEREE BRFETEZENERE
EfNERAE - MEBFTERaLRE
EHEERGEZ-

— External consultants/experts/advisors/

professionals that are expert in the business
to be commissioned to support technical
evaluations or provide an independent
assessment.

— ZARREBEBOINBER, BERE
AN/ BEAT TR T ERIREE
ST e

— The management continues to monitor the

progress of the acquisition to ensure it is
on time and within budget. Any material
discrepancy will need to inform the Board
immediately.

-~ EREFRBRANBER  ABRIEE
RWATBEAN - EMERERNARR
HEEE-
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EESRE

Risk Mitigation
e

Strategy Risk Risk Description

SR G 3 By 2| B 4

Information Technology The new financing business and loan
risk arrangement services rely much on IT

18 BB Rk technologies. IT, cyber security risk,

failure or interruption of business critical
IT systems or digital infrastructure could
compromise of, or attack on, Group’s
computer networks.

HMRMEXEBRERTYRESEKERE
BEM-EEERMN BEL2RER #
REBHEERM AN T AR
ME RS R ET IR R BT B AL
= B A A4 o
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— The Group continues to monitor and
upgrade to the latest cyber-attack
prevention software and systems that are
suitable for the Group.

— AEEREEERENBRGRGME
S A BEEBREMESRARIES AL
B B R FTARAS

— Systems vulnerability and penetration
testing should be carried out regularly
to ensure that data is protected from
corruption or unauthorized access or use.
— EHRITRGURRAZE RS - AERE
BXIRE EXBENARERENESE
fEA -

— IT risks are also managed through the
application of internal policies and change
management procedures, and contractual
service level agreements with third-party
suppliers.

—EERMER T EBANBERMNEEE
BREFARESE=FHERETSLR
BiHZEETERE -

— Technical team should receive updates and
trainings relating to cyber risk and business
continuity regularly.

— B it B B & T EA#x OB B A8 4% L B AN 3R
BEEM TN EFRAEI -



Strategy Risk

R B

2 B3

Risk Description
2| B 4

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Risk Mitigation
e

Loan guarantee risk

wEhs
H A

EREAR

One of the Company’s new businesses is
engaged in the provision of credit-based
financing guarantee in the PRC.

RAFER B EB AR T ELER
HERNEENREER-

If this is not handled properly and the
clients default on their loans there
might be financial losses that need to
bear by the Company.

WMABHREREXTPIEBRER AR
AR BE A AE I SRR

— The Group should develop credit approval
policy whereby the credit approval staffs
have to straightly follow. The credit
approval policy needs to be reviewed
by the senior management periodically.
Changes need to be incorporated depends
on the market and economy situations.

—AEERGTEEEFURE BEEEH
ABYEERE - FEEHBEEHGRE
2 EE HmaT - AR5 KB ™ RN
ANE@EES-

— The Group should look into using big data,
credit checking, credit risk management
type of software packages to evaluate
client’s credit standing and credit payment
behaviors before granting of credits.

—AEEERERBEERBR EEXZ
L REBENEERRERRL  UNK
HEERFEEFNERRAREER
IB M °

— Credit approval meeting to be held
regularly by senior management.

—SREEETHETEEEEE-

— Monitoring and follow-up on credit
performance of the clients on a regular
basis. Any sign of problem should be
informed to the management for actions.

—~EHEERBRERFPNEERR -WAE
o] 18 - BB 58 0B T2 B DA BRER AT
& o
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Strategy Risk
SR G 3 By

Risk Description
2| B 4

Risk Mitigation
e

Gatekeeping risk
(Inadequate due
diligence and credit

One of the Company’s new businesses
is engaged in loan arrangement and
consultancy services in the PRC.

check) ARRAREP—EHFEERNFEREE
e ER (ZERAER RLERERRS -
SERETR)

If there is lack of stringent due diligence
and credit check procedures or the
procedures is not being followed
straightly there could lead to default
in loans. This will impact the group’s
reputation.

M BRI EBAEREERERF
FWEYEERBERTF HBE
ERENEH -ERTEEEBEE

Litigation risk
BN

The Group current involved with a number
of litigations in PRC. Lawsuits can have
an adverse financial impact on the
Group. It may also affect the reputation
of the Group.

RNEE B RIEPPBE TR A
AR g ANEEEETNUBEE -
ENMAIRET ERAEEEE-
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— The Group should develop a due diligence
policy and review for update regularly.

— ZNER [ FE I E AR B A A BUR Y T ER A
B

— Staffs that are performing the due
diligence of a client must straightly follow
the policy.

—HEPETEBAETNABRYEER
AR

— The Group will look into using big data,
credit checking, credit risk management
type of software packages to evaluate
client’s credit standing, credit payment
behaviors before granting credits.

—AEEHRAERBEERBR EEX
T HEBNEERRERRARE  UNK
HEERFEEFHNERRRIREER

HER -

— Third party consultant such as private
detective to be employed as part of the
due diligence process if it is required.

—EVERERE=FEM (WLRER)
ERRRATHBEN—D -

— The Group should actively engage with a
competent lawyer that specializes in this
kind of court case.

—AEEERBREERZEFRARGNE
B8RS -

— The Group should consider other
resolution, such as out of court settlement
with the counterparty.

—AEBEEREREMBATR WHEXFEH
77 BESNFNAE

— Ongoing monitoring of the progress of
the court case and provide updates to
management and the Board.

—REEEFLARGNERTAERERE K
EEgRHEHMER-



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no significant event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is publicly
available to the Company and within knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float under the
Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 have been audited by HLM CPA
Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Kequan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 March 2018
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B4 g st AT A TR F

Room 305, Arion Commercial Centre
2-12 Queen’s Road West, Hong Kong.

Frh 2 5 K Y 2- 1295 B s v 2 b 0305 E

HLM CPA LIMITED

Tel &7 : (852) 3103 6980

Fax f#H.: (852) 3104 0170

Certified Public Accountants

E-mail 7& ¥} : info@hlm.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GREATER CHINA FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RAESHMERERAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Greater China Financial Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 59 to 214, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION
Opening Balance and Corresponding Figures

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which form the basis for the
corresponding figures presented in the current year’s consolidated
financial statements, included a disclaimer of opinion in view
of the possible effects of the de-consolidation of subsidiaries in
respect of the departure from Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (“HKFRS
10") and the compliance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. Details of the disclaimer
opinion was set out in the independent auditor’s report dated
17 March 2017 which was included in the Company’s annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to enable us to assess the possible effects of de-consolidation
of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016. Any
adjustments to the opening balances as at 1 January 2017 found
to be necessary may affect the balance of accumulated loss as
at 1 January 2017 and the results and related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017. The comparative figures
shown in the consolidated financial statements may not be
comparable with the figures for the current year.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified

A ET £ 1R

BARESFEERERMANEXRHE R oY
AP B BRRNBARRERNER LR
HEERMEBAEERREMBEREARLAE
SRETREN RSB ELEHERE
BNER -BRIMREBRAOER] —SAMLS
BN R EE N ERSNEMANRE T
BB EREEE

Opinion section, we have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESEE

BN FTNAHBEREA S HETEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill

& KR E R

Referring to notes 17 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the
Company had performed an impairment review in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”
in relation to the Group’s goodwill belonging to the
groups of cash-generating units ("CGU") comprising
insurance brokerage CGU, security brokerage CGU,
assets management CGU, financing referral CGU and
financial guarantee CGU. The Group had recognised
an impairment loss on goodwill of HK$14,650,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2017 as a result of the
impairment review.

SHEEMBRRMEITRIG . BRATEEDR
BEEESAEAFECR [EEREI Y SEENH

i?i%&(@%i?iﬁuﬂ%ﬂﬁﬂ BRERREBRELHE
TELABMN BLRELRCELABN EEERRS

ELBU mEEN iﬁi?i'ﬁu&@ﬂﬁiﬂ%fﬁi?
FEMAHEET MTE&ET ARBRERF 5%

BEREZ-_ZT—+F+=-_A=+—H ﬁigﬁﬁ%ﬁ
2O EE518 14,650,000 JT °

The assessment of the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs required involvement of significant judgements
and assumptions by management concerning the
estimated future cash flows and other key inputs and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AR CEABUMNAINE AT RERERMGR
RIR & m 8 Kt B SR i A BUR/E D B A HIET R RER
W K= Bt N EE 1 -

Accordingly, we have identified management’s
impairment assessment of the goodwill as a key audit
matter.

At HAIGEEEH B BRRERGHMN R —HH

BRETEERE

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BARREZEFREMRBRNEIERRFEHE:

e discussing with and, where applicable, sought
corroborative supporting information from the
management of the Company and the independent
valuer engaged by the Company (the “Valuer™)
regarding the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies adopted and the key inputs used,;

e B BERAIETEER EAREENBEM(LERM

(TEERD]) & PSR AL E 7 A R ER AR i @

ABEHNEEER (HER)SRKEEFER:

e discussing with the management of the Company
and the Valuer about the key assumptions used in
forming the CGU's value-in-use calculation including
the cash flow projections and discount rates used
and evaluating the relevance and reasonableness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the

business and industry; and
= N\

o EAT%E@&%@EWJ RICKERECELE
NEREBEEAEMRANBRER BRRASR

ETRANMAAMRE WRERRMEESRITE
TR HERERBERNERERAENE &

e assessing the competency and experience of the
Valuers.

o FHERERMRBERE N AL
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BMNFTNAHBAREASHETEE

Provision of guarantee losses

BRERRE

Referring to notes 4 and 31 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had provision for guarantee
losses amounting to HK$51,229,000 as at 31 December
2017.

2HEGEEMBRERNTIR3 R E—tF+=A
=+—H' EBESBENERFREBEBERS1,229,000/8

JG °©

Assessing provisions of guarantee losses is a subjective
area due to the level of judgement exercised by the
management in determining the amount of provisions
required.
HREEEEET A REFTHNERRFTEZEAR
Z A F TR EREERGERY X B HE-

From the Group's perspective, the portfolios which
give rise to the greatest uncertainty were those where
provisions were derived from collective assessment,
where the financial guarantees issued were unsecured
or where the financial guarantees issued were subject
to potential collateral shortfalls.

®t ESENAEE AAHATHEENESEE
BRERAESTIHETET CELRMEERRIFEEMRK
BEELBEERAETEERD T RHNER -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

HAMAREZFEMRDNIERFEHE:

e assessing the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls from approval, to recording and
monitoring of financial guarantees issued, the
credit assessment process, the identification and
timeliness of identifying impairment indicators,
continuous re-assessment of the appropriateness
of assumptions used in the collective assessment
model and the management’s specific provisions for
individual guarantee losses;

e MHDEBLMEERUFHIARKEEZIRE
RS 1 )RR At BOE (BB B AT RR AR  RUE
FEROBRARERY BEFHEXMARRES
BUERNFEENTHREEESENERERG
R B

e comparing the total balances of the guarantee list,
which contain information used by management
to assess provisions for guarantee losses, with the
general ledger and comparing individual loan and
guarantee information, on a sample basis, with
the underlying loan and guarantee agreements
and other related documentation to assess the
presentation of the information in the due diligence
report, risk control report and the guarantee list;

e HREEERNAMERBERENERSER
RRAATEE AR ERE — B WERA WAL
B AE Rl & KA HE IR A R R RN PR R 1 A
HMEAX -3t U ERATREM
BRI S MER S BRAEREIRBE N
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREESER

BN FTNAHEREA S HETEE

Provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

BERERRE (&)

The determination of collective impairment allowances
for provisions of guarantee losses is heavily dependent
on the external macro environment and the Group's
internal credit risk management strategy. The Group’s
collective provisions of guarantee losses are derived
from estimates including the Group's historical losses for
financial guarantees issued, the loss emergence period
(i.e. the time lapse between the occurrence of the event
causing eventual default to the actual recording of a
loss) and other adjustment factors.
EREBERBEPUAESTAEEREEHRARE L
KERINBRZEBRIRN BEEBEANHNERRRER
K BEEERESHTABENEREBEREBERE
REEM B EEEEBLREERNESLE
KR BRI (RBHERENEHNELS
ERSFSERNKRERR) REMBARRE-

e evaluating assumptions adopted in management's
calculation of provisions for guarantee losses by
critically assessing input parameters involving
subjective judgement, seeking collaborative evidence
from external sources and comparing historical
losses against the Group’s other internal records and
prior year records. We also assessed the emergence
period by tracing the life-cycle of overdue accounts
from the specific credit events to downgrading the
accounts to non-performing loans and receivables
and guarantees. Having considered the above, we
performed re-calculations to assess the amount of
provisions for guarantee losses;

s HEEEEMAEERBEBEGRMANRR A
ARHBAE TR EBHEOEAZE ZKI
MBEEBR WHELERE EEEEMAIL
Bk - FENTHETHL - SN BRARMEE
HERFPREGERASEHZELEINFERRRTRER
NMEWHRIBEMEROZBR  RFEITEHR - KE
B LiE®&  RIVET T EFRRNE  UFHER
BEEEEN TR
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BMNFTNAHBAREASHETEE

Provision of guarantee losses (Continued)

EREERE (&)

Individual provisions of guarantee losses are estimated
by management once objective evidence of impairment
becomes apparent. Management exercises judgement
in determining the quantum of loss based on a
range of factors. These include available remedies
for recovery, the financial situation of the debtors,
collateral valuation, the seniority of the claim and the
existence and cooperativeness of other creditors. The
enforceability, timing and means of realisation of certain
property and other illiquid collateral may also affect
the ultimate collectability and thereby the amount of
provisions of guarantee losses as at the reporting date.

EEREEBRRAELETHER ERERSRAE
EHEN A G RREREEE CETBRTER -
ERERERHAE EESERKX-ELRAEZEHEA
PR B0 W 1B SR IR Al R0 0% e SR A B B SR O~ S dR
MEE REXEIRF REFEHMEEARER
BER-MEMEMIERDERMBROAIMITIE
REMI AT ERKRN AL SRR M ER
THHNERBERENSRE-

We have identified provisions of guarantee losses as a
key audit matter because of the inherent uncertainty in
management’s exercise of judgement in determining
the amount of provisions and because of its significance
to the financial results and capital of the Group.

BB EREEEESN S —ERRESFE B H
eERERETEBTNERERERMBFERRHN
TEEE BEY SSENMBEXERERNBERX

= 480
&

e assessing the financial position for the samples of
financial guarantees selected by inspecting historical
payment patterns, written decisions from law
courts about the disposal of collateral and other
underlying information used in the risk control
report, challenging the viability of the Group’s
recovery plans, evaluating the timing and means
of realisation of collateral and considering other
sources of repayment asserted by management.
We also assessed the consistency of management'’s
application of key assumptions, evaluated any
change in the bases and key assumptions and
compared the data to our own data sources;

e BEBRBEEXMNAXN EARMLEEMMmEL
WEEHRERZEREAANEMBEER &
PN E EREANPBARRETHE H &
SEWKGTE WA THR D E R PR E
MR EREREF ROHEMEZERIR &K
P EREEERARERRN BT FHE
EREARBROTCAEELT HZZFHEEKXME
B BUIRRRETTHE

e evaluating the Group’s internal policy for the
valuation of collateral and assessing the valuation
of collateral for the samples of financial guarantees
selected by comparison with relevant available
market information; and

o i EEEHETEMRRETHENANIEE
R WRBEMBEFMISERELE s
ENRERRERNEFRNMEE: &

e assessing the completeness and accuracy of
outstanding financial guarantees by inspecting
contracts, on a sample basis.

s BBEWMEREBEALN FERIHBEEZRNTE

1 N FERENE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREESER

BN FTNAHEREA S HETEE

Impairment assessment of loans receivables

F&E W & X B9 R B T A

Referring to notes 4 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2017, the Group had
loans receivables amounting to HK$189,891,000. The
Group had not recognised any impairment losses on
loans receivables for the year ended 31 December 2017.
S2HGEEUBRERNTIR2G RZ_E—+tF+A
=t+—H8 > &&SHBEAREKE89,891,000/ T R
BHE_Z—+tFT-A=+—RBLFE EBEKEL
ALY E SR RDRERERE -

The estimated impairment losses are determined by
the management of the Company based on the credit
reviews performed, taking into account repayment
history of the counterparties and the current market
conditions.

HERREEERH BEAREEEENRMETREE
ELEET ETEERHFINEREL RIRITHMR -

The Group’s methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows require the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market conditions. The assessment
normally encompasses the nature and value of the
collateral held and the anticipated receipts.
EEEMFAKRERENSERKRAAN AR
BRERE TR EBE RN E BTN E P EER KRGS
PRIEETEH - EBFERMFERRNIEE L E
B RFEHEA AT g [Ol & 58 -

We have identified management’'s impairment
assessments of the recoverability of loans receivables
as a key audit matter because the amounts of the
receivables are significant and the assessments required
significant management judgement and involved high
level of estimation uncertainty.

AT E IR B R W S R AT M B B R E AT (R R R
—HARENEE BARRKFRENSREELN B
HEREERRBELERHE RS RS E N EET T
FEM o

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPREEZERAMRKDNEIERFBHE:

e understanding and testing the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls in the systems from
the approval to recording and monitoring of loans,
and the identification and timeliness of identifying
impairment indicators;

e THRBANRBHIARKEZERRANHREE
RV AT BB VERCRUA KORUE TR SR #Y 58k hl) K B R

e verifying the balance of loans recoverable by
requesting and receiving confirmation and making
visit to the borrowers on a sample basis;

o EBMERE R RIEEFER LA K E S R ARZE AT
W El & A& R

e reviewing ageing analysis of loans receivables
prepared by management of the Company and
discussing with the management of the Company
whether the amounts are recoverable;

o EH BEAFTEEERENEUEZRHREDNT
W FREIERENmAELE AWM :

e evaluating the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of loans receivables;

o FHMAEIEE YW E AR W E 1R RT A

e obtaining and evaluating credit information
of certain debtors from the management of
the Company as part of the assessment of the
recoverability of loans receivables.

o HEFMHEWERAIHEMEBEF -1
BEERYNGEE TEBANEEER -

ERAE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RHENRE

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HAEESER

BMNFTNAHBAREASHETEE

Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

& W e o % L At W R TR B9 R (B AT A

Referring to notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2017, the
Group had trade and other receivables amounting to
HK$34,877,000. The Group had recognised impairment
loss on trade and other receivables of approximately
HK$2,971,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.
BHEGREVBHREMTIARS R —tF+=
AR=+—B EBES£BARBWKREIEHEMEKRKE
34,877,000 L REE T~ tFt+-_A=1—H
IEFE - &5 E R R R E A FE UK I8 T R 0R
B E518 472,971,000 7T °

The estimated impairment losses are determined by
the management of the Company based on the credit
reviews performed, taking into account repayment
history of the counterparties and the current market
conditions.

MErREERESER BEAREEEENMETEE
EEETE BEVTEERYUFINERELERITHR

The Group’s methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows require the review of individual
outstanding amounts regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market conditions. Impairment
allowances on individually assessed accounts are
determined by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the
end of the reporting period on a case-by-case basis. The
assessment normally encompasses the nature and value
of the collateral held and the anticipated receipts.

EEBEGFRKBECRENSERSREAAN T ER
B ESRR TR/ E B RN E TR E AR KRGS
RIBETERN - BAT N REHEAREEENBR
ZEAREHN DA EREBENRMERG - FTHBEER
FIFERmetEE REEU KA E -

We have identified management’'s impairment
assessments of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables as a key audit matter because the amounts
of the receivables are significant and the assessments
required significant management judgement and
involved high level of estimation uncertainty.

AP B I T R W R R B H A 8 Wk R 3R T U [E] 1 A
MER BRI A —AERESFE EhERKFIE
MeREA BT EEREBELERNHE Y R
= B ET THEE I -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

HAAREZFEMRRNIERFEHE:

e understanding and testing the Group’s credit control
procedures and testing key controls over granting of
credit to customers;

e THRIRA SEBEEEEHREFUNRAER
RYTEFEENMEE:

e obtaining an ageing analysis of trade and other
receivables from the management of the Company
and discussing with the management of the
Company whether the amounts are recoverable;

o it BERAETEE SR U ER R N E e YRR
ARSI W BEAREEENRREBEREER
W

e evaluating the management’s assessment of the
recoverability of long outstanding and overdue trade
and other receivables;

e MHERBHRAIAREZENEEYRREEAM
JRE WK IR £ A We 3] 1 B R A

e obtaining credit information, publicly available
information and latest correspondences of certain
debtors from the management of the Company
as assessing recoverability of trade and other
receivables; and

o TERTAH FE UL AR T Ko H th g W R IR AT Uk [B] 1 A 8 A2
hoft ERAREEEBERETEBANGEESR
B RERFERESHERERS &

e verifying the balance of trade and other receivables
by requesting and receiving confirmation on a
sample basis;

o EIBTER B K N ERHE IR A% H R MR B K H e
WOk IR A& R

e checking subsequent settlements of trade and other
receivables on a sample basis.
o MmBERUWERR M HAEUFIAHZERENR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

B NORTE B i i Rk B AL
M BT

BERREFARARBET SRS HEM
B (BEAMBHREER) REE (RREDD
MRBEZRREEEMRENGES M BERE
T BERREZTAS//EGEEMHREDN
RETFEHNRGFRERMERWE KN
AR FTFE O RNEEHIR E -

EREBREMBRRE - EXRNME &5
B AR EMEE N LAEEAIER T HE R
BREAENER UMEAKELE RS
A fRIF EAREFAER EEEEBR
SFLERE KA EEBERNEL TR

REERRREE

BEEENYBREBE-

ZBAD LB ET AR B M IS R AT
M E 1T

BMNBER EHGRAUBHRREBRES T
TFREBNRFFKERM BB N HRER A
REEERE LERR (BRERRE) F90
R EERNEZBEREABRERMERLD
ZERED RS o BR UL ASN - AT S AR A 15
H Ak AL T AHE 2 AR LM HE
i AL ABEEREEREREANER SR
ERREKENREZ BETRERIBER(BEES
PR EITHES EX - EXRERRAT
FE I 48 BE 35 3R o $5 AR IR AT DA F AREF 388 3R 3
B mREERHEMEBRELERAER
RV BRREME KBRS P BEHRERMA
1E A DR TE - Bl B8 B 5 SR BR AT 148 18
EX-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

38 3 B BAT R S

ERE (BABEER) ETTHEHBRES
BPERTEEHE RiFTEXREREE -
ZAFIIR -

o BBIMFHE RPOEKEF A RR M & 2
RIEFEERERRAORER R RATT
B REFARYELRER  ARERTE R
FMEENEERE  FRRFSRMERE-
MR GFARE S R ER RE ERER
HERBRA - sk BN ABRES 2 £ Fitt
AL RMFEMERN B AT RR A
B = R BE B IR R 58 AR T B B ) EE K8
AR BRI ) [ Bt o

o THREZRHEBNAMES URTEE
MBEAEF EENLIEE SEBAIMN
EHNEREERER -

s HEEEMRASHABRENREERIEL
St IR EN AR -

s HEERARKERLSHERNREIEE
HaEwm RIBMEDRNETBRE BER
BFERESHENBERNEENERNTEENS
KmA e EHY SEEENFELLEED
ELEEARBE -MRAMBA/AFEEARDT
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BHRAERBREBRRIZMER-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that are of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Matters under sections 407(2) and 407(3)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In respect alone of the matters described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section of our report above:

e we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting
records had been kept; and

e we have not obtained all the information or explanations
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary
and material for the purpose of the audit.

HLM CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

HO PAK TAT

Practising Certificate Number: P05215
Hong Kong

13 March 2018

BREMEIRIN RS ERE T ENE
ATEE KRR EARMAERS 81K
PIFEZRFT 0 8B i P BB 22 i) ) T ] B2 KRB

BFEMAEERRER HRUMEFTEH
B MR ERBERER Y EMFIEE
BRRAEMNRAREFERMBILIENFT
ERARMEMER  UAREERNBERT
88 Ey [y 8048 1

RERIEE/A BN AT - R EE WL =R
HAMGEEYBHRRNBARAER EAME
RS ERT TR - R M EZBEI RS PR E
LEIR  RIDERZEZRTAFAFARBEELS
HRESRRFERNBR T IREEAYE
HMBmETBRRXEHEENNARKLRES
EENARNEGE  BFIRETEERS T AR
ZEIR -

HEB (DREH) 5%£407(2) 2407(3) KB T
HtEENRE

ERBRMANBE EXREZROER] —&0
Pt =I5

o BfIRAEHEREGEHERD SR
54

o HFPRBEMEHAAZRRMPTAAIEYET
TEMEBLHERERERNENRHE-

EREFEITERAR
HE DA

f{aE

HMEFEMRIN: P05215
B

- N\F=A+=H

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEnRkHEtEEK®ER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
{g=a FET FHEIT
Revenue WA 5 130,652 75,175
Cost of sales HEMA (62,969) (35,636)
Gross profit EH 67,683 39,539
Other income, gains and losses H WA -~ Yas &g 7 89,103 (218,969)
Administrative and other operating TR REMEER
expenses (99,797) (82,187)
Finance costs B T R AR 8 (16,340) (15,200)
Share of loss of associates FE(R Bt & A Al 18 - (98,410)
Impairment loss on goodwill B2 REEE (14,650) -
Impairment loss on interests in associates  FAHE & A Bl = <R EEE - (267,410)
Net loss on de-consolidation of BUBfRE ARMB AR Z
subsidiaries B8R - (324,478)
Profit (loss) before taxation B AR A (EE) 25,999 (GO 115
Income tax credit (expense) FIEHEE (FAX) 9 43 (3,435)
Profit (loss) for the year FREF (FE) 10 26,042 (970,550)
Other comprehensive income Hh2HEWKE (FX) -
(expenses), net of tax HERFLIE
Items that may be reclassified HEAREEN D EERm
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEE :
Exchange differences on translation of E B RN E T T 2= A B
foreign operations M N =5 14,091 (5,968)
Release of translation reserve upon &K B A R & ARR
disposal of subsidiaries b 5 2 =
Reclassification adjustment relating to BB INEBEUR
foreign operations de-consolidated e ANRZEMDEAE - 4,925
Share of other comprehensive expense I E AR EME2EAX
of associates - (6,255)
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AT EEMmEEL
financial assets N EE (16,761) (110,583)
Other comprehensive expense FREMEEBEX
for the year (2,668) (117,881)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FREZMEWE (FAX) B
for the year 23,374 (1,088,431)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROAT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEaRkAtEEBGER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZT—+tF+_A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—B—tF —ZT—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
{g=a FET FAETT
Profit (loss) for the year BT ATEEFERER
attributable to: (EE) :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEE Z N 26,020 (970,550)
Non-controlling interests FEFE I HE 2 22 -
26,042 (970,550)
Total comprehensive income (expense) LT ALTEGEFERZEWE
for the year attributable to: (BA%) 4%
Owners of the Company KARHEE A 23,352 (1,088,431)
Non-controlling interests FEVE I HE 2 22 -
23,374 (1,088,431)
HK cents HK cents
AL (L
(Restated)
(#E5)
Earnings (loss) per share BREF (BER) 14
Basic BN 0.43 (22.73)
Diluted 23 0.43 (22.73)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE AR R &
At 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+&F+_-HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E2—tF —T—RF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FE&T FHET
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN Y& 15 111,448 113,916
Prepaid lease payments A HEEIA 16 24,281 23,288
Goodwill Bk 17 151,122 123,612
Intangible assets BmEEE 18 10,906 11,274
Interests in associates REEE R RS 20 — =
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESRMEE 21 25,521 41,724
Financial assets at fair value through profit & @8 1R A FEF R A
or loss SREE 22 22,410 —
Contingent consideration receivables FEY KA RE 23 9,879 15,102
Deferred tax assets EERRIBE E 35 12,689 -
Deposits ®e 26 3,325 3,325
371,581 By Al
Current assets REBEE
Loans and interests receivables R E R KA 8 24 189,891 37,061
Trade and other receivables JFEE AT R R e L At B UK 25 34,877 31,379
Prepaid lease payments AN HEE IR 16 759 706
Prepayments and deposits BRRERES 26 46,888 8p5 /3
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEEe ﬁﬂéf? 21 — 16,751
Tax receivables FEU B 18 - 2
Cash held on behalf of clients REPEENRS 27 2,066 15,746
Restricted bank deposits PR HIER1TIF K 28 9,064 =
Pledged bank deposits B FIRITER 29 - 27,918
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 29 410,117 240,969
693,662 374,105
Current liabilities REBERE
Trade payables, other payables and accruals &1~ BR 30 H b fE 1~ 3118
NIEETE R 30 60,095 44,507
Liability from financial guarantees BEERAE 31 51,753 -
Deferred considerations EERE 32 48,807 96,595
Borrowings BE 33 66,039 57,231
Tax payables JE 1~ 7 18 2,526 822
229,220 199,155
Net current assets REBEEFEE 464,442 174,950
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBER 836,023 507,191
APESRMIZERERAT | — T —tFFH

61



62

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SPN 3
e RN R
At 31 December 2017 R-—T—+&+=-A=+—8H
2017 2016
—B—tF —ZT—RF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET TET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred considerations EERE 32 22,486 24,283
Convertible notes AR ERE 34 5,654 5,070
Borrowings BE 33 93,054 55,835
121,194 85,188
Net assets EEFE 714,829 422,003
Capital and reserves BXK#E
Share capital N 36 6,870 4,380
Reserves fEf 707,959 416,847
Equity attributable to owners of RRARER AEIEER
the Company 714,829 421,227
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR HE 2 - 776
Total equity REmAT 714,829 422,003
Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #H#Z—-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—H

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREEAER

Share  Convertible Non-

Share Share options  notesequity  Translation  Revaluation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total

TERR

B& ROEE  BRERE  BERER ERGE Eftif EERE RitER Mt FERER #it
HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HKS,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HK$,000 HKS,000
TR Thn T TR TR Tin T TR ThAn TiEn T

(Notes 51(@)) ~ (Notes 51(b)) ~ (Notes 51(c)) ~ (Notes 51(d))  (Notes 51(e)) (Notes 51(f))
(Wis1E)  (WEsip)  (MEs10)  (MEEs19) (Wasie)  (sEs1)

At 1 January 2016 RZE-7~5-A-8B 3234 1,263,986 5831 101,192 (21,955) - 4947 (195,490) 1,161,745 - 1,161,745
Loss for the year FAKE = = = = = = - (970,550) (970,550 - (970,550)
Other comprehensive expense Af2ERY
- Change in fair value of - At ESREEN
available-for-sale financial assets AFERS - - - - - (110,583) - - (110,583) - (110,583)
- Redlassification adjustment relating — B EEREVELFAAE
to foreign operations BNEBZERHBAE
deconsolidated during the year - - - - 4,925 - - - 4,925 - 4925
- Share of other comprehensive  ~EEBE ARG B2 ERT
expenses of associates - - - - (6,255) - - - (6,255) - (6,255)
- Exchange differences on translation ~EEEENEBMELR
of foreign operations EFZE - - - S (5,968) - - - (5,968) - (5,968)
Total comprehensive expense ENZERYER
for the year - - - - (7,298) (110,583) - (970,550) (1,088,431) - (1,088,431)
Issue of new shares on subscription  F 2B R Z1TH R 453 121,806 - - - - - - 122,259 = 122,259
Issue of convertible notes RN R A AR
on acquisition of subsidiaries TRRER - - - 61,723 - - - - 61,723 - 61,723
Conversion of convertible notes B ITARER 499 228,369 - (153,140) - - - - 75128 - 75,128
Transaction costs attributable o~ EHAR{EE R HHA
conversion of shares - (161) - - - - - - (161) - (161)
Recognition of equity-settled ERNREEERAZAD
share based payments HE = = 42,760 < = = - = 42,760 - 42,760
Share options lapsed during the year /B 5% &R 2 - < (3.887) - - - - 3,887 - - -
Issue of shares upon acquisition of ~ MM B A AIBE{TR(A

subsidiaries 194 45410 - - - - - - 45,604 - 45,604
Release of statutory reserve upon  EH B A B UKL
i

de-consolidation of subsidiaries - - - - - - (120) 120 - - -
Recognition of non-controlling
interest arising on acquisition of
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 776 776
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-AE+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2017 —F-+%-f-H 4,380 1,659,410 44,704 9,775 (29,253) (110,583) 4821 (1,162,033) 41,227 776 422,003
Profit for the year ERET - - - - - - - 26,020 26,020 2 26,042
Other comprehensive (expense) income E {2 (5 ) Wz - - - -
- Change in fair value of -AfHESRAREY
avallable-for-sale financial assets ~ AFEEH = = = = = (16,761) = = (16,761) & (16,761)
- Exchange difference on translation ~E R EENEBMELR
of foreign operations EHEE - - - - 14,088 - - - 14,088 3 14,091
- Release of translation reserve upon  ~ R ENBAAREREL
disposal of subsidiaries i - - - - 5 - - - 5 B 2
Total comprehensive income ENZERGES
for the year - - - - 14,093 (16,761) - 26,020 23352 2 23374
Disposal of non-controling interest ~ EFfiH &M BA A FEL
relating to subsiciaries disposal of & FE L - - - - - - = - - (798) (798)
Issue of shares upon exercise of  RTRERERHTRG
share options 202 67,672 (21,313) - - - - - 46,561 - 46,561
Issue of shares upon open offer ~ RAREERTTRH 2,288 226,507 - - - - - - 228,795 - 228,795
Transaction coss attributable NAZEEERHMA
to open offer - (6,095) - - - - - - (6,095) - (6,095)
Recognition of equity-settled BANRELERAZME
share based payments FE = = 989 = = = = = 989 - 989
Share options lapsed during the year /B % MEER 2 - 5 (435) - - - - 435 - - -
At 31 December 2017 R=B-tE+=A=+-A 6,870 1,947,494 23945 9,775 (15,160) (127,344) 487 (1,135578) 714,829 - 714,829
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n _\éiﬁrﬁ%ﬁaii

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHTT
Operating activities RETH
Profit (loss) before taxation BrFR AR A (E1E) 25,999 (967,115)
Adjustments for: M TFIIEEEL 2 FHE
Amortisation and depreciation BN TE 12,676 11,538
Finance costs BT IS R AR 8 16,340 15,200
Fair value change on contingent EU S ARIEZ
consideration receivables NEEE 7 10,988 20,475
De-recognition of deferred consideration BUB RIEERE 7 (67,901) -
Fair value change on financial assets at FRBERIR AT ENERD
fair value through profit or loss TREEZ A VEERS 7 (2,409) -
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B AR 2 F WS 7,38 (945) -
Gain on disposal of assets classified as &Y ARHELHER
held for sale BE W 7 - (1,952)
Net loss on de-consolidation of BUBEMB A rRliRe AR
subsidiaries BB - 324,478
Interest income M B A 7 (10,154) (1,425)
Loss on disposal and written off of R s v %
property, plant and equipment = N2 B 7 5 79
Net foreign exchange gain b 5 W& ) 58 . (582) (131)
Share-based payment expenses PARR 10 2 I sRIB R X2 i/ 989 42,760
Share of loss of associates eSS R RS - 98,410
Impairment loss on interest in associates NN =
B R E - 267,410
Impairment loss on amounts due JE Y B & N B RRIBZ
from associates BB BB 7 11 21
Impairment loss on amounts due JE W BB AR & A BRI B
from de-consolidated subsidiaries NAEIFRIBZ BEER 7 - 97,484
Impairment loss on trade and JFEE K2 B 5 B L At B MR IR
other receivables 2 BIEEE 7 2,971 1,298
Impairment loss on loans and EWERRAEZ
interests receivables BB EE / - 62,420
Reversal of impairment loss 1 o] B b pE WO IE 2
on other receivables BB EE 7 - (469)
Impairment loss on goodwill B ZREBE 14,650 -
Operating cash flows before movements RetE BB ZEATA
in working capital KERSRE 2,638 (29,519)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other B 5 K H th fE Y 5k I8
receivables A (1) 14,808 (5,351)
Increase in loans and interests receivables  f&UE 3k & Fl 8.1 i1 (48,958) (100,320)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and TR FRIE RIS (3an) 7
deposits (26,075) 4,926
Decrease in trade payables and JE A~ R R - LM JE < FRIE K
other payables and accruals fEETE R (46,761) (19,641)
Decrease in amounts due FEWBUE R & ABRH B AR
from de-consolidated subsidiaries SRR - 8,664
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients REF#HA 2R S H D 13,680 941
Increase in amounts due from associates JE B & 2 B R IR 38 (11) (21)
Increase in liabilities from financial BMERREE ZBEEM
guarantee 371 =
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #H#Z—-ZT—+F+_-_A=+—H

mae

2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
NOTES HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FTHET FHET
Cash used in operations KETEEFHA RS (90,308) (140,321)
Interest paid SRR % (7.272) (7,532)
Income tax paid 2T FT1EH (2,552) (10,017)
Income tax refund ﬁﬁ?%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ 1,938 -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHHACHEEFER (98,194) (157,870)
Investing activities REEH
Interest received 2 W ALE 9,889 1,425
Placement of pledged bank deposits EFEEARITERX - (29,308)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RIEEKRRITER 28,833 35,169
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E ¥ ¥ &= M &K E 15 (120) (554)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial BEHEESRMEE
assets - (158,823)
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERtHE SR EE
financial assets P15 5R18 17,001 =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEAABRERAY
through profit or loss BIRNEREE (20,001) b
Net cash outflow on de-consolidated BUB#r & ARMEB 2 A8
subsidiaries W mHFEE 39 - (33,834)
Net cash outflow from acquisition of WEEH B ARMRS
subsidiaries L E R 37 (50,464) (44,661)
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEWNBARIMIIRS
subsidiaries MAFEE 38 279 L
Settlement of deferred consideration ETIRERE (30,000) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTARSFHE (44,583) (230,586)
Financing activities RMEEE
Expense on conversion of convertible notes B2 ] AR 4R 7 B - (161)
Repayment of obligations under BEMEHREETHER
a finance lease - (3)
Proceeds from subscription of shares RN FT1E A - 228059
Proceeds from borrowings BEFSHIA 144,163 61,253
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (108,122) (78,544)
Proceeds from exercise of share options ?ﬂiﬁﬁ AR RE P13 ?ﬂlﬁ 46,561 -
Proceeds from open offer NAZEERERIE 222,700 =
Net cash generated from financing activities BlEFEEEL 2R S FH 305,302 104,804
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash BHE&RBREEEY
equivalents B CRd) FEE 162,525 (283,652)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HZHRER
ReEEY 240,969 524,661
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EX#EHH & 6,623 (40)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, A+ —BA=+—HB &R
represented by bank balances and cash REeZEY NRITHER
kR&E 410,117 240,969
Analysis of the balances of RERRESEDER
cash and cash equivalents: DA
Bank balances and cash fETT ER RIS 410,117 240,969
APESRMIZERERAT | — T —tFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the
Company’s registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal place of
business in Hong Kong is Suites 3001-11, Tower Two, Times
Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The Group is principally engaged in investment holding,
industrial property development, general trading of
consumable goods, securities brokerage, insurance
brokerage, asset management and loan financing operation
including loan financing, financial guarantee services, loan
referral and consultancy services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company. In addition, the functional currencies of
certain group entities that operate outside Hong Kong are
determined based on the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group entities operate.

. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“"HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in the current
year the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual

Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the above
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 52. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 52, the application
of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

z@%%i&@@i%é%%
B R ([FAHHRE
A81]) (#)
B JE 5 1B 14 o 2 R 3 5T R S AT B i B
gL g

AREE Y EITFR A NI 2 RMIE = RE
MRV ] R ABIERT BB M 5 S 28 -

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ BN BREEAF ¢BIA

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BRI BREERF15% RERPEONBAR
Customers and the related BBETA
Amendments'

HKFRS 16 Leases? BN BREEAF165 g

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® EHBR R RS 17% REA4p

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement EHB R RAE IR PRHBERG TR
of Share-based Payment BA AERHE
Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial BB TR R R B4 EREAH G| S48
Instruments with HKFRS 4 CHES RBANE-—HERER
Insurance Contracts' HBREENEERTA

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with BB RS LR B0% M BEAREZ RIS
Negative Compensation? K

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEAVEREEASEI0RR  REFLEABLNARAE

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its BAEHER 5285 H) DR AREENERTE

Associate or Joint Venture* CHE

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28
Amendments to HKAS 40
HK (IFRIC) — Int 22
HK (IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRSs

As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Long-term Interest in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted.

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective date to be determined.

FR G ERFBRMET R

BAGHERFRMET R

R G ERRIORMET K

R (BRM RS
REZEE) -RRANR
Bk (ARHBRS

#EZEg) -2BEDBY
BANBREEANEA

fEREBHHRE LR
“E-NEE_F-RF
BEEEREDS
RBENARAELER
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SRLENE

HNERHRERKE
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BANBASEN_T-RFE
"R FEBFRIE

TR ZE-NF-A-BRZERABHNFE
HIRAER AFFRFEM -

2 R-E-NF-A-BIZEFABNFE
HIRAR AFFIRRER -

3R E_—F-A-BAZEFARNFE
HIRAER AFFIRREM -

4 EMBHAREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations mentioned below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirement of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

2. RAFG] RBEFTNRBHM

R EELIE e
28] ()

CHEMERERERNHT REETERRM
BHEER (8)

B T X P 2 5] B M 5 HE E 8 &
B BHREENNEFT A RBEIN AR
REZAHMAEMHI BN B REE
AR BB REENNETRARRER
ARBRB T EHEREMBRREKXEX

ve.
BRI W RAEIF (ST A

BEYBHREERESRIATHEE
TREE —REPEFTRPEREHE
EREREDBRFTENHHRE -

EAREEERE T BHHRE LR FEINR
MERREFHAMLNAT :

s MEBBAYHREERFRELEA
ZeBREBEERLRYBREIHENX
AFERAFEAE - AEME RENAR
WEREHNRERENEHERATHA
AR BREERE REREERNS
NEMRNENRSRENBHRE -
— RN E 1% & 5t HA ) A5 SR 1R 8 A
AFE-RENRERFEESNRE
MEMHESMEENEBRA TR
BREHTE URAHERKRSTRE
ERHEEANREREMLAE/INA
EMREERAENMNENEBT LA
—BRARFEFAEMEE RS FT
BHMERRERBEREGNER
St HIEEREIR A FERE - 1IN
RIEFBMBEHREELESR BEA
EH AR HEEE REM2E S
EHNAEFFHEEENRERERFE

MERES EREBRA-—MRNER
FERR

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

69



70

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, upon
application of HKFRS 9, the expected credit loss model may
result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the
directors of the Company perform a detailed review.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures.
However, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.
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Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("COo").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHUR
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Statement of compliance (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

De-consolidation

Since July 2016, the Group was denied access to the books
and records and operating controls of Shanghai Xinsheng
Pawnshop Limited (“Xinsheng”) and Shanghai Zhongyuan
Pawnshop Limited (“Zhongyuan”). Existing staff and
management of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were laid off and
replaced by staff and personnel assigned by Shanghai Kuailu
Investment Group Company Limited (“Shanghai Kuailu”),
who is one of the registered shareholders of Xinsheng.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 July 2016, 18 August 2016 and 23 February 2017
("Announcements”) in relation to the legal actions taken by
the Group against Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan
to enforce its rights under the variable interest entity
contracts (“VIE Contracts”) through the Shanghai Arbitration
Commission (“SAC").
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(Continued)
De-consolidation (Continued)

Although legal actions had been instituted against Xinsheng,
Shanghai Kuailu and Zhongyuan (see Note 39), the Group is
unable to exercise control over the assets and operations of
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan. The management considered that
control over Xinsheng and Zhongyuan was lost and therefore
was appropriate that these subsidiaries be de-consolidated
from the Group’s financial statements. The management
considered that it appropriate to account for the
deconsolidation as from 1 January 2016 instead of from the
effective date of losing control, which should be at around
July 2016. In spite of the Company receiving Xinsheng and
Zhongyuan'’s management accounts every month up to June
2016, however, the Company was denied access to the
books and records together with supporting documents for
review and was unable to exercise control over the operations
of Xinsheng and Zhongyuan.

Financial impact on de-consolidation of the Xinsheng
and Zhongyuan

The de-consolidation of the Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
resulted in a net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries
of approximately HK$324,478,000 and an impairment
loss on the amounts due from Xinsheng and Zhongyuan
of approximately HK$97,484,000 as the directors were of
the view that the carrying values of the amounts due from
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan were not recoverable.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company, its subsidiaries and
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it still has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Loss of control of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amounts of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the
performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Company's Board of Directors as
its chief operating decision maker.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase gain.
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Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operation policy decisions of the investee
but is not control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Change in net assets of the associate other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligation or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
of the associate and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing the relevant interest in the
associate is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as
would be required if that associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.
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Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-
generating unit in which the Group monitors goodwill).

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is described in “Investments in associates”
above.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below.

Warehouse storage income

Warehouse storage income is recognised when the storage
services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have been passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; and

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Securities brokerage income

Commission and brokerage income from securities and
futures dealings, on a trade-date basis.

Insurance brokerage income

Insurance brokerage income and agency fee received or
receivable is recognised as revenue when the underlying
transaction has been completed.

Handling and settlement fee income

Handling charge and late charge revenues are recognised
when services are provided.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.

Consultancy service income

Consultancy service income is recognised when the service is
provided.

Guarantee fee income

Income from financial guarantee is recognised over the
contract period on a time apportionment basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvement, buildings, warehouse held for provision of
storage services, furniture, fixtures and equipment and motor
vehicles are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual value over
their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimates accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is
classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal
group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets
held for sale”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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(Continued)
Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land for own use (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straightline basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the
Group's interests in associates.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

—tFt+t-_A=+—RLFEE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #HZE—

3. B RNEETHR (#)
HE (#)
J 16 P BT B+ 1 (4B
ERERELTESRNBRT FES

W“ﬁfmﬂfim%\ﬁi B BN
RP2IRANEHER EJI&Eﬁﬁ
EREHAEE EHEFIERER L
HEFHRIMEAEIENBERT BOHA
#— &”@%ﬂéﬁEJIW%%¥%@
B MRy R

HhEE

RiEEEENEEER m%%ﬁ%ﬁl%
uZE% BB EE (SME) #
H) 3 %W&Q%E%WM%E+ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
WE R AINETHER S IE B 191R %
BREREXRSHRE - LIMNEFTEEA
FEIEKNIFEEIER REEAFEER
FBERmEXSHHE M%%?E&T
SERAENFEREETITENRE

EREAMNENERNELHENIERE
R AT BEERRIN: BB BINE
B EI | S M A AT R A (H it
BRBINEBREFR L D) 2ER
BHZEREZR ZTEXEBNINE
KR AER TR EEXHHHE
AEERBERR 2 EEFEEREN D

*EETE/\O



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or
joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHUER (#)

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (Continued)

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHUER (#)

90

(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are mainly classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent consideration that may be
received by an acquirer as part of a business combination.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading (or contingent consideration that may be received
by an acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 55.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)
loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or
(c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period except for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
debt instruments relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method, and changes in
foreign exchange rates, if applicable are recognised in
profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of revaluation reserve. When the investment
is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHUER (#)

924

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loans receivables, trade
and other receivables, deposits, cash held on behalf of
clients, restricted bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

e deterioration in the value of collateral.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit
risk characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading
process that considers collateral type, past due status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to
the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets
by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts
due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not currently exist.
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(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in property prices, payment status, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly
by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Convertible notes

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
notes) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
A conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component from
the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible note, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible notes using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
deferred consideration and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

100

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise,
and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer.
The difference between the carrying amount allocated to
the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

—tFt+t-_A=+—RLFEE

3. BEAE

TR (')

SRITA(8)

AU TERR

RAEBWREERSRENS WENEm
%inﬁé?ﬂiﬁ‘“ﬁﬁﬁ@akkéém
BRENBARE D BB LE®RT = —Eigk
$%ﬁ§%§¢ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ’éﬁ§ fid 75 5
WEEBTEREHEGENERNED AR
EEBUEAEEH o BEEE AEEK
BERPBBE2ENIEEHEERBARILE

REBAEE - HAKBERECEZCRE
EREENEBAIDERKE®R NEE

MHERRSREE" IEJEEH&ZHXE’WM%?K
RHERA-HECDERER-

MR ERBRBEREER ZEERE
B 5 B U R BB S Hfh 2 55 7
RN DB R RABRMN 2 ZERN
B AR -

Bﬁji\ﬁg\%ﬁﬁﬁwum\’ Zﬂﬂ:ﬁgumilﬁﬁﬁg
- AEBESeREENBERAELER
U}Z% E&n/um_ﬂ &Iﬁﬁgwum*ﬁ ZFEﬁ’
RRMENEZANNEH A TEELED
Ac o B3 HE R B o0 2 0 e A B T M B L 2
TEEABIEHBREREERNEME
[ W ﬁEuu%"EEE’JEﬂ%;‘M& Rk B HE
WAMBRZER DREBEZANER 2R
H A 2 E W s R A R B 18 )%

BRI &Tﬁﬁﬁwu S 0L EEa NS
BEEMERIEL D

AEBRBEEREEELZER  BUBSE mk

TEREReRBE FRIEERANS

V‘ﬂfﬁlﬁﬁ”}EEETEE@EN&EEHREZ%%E
Tg mﬁﬁn/u



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a guarantee, the contracted fee
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within liabilities from guarantees. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The guarantee issued and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is initially recognised at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy on “Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets” if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in deferred income in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

Trust accounts

Trust accounts maintained by the Group to hold clients’
monies are treated as off-statement of financial position
items and offset against payable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

102

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax, as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEANEETHUER (#)

(Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and other
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date and is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revised its
estimates of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share option reserve be
transferred to retained profits.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value
cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty
renders the service. The fair values of the goods or services
received are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets).

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(Continued)
Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(viii a person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personal services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value
of money is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, of the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, where
necessary, when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

108

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification for warehouse for provision of storage services

The Group determines whether the warehouse in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") should be classified
as property, plant and equipment or an investment property.
The warehouse is used to generate warehouse storage
income that comprises warehouse rentals and income
from the supply of warehouse logistics services. In making
its judgement, the directors of the Company considered
that income and cash flows from warehouse rentals and
warehouse logistics services are interdependent and cannot
be separated. In addition, the directors of the Company
determined that the provision of warehouse logistics services
is significant to the warehouse storage operation as a whole.
For these reasons, the directors of the Company considered
that the warehouse is classified as property, plant and
equipment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates and amortises the property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible assets
with finite useful life over their estimated useful life and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight line method. The estimated useful life reflects the
directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group's
property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease payments and
intangible assets with finite useful life. The residual values
reflect the directors’ estimated amount that the Group would
currently obtain from disposal of the assets, after deducting
the estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already of
the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful
life.

Impairment loss on interests in associates

The directors of the Company regularly review the
recoverable amount of the associates (including its goodwill).
Determining whether impairment is required involves the
estimation of the value in use less costs of disposal of the
associates to which exceed the carrying amount of the
associates. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2017 and 2016, the carrying amount of associates net of
accumulated impairment loss of HK$267,410,000, amounted
to Nil.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EE =T HE M IhET TNEHBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments

Property, plant and equipment mainly represented the
Group’s warehouse property. Property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the fair value of the
property, plant and equipment less costs to sell or the value-
in-use calculations. An impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

The recoverable amount of warehouse has been determined
based on a valuation carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, using
the depreciated replacement cost approach. Besides, the
directors of the Company also determined the recoverable
amount of warehouse with the estimation of future
expected cash flows from the warehouse and a suitable
discount rate. The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is HK$111,448,000 (2016: HK$113,916,000). The
carrying amount of warehouse is HK$102,527,000 (2016:
HK$102,883,000).

Prepaid lease payments are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the fair
value of the prepaid lease payments less costs to sell or the
future expected cash flows. An impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable amount is
less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments (Continued)

The recoverable amount of prepaid lease payments have
been determined based on a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group, using comparable market price of similar
prepaid lease payments on an open market value with the
assumptions that the prepaid lease payments are sold in the
market in its existing state. The carrying amount of prepaid
lease payments is HK$25,040,000 (2016: HK$23,994,000).

The Group performed impairment assessment of the Group's
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
impairment loss has been recognised for property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment history
and the customers’ current credit-worthiness, as determined
by review of their current credit information. The Group
continuously monitors collections and payments from its
customers and maintains a provision for estimated credit
losses based upon its historical experience. Credit losses
have historically been within the Group's expectations and
the Group will continue to monitor the collections from
customers and maintain an appropriate level of estimated
credit losses.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$11,489,000 (2016:
HK$14,624,000), net of accumulated impairment loss on
trade receivables of approximately HK$405,000 (2016:
HK$377,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEE T HE MHET TR

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables,
and prepayments and deposits

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for other
receivables, and prepayments and deposits by assessing
the recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Allowances are applied to other receivables,
and prepayments and deposits where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of other receivables, and prepayments and deposits
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment
allowances at the end of the each reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of other
receivables is approximately HK$23,388,000 (2016:
HK$16,755,000), net of accumulated impairment loss on
other receivables of approximately HK$4,099,000 (2016:
HK$1,049,000).

As at 31 December 2017, carrying amount of prepayment
and deposits is approximately HK$50,213,000 (2016:
HK$6,898,000). No impairment loss has been recognised for
prepayment and deposits in both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment allowances on loans and interests receivables

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
periodically. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the profit or loss, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before
the decrease can be identified in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in
a group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in
the Group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of loans and
interests receivables is approximately HK$189,891,000 (2016:
HK$37,061,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$62,420,000 (2016: HK$62,420,000).

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
When the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$151,122,000 (2016:
HK$123,612,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$14,650,000 (2016: HKS$NIil).

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

4. BE ST HE M AEET T AR

A= F ERRE (5)

EE T HRBARZENEZRR (F)
JEWE X R 8 R EFE

AEEE Rimat HEFRA S AT ERIE -
REETREBMEBEEBRABRDE X
SEANESFEEMAAIBRRBBERK
BEX-EXEA2AEARRRERELR
A 5T 8 2B D 1F h HIET AR %A 2
R 1t 38 1% 7 BE B FE BN AR B A 2 1B R
AZ SR B IR AR ) (ana ki
REF)RBAEE cEERRAB AN
WRERRAZ IBRBIE - EEENER
HAKRReRER MHARBRRAS ZE
SEREBFBMAEEBEBEOCEELZ
BEBELR A A ARAKRERE
Z M E AT A2 ANRKR S E B
A AR R RERBEMERZ
EHER-

RZE—+F+-_A=+—H8 EKEX
K F B R BREE 4 4189,891,000% 7T (=
T — N4 :37,061,000/ T) (MK Rt
R (B B51862,420,0008 70 (ZE— /KN FE:
62,420,000/ 7T) ) °

BEZREER

ETHEEoREAGBTE I EREZ
ReELXBENZ2FEREBE -FEFRE
BEERAEEHEHAERSCELEENE
FrvBERERERFTERBZAEN
REER B - WERBRBRRERER
RIEE Bl RESI BERNBEREE R
—E—t+F+ZA=1+—"H BEZE
H1E A151,122,0008 0 (ZF — XN F:
123,612,000 7t) (M R REEIE
14,650,000/ 70 (ZZ— X F TFL) ) °

113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair values of identifiable intangible assets arising from the
business combination

The acquired identifiable assets and liabilities had to be
measured at their respective fair values as at the date of
acquisition. The difference between the cost of acquisition
and the fair value of the Group's share of net assets so
acquired should be recognised as goodwill at the end of the
reporting period or recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. In the
absence of an active market for the business combination/
acquisition transactions undertaken by the Group, in order
to determine the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, the directors of the Company had made their
estimates according to the valuation results produced by an
independent professional valuer.

Fair value of contingent consideration receivables

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables of
acquisition was determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions, including the discount rates,
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
subsidiaries and the probability of meeting each profit target.
It is subsequently re-measured to fair value at the end of
each reporting periods. Changes in assumption used could
materially affect the fair value of the balances and as a
result affect the Group's financial condition and results of
operation.

The carrying amount of contingent consideration receivables
as at 31 December 2017 was HK$9,879,000 (2016:
HK$15,102,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement of other financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the discounted cash flow model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit
risk and volatility.

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for intangible assets. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating
unit to which it belongs is estimated to determine impairment
losses on the assets. Changes in facts and circumstances may
result in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication
of impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable
amount, which would affect profit or loss in future years. The
recoverable amounts are reviewed by the management at
least at the end of each reporting period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31 December
2017 was HK$10,906,000 (2016: HK$11,274,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When
the fair value declines, management makes assumptions
about the decline in value to determine whether there is an
impairment that should be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. EE =T HE M IhET TNEHBA

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Group recognises share-based payments expense on
options granted. Share-based payments expense is based
on the estimated fair value of each option at its grant date,
the estimation of which requires the directors to make
assumptions about future volatility of the Group’s stock price,
future interest rates and the timing with respect to exercise
of the options. The effects of a change in one or more of
these variables could result in a materially different fair value.

Provision of guarantee losses

The Group makes reasonable estimate on expense required
to fulfil the relevant obligation of guarantee contracts when
the Group computes the provisions of guarantee losses. Such
estimation is made based on the available information as at
the end of each reporting period and is determined by the
Group's practical experience, default history of the business,
taking into consideration of industry information and market
data. It is possible that the practical experience and default
history is not indicative of future loss on the guarantees
issued. Any increase or decrease in the provision would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes in various jurisdictions. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE_-_T—+tF+-_A=1+—HBILtFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BE @A L HET T RAEA
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION HEREERRE (@)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

R THABREAZENEERR (8)
EEFE

ARAREFHHEMNBRE 2R EBEEKA
BERARDEGE - AXRREERR T EN
BRARATKARERAIRARREIKE
g Rt FAKE W E L B
DA 7 K R ZR AR TR B B R BE 1 28
AHRRRIMEE T IA -

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred taxes

The directors of the Company exercise full control over the
dividend policy of subsidiaries in the PRC. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, it is not probable that
dividends would be declared by the PRC Subsidiaries in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group did not provide
additional deferred tax in 2017 related to the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries that are subject to
withholding taxes once distributed.

5. REVENUE 5. A
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REERFANRASHIOT
2017 2016
—E2-tF ZZT—XF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHEIT
Sales of goods HEE m 64,182 36,448
Warehouse storage income B EF B A 6,518 8,904
Income from loan financing business EXBEEB WA
— Financial consultancy services fee —SRB ARG E 37,900 8,359
— Interest income from loans receivables —RRERZFMEBA 2,811 14,519
- Guarantee fee income from financial —BMEERZERBKRA
guarantees 410 -
Income from securities brokerage business & &4 42 5 2 WA
— Interest income from margin financing —REZBEZFBWA 560 362
— Commission income from securities —BHERHZMEWA
dealing 2,273 1,686
— Commission income from underwriting —BiEZAmEBA 603 308
Commission income from insurance R4 2 A WA
brokerage 14,072 4,581
Commission income from asset management & & & 12 2 & Ut A 1,323 8
130,652 75,175

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group's operations are organised into securities
brokerage, asset management, insurance brokerage, loan
financing, industrial property development business and
general trading. Information reported to the chief operating
decision maker ("CODM") for the purpose of resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance is
prepared on such basis. The Group is organised into the
following reportable and operating segments:

— Industrial property development segment represents the
operation of warehouse in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

— General trading segment includes trading of consumable
goods in the PRC.

— Loan financing segment represents the provision of
financial guarantee, loan financing, loan referral and
consultancy services in Hong Kong and the PRC.

— Securities brokerage segment represents the operation of
securities brokerage, margin financing, underwriting and
placements in Hong Kong.

— Asset management segment engages in the provision of
asset management services in Hong Kong.

— Insurance brokerage segment represents the provision
of the insurance brokerage and agency services in Hong
Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. DEFE R (&)
Ot T

AT BAEERA2Hm5D B0 E 58 HRA K&
EREDHT -

BE-_Z—+tHF+-A=+—HLFE

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Total
I%A
NEER -HRE% EXRE BHEL EEEE RBREE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THER THER THET TR TR THER
SEGMENT REVENUE 2HUA 6,518 64,182 121 3,436 1,323 14,072 130,652
SEGMENT RESULTS PHER (11,905) 1,605 27,755 (545) (704) 6) 16,200
Unallocated corporate ~ KRABEEHA
income 1,854
Unallocated corporate KB A¥MY
expenses (48,070)
Unallocated finance costs K2 B & H MK A (6,497)
Compensation received ~ CRHESLE 20,297
De-recognition of deferred BUEBRELRE
consideration 67,901
Fair value change on EhSARELZ
contingent consideration A FEEEH
receivables (10,988)
Fair value change on BREREATE
financial assets NENEREE
at fair value through ZAVELE
profit or loss 2,409
Net gain on disposal of ~ HEMBAR 2 FRE
subsidiaries 945
Share-based payment DRH X ARERX
expenses (989)
Impairment loss on BEZREFR
goodwill (14,650)
Impairment loss on HftERFEZ
other receivables HEER (2.402)
Impairment loss on amount W& A AIFEZ
due from associates HEER (11)
Profit before tax BB AR 25,999
Income tax credit fEREs s
Profit for the year KEERH 26,042
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 B E=T—+tF+-A=+—HItFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEPE R (@)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DWBRAREE ()
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE-_ZT—R"F+_A=+T—HIFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing  brokerage management  brokerage Total
I%R
MERR —-KRES EXRE BHEL BEER Risgs @ar

120

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR TR FER TR FET  FER

SEGMENT REVENUE AEEA 8,904 36,448 22,878 2,356 8 4,581 75175

SEGMENT RESULTS DEBEE (7,637) 1,035 (43,568) (1,217) 1 111 (51,275)

Unallocated corporate KA BERZ WA

income 292
Unallocated corporate AP B ER S

expenses (57,436)
Unallocated finance costs & 7 B2 Bf # Ak A (7,679)

Fair value change on JE Ik R B H
contingent consideration A F{EZE)

receivable (20,475)
Net loss on HXE%?E\J\EEWE?

de-consolidation of REZBBREFE

subsidiaries (324,478)
Impairment loss on N A=UNGIL

interests in associates  Z BB (267,410)
Share of loss of associates JE{h B & A R]E 1B (98,410)
Share-based payment AR S S R IB

expenses 53 (42,760)
Impairment loss on FE%ZHX/#EE\

amounts due from oINS IEZ

de-consolidated REFE

subsidiaries (97,484)
Loss before tax BREAIER (967,115)
Income tax expense P HAX (3,435)
Loss for the year AEEBAE (970,550)
All of the segment revenue reported above is from external EXFERNMED HWAL KB INRE
customers. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6. DEFEF (#)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEHEAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and NTRAKEEERBERAZHD 2
liabilities by reportable segments. D E) DT
At 31 December 2017 R-B-tH+=-A=+—H
Industrial
property Securities Asset Insurance
development General trading  Loan financing brokerage  management brokerage Total
I#A
NERR -RE% ERRE BHLR BEER RREE @it
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiER TR T TET TET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PREE 175,091 25,591 537,678 19,136 5,578 5,784 768,858
Unallocated bank balances and cash FABBTESRRRS 78,012
Unallocated property, plant and equipment £ 3 E#%  BERRE 7,686
Unallocated other receivables, FARAMEURE BARER
prepayments and deposits ke 6,697
Unallocated goodwill AEEE 151,122
Unallocated available-for-sale *ﬁﬁﬂ-ﬁ HESREE
financial assets 20,579
Unallocated financial assets at fair value kA BEBBERE A FEIIRMN
through profit o loss SREE 2,40
Unallocated contingent consideration &2 BEEMAANRE
receivables 9,879
Consolidated total assets GREELE 1,065,243
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities AHEE 100,812 - 163,972 3915 15 426 269,140
Unallocated other payables FARAMERRE 4327
Unallocated convertible notes FABIRREE 5,654
Unallocated deferred consideration FABEENRE 71,293
Consolidated total liabilities GABEAE 350,414
At 31 December 2016 MRZE-—AFETZHA=1T—8H
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Total
T%A
NELR —%B% BERRE FHEL BEER RBMEL &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEL FhEL FET FiEx T T TAL
ASSETS &
Segment assets /\"F BE 165,975 23,731 143,297 33,057 236 3,290 369,586
Unallocated bank balances and cash RARBITERRT S 151,805
Unallocated property, plant and equipment FAENE BEREE 10,414
Unallocated other receivables, prepaymentsand K2 EZE th IR  BAFUAR
deposits &e 5171
Unallocated goodwill KoERE 123,612
Unallocated available-for-sale financial assets FARTHLESREE 30,656
Unallocated contingent consideration receivable &7 ELIER S AR B 15,102
Consolidated total assets GEEERE 706,346
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities PHEE 100,792 66 38,065 17,295 = 1,032 157,250
Unallocated other payables RAREMEMNTE 1,145
Unallocated convertible notes FORTARES 5,070
Unallocated deferred consideration FOREERE 120,878
Consolidated total liabilities RRERES 284,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6.

122

Other information

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. DEPEFL

HE-_Z-—tHF+-A=+—HLEE

)

Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage ~ management brokerage Unallocated Total
I%R
NERR -RE% EXRE FHEL BEER REEL AR by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TER TET TET TET TET
Information included in segment AR HER /2
results/segment assets: EENER:
Amortisation and depreciation BHRTE 8510 - 1,356 16 7 bi} 2,764 12,676
Finance costs BB 6,247 - 3,507 - - - 6,496 16,340
Loss on disposal and written off HERMBENE BER
of property, plant and equipment  RENEE - - 5 - - - - 5
Impairment loss on trade and EUEHRR At EREN
other receivables HEEE - - 569 - - - 2,402 2,971
Interest income FSHA (548) (62) (8,365) (122) = (1) (1,056) (10,154)
Impairment loss on amount due EHBEATRED
from associates AERSR - - - - - - 1 1
Fair value change on contingent ~ EUWSARENATELED
consideration receivables - - - - - - 10,988 10,988
Fair value change on financial assets %2 FEFABHH
at fair value through profitorloss ~ &MEEZATESH - - - - = = (2,409) (2,409)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BHE_Z—RXF+_A=+—HIFE
Industrial
property General Loan Securities Asset Insurance
development trading financing brokerage management brokerage Unallocated Total
1%A
NEER —%E85 EHpE FHEE BEER RIpEE AR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL ThEL FEL FET T TAL TAL FAL
Information included in segment AR BEE/ HHEEHN
results/ segment assets: EH:
Amortisation and depreciation BERTE 8,671 - 45 23 = 23 2,776 11,538
Finance costs BBMA 7,521 - - - - - 7,679 15,200
Loss on disposal and written off HERMEME -
of property, plant and equipment  BERZXENEER 1 - - - - - 78 79
Impairment loss on trade and other  FEMER 3 R 2Lt e LR IB )
receivables HEER - - 377 - - - 921 1,298
Impairment loss on loans and ERERRNSRREFE
interests receivables - - 62,420 - - - - 62,420
Interest income FISWA (1,162) 3) (68) (89) - - (103) (1,425)
Reversal of impairment loss on other & B E it B BB ERE
receivable - - (469) - - - - (469)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEDE KL ()
Geographical information i & & R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the REERBERPHALEER-
PRC.
The Group's revenue from external customers based on the NTRARERBEEERBINRE
locations of operations and information about its non-current WRARZEEMEMREIDHIERBE
assets other than deferred tax assets by geographical location ECEEMBEEERIIN 2ER:

of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIREFHBA FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF NS =2-+tF b ANES
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET THET THET
Hong Kong BB 21,642 21,464 222,705 164,368
PRC a2 109,010 53,711 136,187 167,873
130,652 75, 1575 358,892 332,241
Information about major customers FBREXEEFHNESR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REBFERBEARAEBRBZKAI0% A
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are FOERZWAT
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Customer A BERA N/A T & 9,939
Customer B2 ® B 46,915 N/ATEFA4
Customer C2 -y e 17,295 N/ATE A4
Customer D3 ®PD? 13,918 N/AT i@ MA*
' Revenue from loan financing. T RBEBEZRERUA -
2 Revenue from general trading. 2 kE—REFHUEA
3 Revenue from financial consultancy service. 3 RESRERRIEHU A o
4 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of 4 MR A AL AN E 48 Uk A10% LA
total revenue of the Group. T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. AW - Y KB R
2017 2016
—E—-tF ZT—XF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Compensation received (Note a) BwEESRE (Mita) 20,297 -
De-recognition of deferred consideration BUBRERIEERE (#iEb)
(Note b) 67,901 -
Fair value change on contingent RS AREBZ AT EZH
consideration receivables (10,988) (20,475)
Fair value change on financial assets at FBRBERIEATEIERED
fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZ RN FEE 2,409 -
Gain on disposal of assets classified as HEIARFIELHENEEL
held for sale Wz - 1,952
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 FkaE 945 -
Handling fee income FEBWA 267 443
Impairment loss on loans and B ERRAMNE 2 RHEEE
interests receivables - (62,420)
Impairment loss on trade and JRE M50 B TR e LAt R W TR TR 2
other receivables BIEEE (2,971) (1,298)
Impairment loss on amounts due JE Y B 8 A R RUIE 2 R E S 1B
from associates (11) 21
Impairment loss on amounts due FEWEHUE AR & ABRKME AR
from de-consolidated subsidiaries A REEE - (97,484)
Interest income PSRN 10,154 1,425
Loss on disposal and written off of property, & R#MisEWE  BE K
plant and equipment R EE (5) (79)
Net foreign exchange gain P 5 2= F 58 582 131
Reversal of impairment loss on 1 [o] H fth & WWURIE 2
other receivables VERIEN = - 469
Share-based payment expenses AR X T EIER X (989) (42,760)
Sundry income 1B A 1,512 1,148
89,103 (218,969)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

7. HMW A s KEE (®)

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Compensation received represented the compensation received
from the vendor in respect of the acquisition of 45% of
issued capital of Intraday Financial Information Service Limited
("Intraday”) according to the terms of Sales and Purchase
Agreement dated 15 April 2015 as Intraday was not able to
achieve the Performance Target as specified in the Sales and
Purchase Agreement.

According to the audited consolidated financial statements of
Oriental Credit Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Oriental
Credit Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 issued
on 20 March 2017, the Oriental Credit Group made a loss for
the financial year ended 31 December 2016. Based on the
terms of the sales and purchase agreement for the acquisition,
the deferred consideration ceased to become payable and,
accordingly, the Group derecognised the deferred consideration
at the carrying amount of HK$67,901,000 and it was
recognised as other income in the profit or loss for the year.

8. FINANCE COSTS

ERBESEEREAA/-F
—HEFMA+TABZEEHHEZK
K RBBEBERERESREERA
A([EXTR])245% B ETRA
MEEXRECRAEEINEEH AN
RELEXBERERERELZAHESR
o

BER-_FT—+tFE=A_+H8TI%
ZRAEGEERER AR R ENB
ARA([EFEEEBHE_Z
=N+ — HIEREd Pyl = 7 42
BEREAMBRER RHEEEER
HE=F—~F T 2H =481
HRFEEHREEE RESHEWKE
BEEW@R KR BEABIMNELER
B At AEBEEEEEREDEAE
£67,901,0008 T2 EERERELD
RFERBRFERBEMBA -

8. BATFEK AR

2017 2016

=E2—tF —T—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Effective interest on convertible notes AMBRERERNE 584 3,928
Imputed interest on deferred consideration EEREBAEEF & 5,912 3,740
Interest on a margin securities account RECEFEPHOFE - 1
Interest on bank loans RITERHE 6,247 7,521
Interest on other loans HiERFE 3,597 -
16,340 15,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE 9. FTEHM (HE)AX

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax: E HARRIE -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax REFERTEN 3,732 4,515
Over provision in prior years: BT FEBREEE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax H B 1 SE AT 1S A (3,775) =
Deferred tax: IEERIE -
Current year EAFE - (1,080)
(43) 3,435

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016. No provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made as its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
have no estimated assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“"EIT") is calculated at the
applicable rates based on estimated taxable income earned
by the PRC subsidiaries of the Company with certain tax
concession, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practice in respect thereof.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprises Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the applicable PRC EIT rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
(loss) profit before tax in the consolidated statement of profit

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued)

mE B RRME

—E—HFF+RA=FT—HIFE

9. FTEH (W) A (&)

AREERBHAX AT EEAS
M Weak R AR BR A AT (& 18) i A Bk a0

BakHEMmz

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™~
2017 2016
=B—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Profit (loss) before taxation bR AT R A (E1E) 25,999 (967,115)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% & A AT 551 F2 K25%
(2016: 25%) (ZE—RF:25%)5tEW
T 18 6,500 (241,779)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates EEEE N RBENT B E - 24,602
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR B A R B &
for tax purpose 9,282 174,494
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAGH WA IFE
tax purpose (15,836) (2,591)
Over provision in prior years BEFEBERE (3,775) o
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AERTREZENTBTE
differences (13) T
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREETEEE 2HIEA
as deferred tax asset EREOMGTE 9,641 34,855
Tax effect of tax exemption granted REMBERENRGETE (3,119) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously BABEARERNNIEEIR
not recognised (1,830) (1471)
Deferred tax liabilities arising on A BB & A B R 2 RO T E A
undistributed profits of associates MR IBA &
in the PRC - (1,080)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ R E{th 5l AR &K
operating in other jurisdictions BRI TREMENTE (893) 15,075
Income tax (credit) expenses for the year FAREH (KR)FAxX (43) 3,435
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

10.PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

Profit (loss) for the year has been arrived at after charging the

following items:

10.F Wm A (B 18)

FraA (B1R) 2R T5IEAE :

2017 2016
=F—tF —T—RF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
TET FHEIT
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR A 18 & R TE A B 5E 729 741
Amortisation of intangible assets (included £ & E#H (FT ATTE KL
in administrative and other operating HihEERY)
expenses) 1,132 27
Auditor’s remuneration % ERED B
— audit services —ZE R 1,000 1,000
— other services — H {th AR %5 1,130 1,050
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses REAZNFEKA 62,939 35,621
Depreciation of property, ME - -HEREEOFTE
plant and equipment 10,815 10,770
Legal and professional fees EERBEEEA 4,631 Jilk773
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments B THA (BFEESHE) 32,951 23,446

11.0% &

e in L BN S
SRR IR L. B R B R A TR R
RS (ZF—<F : &) o

11.DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during 2017, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2016:
HK$Nil).

128 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS NEEZNmNER (HEQA
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION & (5 622&)%3831'7& /NG
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES (KBEEEMNmER) BB (%’
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES 622G a)&%.i E EmHARRE
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT M2 5% )
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERITHAZME
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, R H5E A _E R B R 2 AR 3 BE &Y
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and EERTHAKFAMESAT
Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tF+-A=+—HLFE
Salaries, Contribution
allowance to retirement
and other Discretionary benefits Total
Fees benefits bonus schemes emoluments
H¢ EZRR BIREF

we  HHER 0 BERL GHEER HelE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Executive directors HTEE
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chief Executive AR F L (1THEE) (Notea) (fiFEa) = 3,600 175 18 3,793
Mr. ZHANG Peidong SRR A (Note b) (Fi&b) - 720 - 18 738
- 4,320 175 36 4,531
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Mr. JIN Bingrong SMELE (Note ¢) (MizEc) 18 - - - 18
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor HERRE 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie REARET 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE (Note d) (FizEd) 360 - - - 360
Dr. LYU Ziang BTEEL (Note e) (fffste) 360 - - - 360
1,558 - - - 1,558
Total emoluments AL 1,558 4,320 175 36 6,089
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES

ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT

BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.

622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

NEEZMmMER (BEAT

&0 (F622F ) 5383/
(BFEEEFmER) R
622G E ) BB LT AA
ML EE) (&)

() EBRTRARME (B)

BE—T—AFT-A=+—HLFE

Contribution
Salaries, to retirement
allowance and  Discretionary benefits Total
Fees other benefits bonus schemes  emoluments
e 2RR RIKER
ik Hi &7 WA HEGE MegsE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET TEx TEx TEx
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. LIU Kequan, Chief Executive AR &L (FTHEH) (Notea) (MizEa) = 1,560 = 9 1,569
Mr. ZHANG Peidong FMR LA (Note b) (Ffi&Db) Ly 357 = 9 366
Ms. CHAN Siu Mun BkEUNME (Note )  (FI3ES) - 900 450 9 1,359
Mr. SHAO Yonghua Bk ELAE (Note g) (FizEg) = 559 = = 559
Mr. CHEN Ningdi REdmLE (Note h) (Fi&Eh) = 1,700 = 9 1,709
- 5,076 450 36 5,562
Non-executive directors koiTES
Mr. Joseph Shie Jay LANG EPHEZR LA (Notei) (P7Ei) 95 - - - 95
Ms. MA Xiaoling ERIS/MA (Note)) (ff3E]) 112 - - - 112
Mr. YIN Xiaoguang FERELE (Note k) (FisEk) 270 - - - 270
Mr. Liu Kequan AnRnk (Note a) (fff3¥a) 60 - - - 60
537 - - - 537
Independent non-executive directors BYFHTES
Mr. JIN Bingrong SMELE 360 - - - 360
Mr. KWAN Kei Chor HERRE 360 - - - 360
Dr. RUI Mingjie RAREL 360 - - - 360
Mr. ZHOU Liangyu BARFEE (Note d) (FiEEd) 181 - - - 181
Dr. LYU Ziang BfREL (Notee) (fffite) 177 - - - 177
1,438 - - - 1,438
Total emoluments MessE 1,975 5,076 450 36 7,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #HZE_—_ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFEE

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Mr. LIU Kequan was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company with effect on 1 June 2016 and re-
designated as an executive director and appointed as the
chief executive officer and chairman from an non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 30 June 2016.

Mr. ZHANG Peidong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director with effect on 30 June 2016 and re-
designated as an executive director from an independent
non-executive director with effect on 5 July 2016.

Mr. JIN Bingrong retired as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 28 April 2017.

Mr. ZHOU Liangyu was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect on 30 June
2016.

Dr. LYU Ziang was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect on 5 July
2016.

Ms. CHAN Siu Mun resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect on 30 June 2016.

Mr. SHAO Yonghua resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect on 18 March 2016.

Mr. CHEN Ningdi resigned as an executive director and
cheif executive officer of the Company on 30 June 2016.

NEZ=F =

APESBRERERAT | —F

Tt (BB AT
&l (5 62251)5%383%x NG
(BFEEENZER) RO (F
mmEJ&E/LmﬁJﬁE
MIFEE) (8)

() EBERTRARME (B)

GRE

(@) BRRELEXER_FT—RFA—HBE
R ERARRBEATEERR_F—RX
FRA=ZTBERHAARARFRTESAME
RATESREZERTRERREE -

(b) AREER_F-—A"ENA=THEE
ZERBUFATEFTEIN_T—RFL
ATRERBYFATESTHERNITE
=o

0 EREXER_T—LEFMA=-+/\HR
ERRBBILIENITES -

d ARFAER-_ZT-—RENA=THEHE
RERARRRBIIIFNITES -

) BFHEELIR _FT—A"FLAREEEE
ERANRBBUIEMITES

() BKEMER=B—<EXA=TARE
KRARBITES -

(Q) BRKELAENR-T—
AATHMITESE-
(h) BEBEER-B—AF XA+ ARE

RABRITESE RITHEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS NEEZMmMER (BEAT

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION

383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

(i) Mr. Joseph Shie Jay LANG resigned as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 5 April 2016.

() Ms. MA Xiaoling retired as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect on 22 April 2016.

(k) Mr. YIN Xiaoguang was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect on 1 June 2016 and
resigned with effect on 1 January 2017.

No director waived any emoluments in the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016. No incentive payment for
joining the Group was paid or payable to any directors
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services as directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries during the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

NEZ=F =

12.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION
383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

(0

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

(e)

(f)

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporates and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2016: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

13.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES BLAEZR=HEE

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FAAEEREGERHEEEFRE —% (=
included one director (2016: two directors), details of whose T—RF WMB)REF EMeFBEIERN
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the EXHFRZ - 2 THA(ZE—RF: =
remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2016: three) ZIWHARRRNEE RITHARN &= F
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief BERFANMEFBTET

executive of the Company are as follows:

2017 2016

—g—t& —T-A%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R RHMER 5,898 5,701
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme R K +& F &t 2] 4 5% 63 49
Share-based payment expenses ARR ) 2 A ;IR 2 - 7,347
5,961 13,097

ATHITEADAEEORSHES A
BEBESHHHBE:

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

2017 2016
“E2—tF _—E—RF
No. of No. of
employees employees
EEAH BE A

HK$ nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

T 7T & 1,000,000 7T -
1,000,001/& 7T & 1,500,0007% 7T 2
1,500,0017%& 7C £2,000,0007% 7T 1
2,000,001/ 7T £2,500,0005% 7T 1
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T -
3,000,0017% 7T £3,500,000/%8 7T -
3,500,0017% 7T £4,000,0007% 7T -
4,000,0017% 7t £4,500,000/%8 7T -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE
14.5R&EHN (FEE)

ARFRE AN SREAR RHERF (5
18) 512 T AR &

14.EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Earnings (loss) B (&8)
Farnings (loss) for the year attributable to ~ B EREARRAF| (EE) M= &
owners of the Company for the purpose KARHEBAEBEERN
of basic earnings (loss) per share 2R (EE) 26,020 (970,550)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ##EEERBR 2T E
Interest on convertible notes (net of tax) AR EEANE (RTIE) - 3
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of HEREERN (BE)MSH
diluted earnings (loss) per share A (Ea) 26,020 (970,550)
2017 2016
=EF—tF _—T—RF
‘000 ‘000
TR F A&
(Restated)
(F&&E35))
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of ordinary HERERRBF (EBE)MS 8
shares for the purpose of basic TR NE T HEE
earnings (loss) per share 6,097,717 4,269,411
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: ##8EE L BR 2 2
— Share options — R 24,324 S
— Convertible notes — AR EE - -
Weighted average number of ordinary HERESAET (BE)MS 8
shares for the purpose of diluted TR METEEA
earnings (loss) per share 6,122,041 4,269,411
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14.EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 14.FREF (EE) @

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share has been adjusted for
open offer that took place on 21 June 2017. Comparative
figures for the weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been adjusted
retrospectively.

The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per share is based
on the profit (loss) attributable to owners of the Company,
and the weighted average number of shares approximately
6,097,717,000 ordinary shares (2016: 4,269,411,000
(restated)) in issue.

The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares on
exercise of share options for the year ended 31 December
2017 and adjustment was made in calculating diluted
earnings per share. No adjustment was made in calculating
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 as conversion of convertible notes would result in an
increase in earnings per share.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2016
did not assume the exercise of the share options during the
year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. No
adjustment was made in calculating diluted loss per share
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as conversion of
convertible notes would result in a decrease in loss per share.
Accordingly, the diluted loss per share is same as the basic
loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

ALl N A
15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9% W5 k&
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor
improvement Warehouse equipment vehicles Total
B -HER
HEMERE BE BL] _E B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FHT FHT FHT
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—HF—H 11,623 160,949 2,694 2,962 178,228
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 ¥ Kt /& 2 7B U i 472 - 1,708 332 2,512
Additions NE 320 - 234 - 554
Disposal HE - - (16) = (16)
Derecognised on deconsolidation of ~ BUE4R & ABEHT B A &6
subsidiaries R HER (1,644) - (607) (361) (2,612)
Written off sy - - (99) = (99)
Exchange realignment b 5 5% = (10,382) (29) 61) (10,472)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZT—RF
1 January 2017 g Hi= e
g ehE = | 10,771 150,567 3,885 2,872 168,095
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 i} /& 2 7B Ug i - - 820 471 1,291
Additions NE - - 120 - 120
Derecognised on disposal of B A AR AR IE TR
subsidiaries - - (208) - (208)
Written off k| (472) = (670) — (1,142)
Exchange realignment BE B - 11,326 77 96 11,499
At 31 December 2017 R-B—t&
+=ZB=+—H 10,299 161,893 4,024 3,439 179,655
Depreciation and impairment FERRE
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—A—H 1,557 42,925 1,309 552 46,343
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 ¥ K} /& /2 7B Uk B 472 - 1,438 210 2,120
Provided for the year REF B 2,032 7,903 403 432 10,770
Eliminated on disposal £ IR Bl 8 = = (30) = (30)
Eliminated on deconsolidation HUBSR & ABRMB AR
of subsidiaries 56 (1,285) = (409) (101) (1,795)
Written off gz - - (33) = (33)
Exchange realignment i A= s (3,144) 3 (55) (3,196)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—REF
1 January 2017 +ZRA=+—8k
—E—t¥—H—H 2,776 47,684 2,681 1,038 54,179
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 45 ¥ K /& /2 7B U i - - 431 42 473
Provided for the year RNEERE 2,060 7,775 454 526 10,815
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries & i} B 7 &) 8% #f 85 - - (162) = (162)
Written off s (472) - (665) - (1,137)
Exchange realignment BE KB - 3,907 56 76 4,039
At 31 December 2017 R=ZB—t&F
+=ZB=+-—H 4,364 59,366 2,795 1,682 68,207
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+HF
+=ZB=+—H 5,935 102,527 1,229 1,757 111,448
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REF
+-A=+—H 7,995 102,883 1,204 1,834 113,916
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—t+tF+-_A=+—HILEFE
15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) ~ 15.1 2 * i 55 N 5% 46 (#)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are itz -BERZEEBEEEA TIFE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per REREAEFERE:
annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of remaining MEWMHERE RENFSRFHAR
unexpired terms of the leases 20% (LAREE R2%E)
and 20%
Warehouse 5% BE 5%
Furniture, fixtures and ~ 10%-33% B -EER 10%-33%
equipment B
Motor vehicles 20%-33% ST 20%-33%
The warehouse are situated on land in the PRC held under a BEMARTE T REFPHERALT
medium-term to long-term land use right. LR -
16.PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. BT HH B 5IE
The Group's prepaid lease payments are amortised and AEENENHERERESELERHEE
charged to the profit or loss in the consolidated statement NELHAEERE &ﬁ@iﬁﬂﬁl sk PR E S
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a N 8 & R

straight-line basis over the lease term.

2017 2016
=EB—tF _—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Cost A
Balance at beginning of the year FYEERR 31,756 33,946
Exchange realignment PE 3 & 2,389 (2,190)
Balance at end of the year FRAER 34,145 31,756
Accumulated amortisation Ee §0c]
Balance at beginning of the year FYEER 7,762 7,543
Amortisation for the year F N 729 741
Exchange realignment & X R 614 (522)
Balance at end of the year FREERR 9,105 7,762
Carrying amounts REE
Balance at end of the year FRER 25,040 23,994
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RBEMSIHMT:
Current assets mENE B 759 706
Non-current assets JEMENE E 24,281 23,288
25,040 23,994
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17.GOODWILL 17.79 28
2017 2016
—E2E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Cost A
Balance at beginning of the year FEER 123,612 198,326
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W BEBIB ~ Al i = A& 42,160 121,282
De-consolidation of subsidiaries BUBARE ARRKME A A - (195,996)
Balance at end of the year FRER 165,772 123,612
Accumulated impairment losses Rt RERBE
Balance at beginning of the year FHER - —
Impairment loss recognised for the year FABEERBIEREE 14,650 -
Balance at end of the year FRER 14,650 -
Carrying amounts AREE
Balance at end of the year FREH 151,122 123,612
Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are BRAHERENHNF BN T195%EE -

disclosed in note 19.
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18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B EE
Information
Trading integration
right platform Total
EEERK
REE S et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Cost @S
At 1 January 2016 RZTE—RE—H—H = = =
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT B A B8 U BB 500 10,904 11,404
Exchange realignment PE W R = (104) (104)
At 31 December 2016 and RIZE—RF
1 January 2017 +=— A=+ AR
—E__LF-HmH 500 10,800 11,300
Exchange realignment b 5 R - 812 812
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+t#F
B - 500 11,612 12,112
Amortisation and impairment BERREE
At 1 January 2016 RZFE—R"E—H—H - - -
Provided for the year FAREE ~ 27 27
Exchange realignment bE W A = (1) )
At 31 December 2016 RIZE—RF
and 1 January 2017 = =y i =
e B — i e - 26 26
Provided for the year FREE - =132 1,132
Exchange realignment PE 5, 3 & = 48 48
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZB—-+t#F
+=—A=+-—H - 1,206 1,206
Carrying amounts FREE
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+t&F
+=—A=+-—8 500 10,406 10,906
At 31 December 2016 M_ZE—RF
+ZA=+—H 500 10,774 11,274

The trading right was purchased as part of a business
combination during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
trading right are retained for stock trading and stockbroking
activities. The trading right have been considered to have
indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to
the net cash flows of the Group indefinitely, and are not
amortised. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that it may be impaired.
Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed in note 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Information integration platform provides all the foundational
building blocks of trusted information, including data
integration, data warehousing, master data management,
big data and information monitoring. The right of using
information integration platform is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and the
trading right with indefinite useful life set out in notes 17
and 18 have been allocated to five individual cash generating
units (CGUs), comprising one subsidiary in the insurance
brokerage segment (“Insurance Brokerage CGU"), one
subsidiary in the security brokerage segment (“Security
Brokerage CGU"), two subsidiaries in the asset management
segment (“Asset Management CGU") and the subsidiaries in
the financing referral operation (”Financing Referral CGU")
and the subsidiaries in the financing guarantee operation
(“Financial Guarantee CGU"). The carrying amounts of
goodwill (net of accumulated impairment losses) as at
31 December 2017 and 2016 allocated to these units are as
follows:

mE B RRME

—E—HFF+RA=FT—HIFE

18. B EE (&)

EEERFERHMBEGSEEEESNR
B BREBEER BEEE- I%ITFE
B AREBEREEEZE -ERAEEREKT
BHEMNIR BB A E@1¢ﬁﬁ?$ﬁ$z
HAE LﬁéfZMt ZFERARE10F A5
Al R HE TSN

19.2 N EBER A HFH

FY & 2 BV R BRI B

SR ERI S M = - 17 RIS E & &
AERAFEAFH I RSEE D EERRA
ERREELEM (ReELEM]) &

R ERL DA —FH B2 A ([RE
< %Efﬁé;ziﬁuj ) BRI —
BB AR ((BFRLBSELEM]) -

BEEENHOMAEANBAR([EEE
BRGEABEM]) BESN D MAM
Brrl(IMEENREELEM]) MR
BREAREBOMBLAR(IMEERFRES
EEBEMN]) RZT—LtFR-ZT—RF
T A=T—HOREZFEMLNHE (1
fr RETRERE) BREEN T

Goodwill Trading right
HE REE

2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF —Z—tF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET THER FET
Insurance Brokerage CGU RegLREELEN 2,140 2,330 - -
Security Brokerage CGU BAREReESEN 6,522 14,500 500 500
Assets Management CGU EEEHRSEESBN 8,008 6,500 - -
Financing Referral CGU MEBNREEEEN 100,282 100,282 - -
Financial Guarantee CGU MEERASEESEN 34,170 = = =
Total ot 151,122 123,612 500 500
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19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

142

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, with reference
to the professional valuation performed by the independent
valuer, the management of the Group has determined that
an impairment loss of HK$14,650,000 (2016: Nil) in relation
to goodwill allocated to the groups of CGUs as losses have
been incurred by certain subsidiaries of Securities Brokerage
CGU, Asset Management CGU and Insurance Brokerage
CGU and the recoverable amounts of these subsidiaries
are less than their carrying amounts. The management has
determined that there is no impairment for the groups of
CGUs of Financing Referral CGU and Financial Guarantee
CGU segments containing goodwill or the trading right with
indefinite useful lives.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculation
of the CGUs for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016. Their major underlying assumptions on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill are summarised
below:

Discount rate per annum — the discount rate used are
before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective
industries.

Budgeted revenue and budgeted gross margins —
management determined budgeted gross margin based on
past performance and its expectations for the development
of the market.

Insurance Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Insurance Brokerage CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 20.24% (2016: 21.85%).
Cash flows after the three-year period were extrapolated
using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.

19,7 i B 15 4 R 55 PR F £
0 4 E ORI B )

BE-_E—+F+-_A=+—HLEE"
KR2EBYGHEMETHEEGE A&
EEEECETEMI R EREELEN
451 2 EE R REE 814,650,000 T (=
T—RNF8) DHRESFELREESE
B EEEERSELEEULRRRER
ReELEMNETHBAREELSE
BZEMBARMNAIKESBENERT
B - EEECECRSRENXAEFERT
FRHFHARIE REENRSEEEN
FREERRCELBMNNEBESELEN
48 51| I £ 1A o

SHeEABNMA KOS EREER
BEMAEET AHAMETERERKE
BEEHENVHKEENRSRERA -

BHE_Z—+t&F+-A=+—RHB k=%
—RNE+ A=+ BIFERSELE
UFEAEEFEFEFAETRE B8
BETEZRENAKMRANIAESTRE
FERAEL M BEREEMARmT

FHREX-MERNTIRX DRV ATITR
R WRRERRBITERBNRTERR -

BERSEMBEENR-EEEREBHE
R MHETHISEROFANETREERN X

REBELEREELEN

REBELRSEESMM A KEEEETIE
HAREEVEFENBEIEXSERHE
MBS TEE - BHETERERERKE
EEAERE-FHENYKEEFRNIR
SRETEBIEA20.24% (ZE—/KF:
21.85% VMR R - = F AR EZHNR &R
ENERMBEERR FHA3% (ZF
—RNF 3% )MIERERES -
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19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Security Brokerage CGU

The recoverable amount of the Security Brokerage CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 18.11% (2016: 21.82%).
Cash flows after the three-year period were extrapolated
using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.

Assets Management CGU

The recoverable amounts of the Assets Management CGU
were determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 18.58% (2016: 21.42%)
and 18.72% (2016: Nil). Cash flows after the three-year
period were extrapolated using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate
in considering the economic condition of the market.

Financing Referral CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financing Referral CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 18.13% (2016: 19.94%).
Cash flows after the three-year period were extrapolated
using 3% (2016: 3%) growth rate in considering the
economic condition of the market.
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19.IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL 19.
AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE
USEFUL LIFE (Continued)

Financial Guarantee CGU

The recoverable amount of the Financing Guarantee CGU
was determined with the assistance of the independent
professional qualified valuers not connected with the Group.
The calculation used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a three-year
period, and at a discount rate of 17.68% (2016: Nil). Cash
flows after the three-year period were extrapolated using 3%
(2016: Nil) growth rate in considering the economic condition
of the market.

mE N AR ER A E A F
RV B E mURUE R (®)

MERRRESELEM

BEERREELBEMNTWEEREITE
HAEEYREENELEESERGEE
i TEE - FEAAETERERKE
IEJ'HEE@“iiﬁﬁFﬁE’JEM{%ﬁ S YR
SREEATEB17.68% (ZE—/KF:
BN FTEREE  —FHEENRERED
ERMBEBMRN EHA3% G REXE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20 0Bk 2 N Al S
2017 2016
e = F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Cost of investment in associates — unlisted R EE&Z A TR EHK A —IE LT 306,346 372,075

Accumulated share of post-acquisition loss 25+ &L W E E1E &
and other comprehensive expense H2mAxZ
Less: impairment loss R EEE

(38,936) (104,665)
(267,410) (267,410)
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E—tFt+_A=1T—HLEE

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. 700 & A A R B R ()

The following list contains only the particulars of —I—%E@Jﬁi’]%%tm@ FERBET

associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities BEERNAINER

whose quoted market price is not available:

Issued and fully
Place of paid ordinary
incorporation  share capital/ Proportion of ownership interest
Name and operation  registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
AL L R BRTRARE
a8 EXuH LERE ERER DB G FE LA TEXH
2017 2016
—E-tf T
Directly Indirectly D|rectly Indirectly
EE A% B f

Intraday Financial Information British Virgin Ordinary US$100 45% - 45% - Investment holding
Service Limited [slands (“BVI")

(“Intraday Financial”) (Note a)

EREREEREERLA RBRARE  BBRRAI00XT REZK
(TgXeml) (Mita) (IRBRX

BBl

aBCD Enterprise Limited (Note a) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 - 45% - 45%  Investment holding

aBCD Enterprise Limited (fffa) &S LTRRAIET REER

Dingtai Runhe Investment PRC Registered capital - 45% - 45%  Provision of
Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd* RMB31,000,000 consultancy service
("Dingtai Runhe") (Note a)

BRE ﬂ]& i (L8) il MR AR REERRS
*ﬁ AR ([RFEM]) 31,000,0007C
(BitzEa)

Shanghai Intraday Financial PRC Registered capital - 45% - 45%  Operation of internet
Information Service Limited* RMB200,000,000 finance platform
(“Shanghai Intraday”) (Note a)

TBERGRESRBERAR HHE FMERARE BEERBERMTA
(TLBEX]) (Mita) 200,000,0007T

Shanghai Rongyu Finance Lease PRC Registered capital - - = 25%  Provision of finance
Limited (“Shanghai Rongyu") RMB210,000,000 leasing service
(Note b)

(TEamEl) (Mb) HE AMERARE RERERERK

210,000,0007T

#  The English translation of Chinese name is for reference only

and should not be regarded as its official English name.
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B ISR AR AL

20.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The recoverable amount of the investment in Intraday Group
has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation. To
determine the recoverable amount of Intraday Group, the
Group used pre-tax cash flow projection based on the financial
budget approved by management covering a five-year period.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, interest on Intraday
Group was fully impaired and the Group has already shared
the losses of the Intraday Group to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associates. The Group has no obligation to take
up further losses. The amounts of the Group's unrecognised
share of losses of Intraday Group for the current year and
cumulatively were HK$151,000 (2016: HK$Nil) and HK$151,000
(2016: HK$NIl) respectively. Considering that there is no specific
plan to revamp the business of Intraday Group, the directors of
the Company are of the view that no reversal of the allowance
for impairment should be made.

On 28 December 2017, the Company disposed of its entire
equity interest in a directly wholly owned subsidiary, which
indirectly holds 25% of Shanghai Rongyu. Upon the completion
of the disposal, Shanghai Rongyu ceased to be classified as an
associate of the Group.

21.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

—tFt+t-_A=+—RLFEE

N

20. 0B 2N BRI RERS (@)
B 2 -

/,

(a)

1.A#HEEE

EREEREZAINESBIREEAE
BEfEEE - RETEREEZA KD E
BASEHRAREBEEEME 2 AFH
MBEEETORARSRER -

HE_Z—X"F+-_A=Z+—BHLFE"
REXRGEEZE=Z2EREREAESES 1.5
BEREEZEEEEERBE QT MR-
AREBWERGEBFREBB - AE£BEAX
FERERNDHEREBGESB RS
2 A1A151,0008 7L (Z2—RF T8 70)
F151,0008 L (ZE—RF L) o &
BRI ES T MEE REB ¥R
A B E B R AT FER R BB -

B sl SR /N
EERN—HEREZEMBRRZ 28 -
ZARREEFE LBRE25% #a  R%
HETKE LERETBIBRRAEE

NI

BMEE

2017 2016
B L —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Listed investments: EHRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —BALTHRAES
(Note a) (fzEa) 20,579 30,655
— Equity securities listed in the PRC —H B TR IR AN 55
(Note a) (PffzEa) 4,942 11,069
25,521 41,724
Unlisted investment: FELMRE:
— Wealth management product (Note b) —EEEE® (MXb) - 16,751
25,521 58,475
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MmMEMSOMMAT :
Current assets mENEE - 16,751
Non-current assets EMBEE 25,521 41,724
25,521 58,475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

21.AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)
Notes:

(@) It represents the Group's investments in listed equity securities.
All the listed equity securities are stated at fair values which
have been determined by reference to closing prices quoted in
the active markets. The Group does not intend to dispose of
these investments in the near future.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets was a wealth management
product acquired from a bank with both principal and
interest rate being non-guaranteed. It was fair valued using
a discounted cash flow approach and main input used by the
Group was estimated yield rate written in contract with the
counterparty. The fair value is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

22.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The balance represents the unlisted investment fund which
primary objectives are to provide absolute returns through
pursuing different strategies, investing primarily in equity
and equity related instruments of companies listed in PRC or
overseas.

The fair value of these unlisted investment fund was
established by reference to the prices quoted by the fund
administrator.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, unrealised gain
of HK$2,409,000 arising from fair value changes in unlisted
investment fund was recognised in profit or loss.

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

Q1. R ESREE (&)

B

(@) EEARER EMRAES <E -
P LA EZ G A FENK:
MAFEIIELERERT IS ®R
WhEMEE AKEESNEHA
HEZSERE -

b) IHHECHMEERBRITHBANY
BEEEMR HASMHNRY ERE -
ERFEFRBITERSREEFE
MASEBEFEANEI22HAEH T
AIVEERFAF G RaER -
AFEREEATESRE=F-

FF’:

2.5 BB RRAFEIRNE

MEE
AERRIEE B B W R BB E TR RS
TERERTEKBINETRAZBRER
IRERBIIARHEBYEIRNIELHIRE
Hg-

TEBEAREMEE

HE-_ZE—tF+-_A=1+—RHILFE"
HIEFTREES A FEETIMELZ K
#IH 252,409,000 T E N B R NFER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

23.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES  23.

The balance represents the contingent consideration
receivables in relation to the acquisition of Access China
Group Limited (“Access China”) and its subsidiaries (”Access
China Group”) and of Sino Wealth Investment Co., Limited
("Sino Wealth”) and its subsidiaries (“Sino Wealth Group”),
pursuant to the related sale and purchase agreements. The
amounts are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at fair value.

PR SRR AB
REREEWREANEEGE LS

Access China Group Limited ([ Access
China ) X H i /8 2 &) ([ Access China
&£ & ) A & Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited ([Sino Wealth ) & H Kt B A &
([Sino Wealth &£ & | ) 2 FEY K ARAEB © 3%
CHEOBAERAFEFABEINEREE
NI AFEFE-

2017 2016

—E—tFE —ZT—REF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FAETT

At 1 January n—H—H 15,102 -

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37(a)) W B BT B~ A (FI5E37(a)) 5,765 15,889
Fair value change recognised in RERERNAFLEEE

profit or loss (10,988) (787)

At 31 December oz — e et = 9,879 15,102

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group

Pursuant to the condition sale and purchase agreement
dated 14 December 2016 and supplemental agreement
dated 2 February 2017 (“Acquisition Agreements A"”), the
vendor guarantees to the Company that Beijing Xinnouwei,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Access China, and
its subsidiaries shall attain certain performance targets
(the “Guaranteed Profits”) for the years ended/ending
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 (i.e. 2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000
and 2018: HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations
payable to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the
compensation, the Company shall have the right to sell
all or part of the Consideration Shares under escrow, the
net proceeds from which shall be equal to the shortfall of
the compensation, to the independent third parties, in the
securities market.
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BB W B Access China k@

BEBHAE-_ZE—X"F+-_A+WmAZHE
BKHEEEMEM;BRHA_S—tF_A=
Az@xtwz (TWEHBEA]) BAEA
N E)RE A R 15 7 M (Access China Z &
E22EMBAR) REMBAR®D R
HEZZT—REF ZFT—tFR=ZF—N
F+_A=+—HIEFEERETX4%H
Z(RFMEREL) -

MARBEFRERZTRA AQaBRENLE
EE-—RF ZFT—+FERZFT—N
F+-_A=Z+—BLUBRFEFEENTF
EFNEBERESRE (I ZT— R &F:
30,000,000/ 7t : —ZF —-+ 4 : 20,000,000
Bk —Z— )\ : 10,000,000 7T ) A 0
BEEcE - WENTFTEANRERET
EUNENHEESE AR BENRESLSD
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RERG EMGRBEFEERERNHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

23.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

In relation to acquisition of Access China Group
(Continued)

For avoidance of doubt, should the Beijing Xinnouwei and its
subsidiaries record an actual consolidated loss for any of the
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018, the amount shall be deemed as Nil.

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$15,889,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made
by the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreements A. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cash flow of Access China Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate ranged from
14.44% to 16.48%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$4,078,000 (31 December 2016: HK$15,102,000),
representing Guaranteed Profits made by the vendor in
accordance with the terms of Acquisition Agreements A.
The fair value was arrived at based on discounted cashflow
of Access China Group's forecast financial budgets used
to capture the present value of the expected future
economic benefits that will flow into the group by applying
probability-weighted average of achieving the required
benchmark, using discount rates ranging from 13.11% to
13.27% (2016: 14.44% to 16.48%). The valuation was
performed by an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group. The management discussed
with valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

23. JEUR S A RAE ()

BE B EE Access China &£ B (&)

RRERR WItRERBEENRE AR
REBEZE-_Z—R"F - —E—tFREK_F
—NE+ZA=+—BILERMREFEEH
SERGAEE AEHESEBIRRT-

RUEE BB BURSARE 2 A FEME
#9/15,889,0007% 7T+ B & 5 1R & UK BE 153
BABRKIER 22 MREB-EBELAFEED
R 45 Access China S B TE BRI B IS FE & 2 #T
RAsHE(ERERAERHEREL
AR E WA N T14.44% =
16.48% 2R KBS B RALER 2
TEHARRGEENZ 2 RE) Mt EB WL -
HEREASBEEEE BUSEREE
HERMET - EEEEGFMFmEER
BN HEER-

RZZE—+F+-A=+—B EWHA
REBZAFEMEHA4,078,0008 7T (=
e = L e =R SO0 002
7T)  BE A REBREHRAKTIEL 2%
FIRE - B A FE TR % Access China
EERAVMEBEZHRBESRE (BB
FERZEBURTIZ®E Z Al g I 19 80
HANF13.11% £13.27% ( ZZE—XF:
14.44% £16.48% ) 2 138 R LAERB #8 m
AREBEZFEHRREEN = 2 RE)
HESE - HERAAEEERE BT
AEMBEEGEMET SR E LG
HmAERRAEELS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

23.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES

150

(Continued)
In relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 28 July 2017 ("Acquisition Agreement S"), the
Vendor and Vendor Guarantor guarantee to the indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company that Beijing An Jia
Shi Hang Financing Guarantee Company Limited (“AJSH"),
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Sino Wealth, shall
attain certain performance targets (the “Guaranteed Profits"”)
for the years ended/ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and
2019 respectively.

If the Guaranteed Profits could not be met, the Company
shall have the right to deduct the compensation from the
respective cash considerations payable to the Vendor for
financial years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 (i.e. 2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000
and 2018: HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations
payable to the Vendor be insufficient to cover the
compensation, the Vendor shall compensate the amount of
difference in cash.

On the date of acquisition, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,765,000, representing Guaranteed Profits made by
the vendor in accordance with the terms of Acquisition
Agreement S. The fair value was arrived at based on
discounted cashflow of Sino Wealth Group’s forecast
financial budgets used to capture the present value of the
expected future economic benefits that will flow into the
Group by applying probability-weighted average of achieving
the required benchmark, using discount rate ranged from
12.65% to 13.23%. The valuation was performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to
the Group. The management discussed with the valuer on
the valuation assumptions and valuation results.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable was estimated to be approximately
HK$5,801,000 (31 December 2016: HK$Nil), representing
Guaranteed Profits made by the vendor in accordance with
the terms of Acquisition Agreement S. The fair value was
arrived at based on discounted cashflow of Sino Wealth
Group's forecast financial budgets used to capture the
present value of the expected future economic benefits that
will flow into the Group by applying probability-weighted
average of achieving the required benchmark, using discount
rates ranging from 11.62% to 12.02%. The valuation was
performed by an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected to the Group. The management discussed
with valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results.
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FEBUWEE Sino Wealth £ E

BERHA-ZT—ttFLtA=-+NHZ
EGHEEwR ([WEHBZS]) EFK
EHERARAANRRIEEZEZENE QR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES

24 R WS 5X 2 F B,

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Secured loans BHEBER 123,004 82,619
Unsecured loans EIRIFE R 129,307 16,862
252,311 99,481
Less: impairment allowances B RE R (62,420) (62,420)
189,891 37,061

Included in the secured loans receivables (net of impairment
allowance), the carrying amount of HK$19,160,000
(31 December 2016: HK$20,199,000) arise from the money
lending business in Hong Kong, which are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, bear interest at rates from 16% to 18%
per annum and secured by the pledge of collaterals. Besides,
included in the secured loans receivables, the carrying
amount of HK$41,424,000 (31 December 2016: HK$Nil) is
a loan to an independent third party, which is denominated
in RMB, bears interest at 6.6% per annum and is secured by
the pledge of collateral.

As at 31 December 2017, the unsecured loan receivables
are loans to the independent third parties, which are
denominated in RMB and bear interests at rates from 7% to
18% per annum.

Before granting loans, the Group uses internal credit
assessment process to assess the potential borrower’s credit
quality and defines its credit limits granted to the borrowers.
The credit limits attributed to the borrowers are reviewed by
the management regularly.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment on the
loan receivables on an individual basis. The assessment also
includes evaluation of collectability and on management’s
judgment, including the current creditworthiness, collateral
and past collection history of each borrower.
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EWEERBER (MBRRERE)FERET
519,160,000 L (Z_E—X~&F+ A
=+—H :20,199,000/& 7T ) K B & B M (E
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&1 B /A I GRS IR R o ot AN B UR
EIEFE X RMEES1,424,0008 T (=
E—RNE+_A=1+T—H:ZET)EMN
—BBIFE=ZFIRENER UARE
B IRFEREE6.6% st B0 HIKIE R D H1E
T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 24 EWE X RFE ()

(Continued)

In determining the recoverability of the loan receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the loan
receivables from the date of credit was initially granted up to
the reporting date. This includes assessing the credit history
of the borrowers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. Besides, the
Group considers that the amounts are considered recoverable
given the fair values of the pledged collateral or guarantees

REERKERZIRELER  AEES
EREREREELEXZBVAREEER
HEEREEHHANTENES - E8KE
AHEBRAZEEE L (208 75 N 2 5 i
RS R E RIS - R B H K
MmN E WHERZ R F1E R LA [ I %
BEMBER RAKRERRBEBREAR
Y@ -

received are sufficient to cover the entire balance on
individual basis.

R & B R IZ A 5B B A 150R 7 1 A
BB R E KR SR ERE DT

An ageing analysis of the loans and interests receivables that
are individually not considered to be impaired as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the payment due date, is

as follows:
2017 2016
—F—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Neither past due nor individually impaired 3t 4 780 5 71 £ {& Bl )& (& 181,461 25,980
Less than 1 month past due BET 2 11E A 8,430 11,081
1 to 3 months past due BEE£318 A - <
3 to 6 months past due #HEI3E6E A - -
6 months to less than 1 year past due B HG(E A =1 B 14F - -
189,891 37,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

24.LOANS AND INTERESTS RECEIVABLES 24.JEWE F M B ()
(Continued)
Loans receivables that were neither past due nor individually 7 4% 160 B 71 AR E BB E Y E B SR %
impaired relate to a number of diversified borrowers for BT e R AL sk R N RIE KA B -
whom there was no recent history of default.
In respect of the loans which have been past due for less eI RN—EAZERTIFZEHNE
than one month, the amounts mainly represent occasional REEERFAEY U PRTZEFERZ
delay in repayment and are not indication of significant SEERBERL-

deterioration of credit quality of these loans.

The movements in impairment allowance of loans and EWERRMNEHHEREBEZSNT
interests receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF& _—FT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at beginning of the year F R 62,420 3,633
Impairment allowance recognised BRI ERE - 62,420
Amounts written off during the year F M H &1 AT 4R Bl 2 kI8
as uncollectible - (3,633)
Balance at end of the year FRER 62,420 62,420
The impaired loans receivables relate to borrowers that were ERERKEREE R RBNEEAGR
in default and the loans and interests receivables were not FRERE AW O B R E TR A B o

expected to be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25. J1& Wi Bk 50 B EL A [ WK TR

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade receivables from: THEELEZEWERR:
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BAERHER: (MEa)
— Cash clients —-BexP 483 349
— Margin clients —REEEF 5,900 4,754
— Clearing houses and brokers —HEE R - 1,513
Consultancy services (Note b) AR (Mi5Eb) 3,724 377
Financial guarantee services (Note c) BB ERARTS (MsEc) 35 -
Insurance brokerage business (Note d) R % (MeEd) 471 1,173
Asset management business (Note e) BEEBEER (Mite) 1,281 55
Warehouse storage business (Note f) BEFHMER (M) - 52
General trading (Note g) —RE 5 (Kitg) - 6,388
11,894 15,001
Less: Impairment loss R OREE R (405) (377)
11,489 14,624
Other receivables H i W 5RIR 27,487 17,804
Less: Impairment loss B R EEE (4,099) (1,049)
23,388 16,755
Total trade and other receivables JFE MR B 3 K L A P R IR 4B KB 34,877 31,379
Notes: B 5T
(a) For the trade receivables from cash clients, it normally takes two (a) MREeFFPZEWERERME  —MREFHF

RIXHGBEMBABEE -ZERE MK
HEER ZRIE PR BREKE PR -

days to settle after trade date of securities transactions. These
outstanding unsettled trades due from clients are reported as
trade receivables from clients.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

25. FE UK BR 7k &2

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Trade receivables from margin clients amounting to
HK$5,900,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
HK$4,754,000) are secured by clients’ pledged securities
with fair value of HK$9,196,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$12,989,000). Management has assessed the market value
of the pledged securities of each individual customer who has
margin shortfall as at the year end. No impairment allowance is
considered necessary for the remaining margin loans based on
the Group’s evaluation of their collectability.

Trade receivables from margin clients arising from the securities
brokerage business are repayable on demand subsequent to
settlement date.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from
consultancy services are within 30 days upon the contractual
obligation is performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from financial
guarantee services are mainly within 60 to 90 days upon
contractual obligation is performed.

The normal settlement terms of trade receivables from product
issuers arising from the provision of insurance brokerage
services are mainly within 45 to 60 days upon the execution of
the insurance policies and/or receipt of statements from product
issuers.

Credit terms with customers of asset management are within
30 days or a credit period mutually agreed between the
contracting parties.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
warehouse tenants.

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its
trade customers.

mE B RRME

—E—HFF+RA=FT—HIFE

B b e U ERIE (1)

ffeE: (48)

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & Ui BR 2k N E i fE W ZRTE ()

No ageing analysis of margin loans is disclosed as in the ENREEREBZ2HEE  ARAIES
opinion of the directors of the Company, the ageing analysis RARE DT MmEBIMER - B UL I &K
does not give additional value in view of the nature of this BHEREIT
business.
An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade FE U BR SRR EE (FOBRREEE) R EH
receivables net of impairment loss as at the end of the AEBRZBHZERESTOT
reporting period, based on the trade date, is as follows:
2017 2016
=E2—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
0 - 30 days 0Z30H 3,277 9,801
31 - 60 days 31260H 797 69
61 - 90 days 61290H 958 -
Over 90 days 90H M E 557 -
5,589 9,870
An ageing analysis of the remaining balance of trade A A4 4R 4 18 7l = 2k (R R (B BY 8 W AR SR B4
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered HHRE AT
to be impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
—2—+tF —ZT-RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 #8360 HA 7T SR ORL (B 4,471 9,849
Less than 1 month past due #E B E A 1,051 21
1 to 3 months past due wE =318 A 1 —~
3 to 6 months past due #mEI3E6E A 11 -
6 months to less than 1 year past due BEBEAZETE1E 55 -
5,589 9,870
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in impairment loss on trade receivables are

25. J1& Wi AR 50 B B A R WK ()

FEM AR SR E B B Z EHan T -

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Balance at beginning of the year FEHR 377 -
Amounts recognised during the year FRERHN S - 377
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B 28 -
Balance at end of the year FRER 405 377
The movements in impairment loss on other receivables are HiEWRIBRESENESHNT
as follows:
2017 2016
=B—tF _T—RF
HKS$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Balance at beginning of the year FY R 1,049 614
Amounts recognised during the year FABRN TR 2,971 921
Amounts recovered during the year FAYKEHEFE - (469)
Exchange realignment e 5 R 79 (17)
Balance at end of the year FRAER 4,099 1,049
26.PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOQSITS 26. AR FRIE IR &
2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHEIT
Prepayments AT IR 1,186 1,587
Rental and utilities deposits He kA& ®ES 4,252 4,292
Statutory deposits EERE 280 280
Other deposits (Note) Hhize (MizE) 44,495 739
Total prepayments and deposits BN RIBERIZE B 50,213 6,898
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MmMEMSOMMAT :
Current assets mENEE 46,888 3,573
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,325 3,325
50,213 6,898

Note: Included in other deposits, a deposit of amount
HK$36,021,000 paid to an asset management Company for

the investment in a private equity fund.

ek: EtiZeeEmElERkEEen—
MEEEE ARSI AE£36,021,000

BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

27.CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS . REBFEENIR®

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed
banks to hold clients" monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients” monies as
cash held on behalf of customers under the current assets
section of the consolidated statement of financial position
and recognised the corresponding accounts payable to
respective clients on the grounds that one is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The Group is
not allowed to use the clients” monies to settle its own
obligations.

28.RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits represented the received guarantee
business pledged customer deposits with tripartite custodian
agreement among online lending platform, guarantee
customer and the Group. For the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement, the Group's restricted bank deposits
with banks have been excluded from cash and cash
equivalents.

29.BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from nil to 1.67% (31 December 2016: nil to 0.30%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits carried fixed interest rate
of 1.70% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Bank deposits amounting to HK$27,918,000 have been
pledged to secure a short-term bank loan at 31 December
2016. The pledged bank deposits were released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank borrowing during the year.

28.

29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

=+ =+,
30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 30. /& (< BR K~ Hoth JE 1~ TR TE K 8
ACCRUALS STEH
2017 2016
=F—tF _—T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade payables from: THEEZEMFERR:
Business of dealing in securities: (Note a) BHERXZHER: (Miika)
— Cash clients —RERP 467 14,960
— Margin clients —-REBESEF 1,589 2,204
— Clearing house —WEE PR 1,777 =
Insurance brokerage business (Note b) R x5 (MsEb) 423 1,031
Total trade payables JERT AR 4B 58 4,256 18,195
Accrued expenses et E A 8,758 2,339
Deposits received B ERE 921 284
Receipts in advance TE WK IE 3,175 ~
Other payables (Note ¢) H A FE A 5RIE (M aEc) 42,985 23,689
Total other payables and accruals Hih e RIB R BT B R 55,839 26,312
Total trade payables, other payables JE A~ BR 3K~ L JE A~ 5RIB K2
and accruals Bt E R B 60,095 44,507
Notes: B eE
(a) Trade payables to securities brokerage clients represent the (a) ENEARKLBEPERIERNETZRE
monies received from and repayable to brokerage clients in EHBEFERERREFLPBE 2 ETARE
respect of the trust and segregated bank balances received URITEBRERE LTS RENSLERP
and held for clients in the course of the conduct of regulated B FRIE o SR T+ AN & (B3R B 30 4 AT 98 5 0
activities. However, the Group does not currently have a TRENNEEFREHEZSRNER
enforceable right to offset these payables with the deposits
placed.
The majority of the trade payables balance are repayable on REHENERERBZERER EH
demand except for certain balances relating to margin deposits RABFEBBEPRIGEHEWEF,H
received from clients for their trading activities under the RECHRBEBENE TEHRRBRIN-EBB
normal course of business. Only the excess amounts over the HEREBSTRZEBAREREE -

required margin deposits stipulated are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE

B ISR AR AL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

30.TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The settlement terms of trade payables, except for margin
clients, arising from the securities brokerage business are two
days after trade date.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of business.

Trade payables to consultants arising from provision of
insurance brokerage service, are generally settled within 30 days
to 120 days upon receipt of payments from product issuers by
the Group.

An ageing analysis of trade payables from insurance brokerage
business at the end of reporting period is as follows:

30.F& A BR K E A A5 RTR M

ArTEA (®)

FfeE: (%)

(a)

(%)

ERRECEBELEZCRAER (REESE
FEIN 2 EEHR /RS BEMA -

HRARREEAR EREBHEE K
e D AT I B S R BRSME R ML B E R
BT

AEE RN BB EMBEITAMNRR30E
EN0RREERHRBRELCRTELELZ
JE < BE R AR X

RIRE R RRBAE AL EBEMNERNER
DT :

2017 2016

—EB—tF —ERF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TAET

0 — 30 days 0%30H 320 990
31 - 60 days 31260H 101 41
61— 90 days 61£290H 2 -
Over 90 days 90HR M £ = =
423 1,031

Included in other payables, customer pledged deposits received,
amounted to HK$7,995,000, represent deposits received from
customers as collateral security for the financial guarantees
issued by the Group. These deposits will be refunded to
the customers upon expiry of the corresponding guarantee
contracts. According to the contract, these deposits are
expected to be settled within one year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

31.LIABILITIES FROM FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 31.FtEIEEFREE

2017 2016
—B-—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Deferred income EIERA 524 -
Provision for guarantee losses EIRE B E 51,229 =
51,753 -

Movement analysis of provision for guarantee losses: EREBERESTE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZET—RF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
At 1 January o Bl —gF - -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W RSB B A AR E A 50,325 =
Written back for the year FAERE (2) T
Exchange realignment ME W R 906 —
At 31 December NI s e = 51,229 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

32.DEFERRED CONSIDERATIONS 32 IRER B

2017 2016
=E2E—tF T RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Balance at beginning of the year RE )2 & ER 120,878 127,920
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHI B 2~ A 42,404 53,238
De-recognition BUBTER (67,901) =
Settlement (=8 (30,000) (64,020)
Imputed interest HEFE 5,912 3,740
Balance at end of the year RE R L8R 71,293 120,878

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MIHEMS O -
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 22,486 24,283
Current liabilities nEaE 48,807 96,595
71,293 120,878

162

As at 31 December 2017, included in deferred consideration
is cash consideration in relation to the acquisition of
Access China Group and of Sino Wealth Group with
carrying amounts of HK$29,919,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$53,432,000) and HK$41,374,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$Nil) respectively.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Sino
Wealth Group

On 20 October 2017, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Group (Note 37(a)). Partial
of consideration would be satisfied in manner as to
HK$30,000,000, HK$11,000,000 and HK$6,000,000
respectively shall be settled in cash within five business days
after issue of audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 and for the year ending 31 December
2018 and 2019, subject to adjustment.

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 20 October 2017 was HK$42,404,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
ranged from 12.05% to 13.10%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rates ranging from 12.05% to 13.10%
per annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$1,030,000
was debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.
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R-ZE—+E+A=-1+H AEEBEEK
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A X Ef D B 2 75 X A&30,000,000/%8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

32.DEFERRED CONSIDERATIONS (Continued)

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Access
China Group

On 22 December 2016, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Access China Group (Note 37(c)). During the
year, partial deferred cash consideration of HK$30,000,000
was settled by cash. Remaining consideration will be satisfied
in manner as to HK$20,000,000 and HK$10,000,000
respectively shall be settled in cash upon next business day
after issue of audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 and for the year ending 31 December
2018, subject to adjustment.

The fair value of the deferred cash consideration at the date
of completion on 22 December 2016 was HK$53,238,000,
which was determined by an independent valuer. The
effective interest rates used in the calculation of the fair value
was ranged from 14.27% to 15.79%.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred cash consideration
are calculated using the effective interest method by applying
the effective interest rates ranging from 14.27% to 15.79%
per annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$4,427,000
(2016: HK$193,000) was debited to the profit or loss of the
Group for the year.

Cash consideration relating to acquisition of Oriental
Credit Group

On 21 January 2015, the Group had completed the
acquisition of Oriental Credit Group. Part of consideration
would be satisfied by the Company in the issuance of
convertible notes in three tranches. Part of deferred
consideration was settled by issuance of 2014 Convertible
Note and 2015 Convertible Note on 3 June 2015 and
15 March 2016 respectively.

Imputed interest expenses on the deferred convertible notes
consideration are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying an effective interest of 10.14% per
annum, the imputed interest expenses of HK$455,000 was
debited to the profit or loss of the Group for the year.

Due to the matters stated in Note 7(b), the remaining
deferred convertible notes consideration at a carrying amount
of HK$67,901,000 was de-recognised for the year ended
31 December 2017.

32 IR ERE (5

BN Access ChinaEB 2 H &R E

R—_ZT—XRE+_A=-_+=-H ' &&
lEmWHﬂZEﬁAccess China & & (B 5*
37()) " RAFEE - ARaE ABEHAE
430,000,000 JT IR E IR & 20 o KB - &
X {820,000,000/% 7T % 10,000,000 JT
SRREBE—_T—+t&+=_A=+—81
S L B )\ R el ||
REBZMBERERTIERT —EAZ2%EHE MU
BEE-

REXKBHE-_ZE—XRE+_A=-_+=-8"
Lfﬁiﬁf‘fz Y18 A&53, 238,0005%
T AFEITHBYHEMET T8
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz,\ﬁﬁ%ﬂf s A0 o 23
15.79% °

Lfﬁiﬁ{ﬁmﬁ*"ﬂ%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂ%
,\E’Xﬂf/fu HE EAZEBRENE
NF14.27% £15.79% ° @Zﬂ%ﬁfﬂsﬁ
4,427,000 70 ( —ZF — /<4 : 193,000/
T EFTAREEREE 2 BRA

FRUBRAGFEEEZRENRE

R-ZBE—RE—A=-+—HB XAEEERX
MKERAFEESEE - ARAEEBRD =
#HEITA MR EEE H*I? P RAE - B IR
ERAMBRERRED DR =T —H
E/_\HEEI&ZZ?—/_\EEH—I—EEI?%??

—AFIBREERE T —AFAR
Xm?J‘EYTLME & o

i JE 7] 2 % 2 ﬁZﬁﬁﬂJ%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
ERFEREZFE BRAZCERFENEXRA
10.14% - 16”"4% 8. 5 52455,000/% 7T 2 5t
ARFEREEB ZERZA-

HRME7O) M EER BE_T—tF
+-A=+—HIFE" EHMEEWEEE
8 A£67,901,000/%8 7T 2 {1 7] #2 Jg =R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

out in note 44. The loans carry effective interest at fixed rates
of 6.37% (2016: 4.35% to 7.91%) per annum.

(b) As at 31 December 2017, the interest-bearing other loans bear
interests at fixed interest rates ranging from 8.8% to 10%

(31 December 2016: 10%) and are unsecured, repayable within

12 months and are carried at amortised cost.
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(b)
=

33.BORROWINGS 3.8 8
2017 2016
—E2—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Bank loans (Note a) RITER (Kista) 99,058 99,107
Other loans (Note b) Eﬁﬁ%ﬁ#ﬂ (KMt3EDb) 60,035 13,959
159,093 113,066
Secured B HEH 99,058 99,107
Unsecured EAA 60,035 13,959
159,093 113,066
Carrying amounts repayable: ER T3 AR E R/ ARE(E -
Within one year —&R 66,039 57,241
More than one year, but not exceeding —FA EEREUAA
two years 9,005 16,750
More than two years, but not more than ME LA EBRFAA
five years 36,021 39,085
More than five years RAFUE 48,028 -
159,093 113,066
Less: Amounts shown under BRREBAEREINRZ
current liabilities k- (66,039) (57,231)
93,054 55,835
Notes: Bt o -
(a) Bank loans were secured by the pledge of Group's assets as set (@) BITEFBMFMITRAEEEELIRE

o ZEERIUN637E (T —7NF 1435
EZ79NE)MEEFFNERAERA X

o
Ao

—E—+tF+-_A=+—H itEEM
f‘“%’vhzssﬁiml_(fz—/\iwL A
=F+—H:10E)MBETEEFEFE WA
AEEA - BR121E B REE R IR E R
B8R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

34. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement and
supplementary agreements for the acquisition of Oriental
Credit Group, 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note with principal amounts of HK$85,401,768 and
HK$42,000,000 at conversion price of HK$0.24 (after
adjustment of share subdivision on 23 December 2015)
were issued to the vendors of the Oriental Credit Group
on 3 June 2015 and 15 March 2016 respectively. It entitled
the noteholders to convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company at any time after the date of issuance of 2015
Convertible Note and ending on the 21st business day before
the maturity date, which is on the fifth anniversary of the
respective dates of issuance of 2014 Convertible Note and
2015 Convertible Note. If the convertible notes have not
been converted, they will be redeemed on maturity date at
the entire principal amount.

The Convertible Notes contains two components, liability and
equity components. The equity component represents the
value of the conversion option, which is credited directly to
equity as convertible notes reserve of the Company and the
Group. The liability component of the convertible notes is
carried as a non-current liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The effective
interest rate of the liability component is ranging from 9.98%
to 12.89% per annum.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A a
e MR RMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—t+tF+-_A=+—HILEFE
34, CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 34, A IR IR ()
The carrying amounts of above-mentioned convertible notes TR ERRREARER ZREE
recognised at the end of the reporting period were calculated TEWMT:
as follows:
2014 2015
Convertible  Convertible
Note Note Total
—E-mFE —ET-I1fF
THREBREE TRREE mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET TAT
Equity component EEHD
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—X~F—H—H 101,192 - 101,192
Issued during the year FABET - 61,723 61,723
Conversion during the year F N (95,120) (58,020) (153,140)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RF
1 January 2017 and S [
31 December 2017 —ET—+F-H-BkK
—ET—+F
B= Hea-—
6,072 3,703 9,775
Liability component EENS
At 1 January 2016 R-ZZT—X F—HA—H 54,885 - 54,885
Issued during the year FARABET - 21,985 21,985
Conversion during the year F QR (54,137) (21,591) (75,728)
Effective interest expenses ERFSAX 2,856 1,072 3,928
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—8k
—E—+%—H—H 3,604 1,466 5,070
Effective interest expenses ERF SR 385 199 584
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+=A=+—8H 3,989 1,665 5,654
Principal amount, at end of the year RERZ A& 5,124 2,520 7,644

166 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

35.DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognized and movements thereon during the current and

prior years:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 #Z

BT TR

FERBE

TEE

Provision Undistributed

—E—HFF+RA=FT—HIFE

ERATEEEHEAEREERLRA
BHMT

for financial profits of
guarantee associates Total
BENEZ
RUBMERR R2TBEF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FHET
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—RFE—HF—H - 1,100 1,100
Credited to profit or loss for the year RERBHEPETA - (1,080) (1,080)
Exchange realignment i AR - (20) (20)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R ZZT—RF
e FES
—T—t5—H—H - - -
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries REWEHRE A A 12,456 - 12,456
Credited to profit or loss for the year RENBRPEA ~ - -
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 B 233 - 233
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
Ve 12,689 - 12,689

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$386,446,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$350,181,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$146,674,000 (31 December 2016: HK$165,406,000) that
will expire in one to five years. Other losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and associates
established in the PRC in respect of earnings generated from
1 January 2008.

RBERR AEEBERSHAREEIE
386,446,000 T (ZFE—~<E+=-H
=-+—H:350,181,000/% 7t ) 7] FA 1 1K &
IR R a8 ) o E A B LA T8 I SR 2R 0% A1 3K TR -
WY ERAREBAHIEEEERELEHRIEE
E-RAERRBEBEBEBRESEN —ZRFR
& 2 B 18146,674,0008 7T ( ZE— /N F
+ - A=+—H:165,406,000/& ) - &
ftb /&5 48 A] £ (R HR 45

REBEFBREEMEFRE £ BEKL I
ERXAIBKREEZET IR KB BRI
10%%?1]%%%2%%&83_?7)\@ A
—HEAR BEAR_TTLFT-A
ST BRZEN- W BERMEINER
BENRDEEBERABHBGLD  RIAT R
AREZEHIRX-RAKEMS  EA
BERD5% H10% - Htt AEBARNF
BRI FE AR M E AR —FE/\

F—A—RBRELZEMND KIS MR
B -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

35.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in PRC for which deferred taxation liabilities
in relation to withholding tax have not been recognised was
HK$3,164,000 (2016: HK$901,000). No deferred tax liability

IRAENIE ()

R-ZE—t+tF+_A=+—8 " B EHK
BARASE RN BAENEREZEBE
3,164,000 7T ( =& — /S : 901,000/%8
TC) W ERZEEERRELRIBBAG
AR AEB FIEF RO ERERER

has been recognized in respect of these differences because WEERRZEEREZEETZNA B RRE
the Group is in a position to control the timing for reversal of EI
the related temporary differences and it is probable that such
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
36.SHARE CAPITAL 36.f% 7N
Number Nominal
of shares amount
R#%EE H &
‘000 HK$'000
T A% FHET
Authorised: JATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each EREE.00B T E B
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZE—R"F—-—HA—H8-
1 January 2017 and —E—XRE+ZH
31 December 2017 5= | e i Y e P
—A—BERZZE—tF
) = et 12 2,109,890,000 2,109,890
Preference shares of HK$0.001 each S EE0.001B TR B LI
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, R-ZF—X~"E—H—A8"
1 January 2017 and —T—RE+=ZA
31 December 2017 = =i SR
—A—BERZZ—tF
+ZA=+—H 110,000 110
Issued and fully paid: BERITRHE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each R EE0.001B T T B
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 3,234,353 3,234
Conversion of convertible notes (Note a) B AR ERE (MisEa) 498,990 499
Issue of new shares (Note b) BATHRR D (MIsEb) 452,810 453
Issue of shares upon acquisition of NG NS S S Er)
subsidiaries (Note c) (MfsEc) 194,061 194
At 31 December 2016 RZB-—RE+A=+—H
and 1 January 2017 ER-_ZE—+E—fA—H 4,380,214 4,380
Exercise of share options (Note d) TP REARAE (MIsEd) 201,896 202
Issue of shares upon open offer (Note e) AR ERFEEITGD
(Ptzte) 2,287,947 2,288
At 31 December 2017 R-EB—tF+_-_A=+—H 6,870,057 6,870
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mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

36.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 6 July 2016, upon the exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the 2014 Convertible Note and 2015 Convertible
Note in an aggregate principal amount of HK$119,758,000
at the conversion price of HK$0.24 per share, the Company
allotted and issued 498,990,258 shares in aggregate to the
noteholders.

On 14 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 452,810,000
new shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription price of
HK$0.27 upon completion of subscription of new shares

Pursuant to the agreement in respect of the acquisition as
disclosed in note 37(c) to the consolidated financial statements,
194,060,671 shares of HK$0.001 each in the capital of the
Company were issued and allotted to the vendor under the
acquisition.

On 9 February and 6 March 2017, upon the exercise of the
share options at an exercise price of HK$0.232 per share, the
Company allotted and issued 195,680,000 new shares of
HK$0.001 each.

On 14 November 2017, upon the exercise of the share options
at an exercise price of HK$0.187 per share (after adjusted upon
open offer), the Company allotted and issued 6,215,753 new
shares of HK$0.001 each.

On 21 June 2017, the Company allotted and issued
2,287,947,142 new shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription
price of HK$0.100 per share upon completion of the open
offer.

36. IR 2N (&)
P 5

(@ RZE—ARFLtA B EXcREAR
119,758,000 T2 — B —NEa R =
MZE-—RF A BREEMENT 2 &
RERETR024B TETE A AR
EEEH AR X317 $£498,990,2580%
A& 5 o

by RAZE—A"FtA+THA AEXREH
Bm AR EIRREE0.278 T8 &%
77452,810,000/% & f% 1 {B0.0017 7T B9 #7
B A7 o

(0 BELEGEEVERRMEIIQOMEES
BRBEEENG R EMEKBEENES
BT REL B AR IR A 194,060,6715% &
AE T {50.00178 T A B 1

(d RZE—+tF_ANBE=A"H BIE&
TEEFR0.232B TTITEBRER AR
AAC 3 K2 3£17195,680,000/% & AX E{E0.001
B TT 2 FTRRAD

RZE—+tF+—A+T0BE -A27H
B EIRER0.187EB T 2T EE (R A
FMEBEEREHRE)BITHEMAE S KRBT
6,215,753 &R EE0.001/ 8 T Z #T R 15 ©

(&) RZE—+EXNA-+—H AQAFARA
8 & T 12 IR R IBE B 8%0.1007 T g
B N E172,287,947,1420% & X T {E0.001
B TT 2 FTRRAD ©
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group

(a) Wi Sino Wealth &

On 20 October 2017, the Company had completed the
acquisition of Sino Wealth Investment Co., Limited (”Sino
Wealth") and its subsidiaries (“Sino Wealth Group”).
Sino Wealth Group is principally engaged in provision
of credit-based financing guarantee and related loan
arrangement and consultancy services in the PRC. It had
obtained a license issued from Beijing Municipal Bureau
of Financial Work to provide financing guarantee to
individuals and non-state-owned small to medium sized
enterprises.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement (as
supplemented by supplemental letters dated 24 August
2017 and 13 September 2017) dated 28 July 2017, the
assets to be acquired by the Company are the entire
issued share capital of Sino Wealth and shareholder’s
loan owing by Sino Wealth Group to the vendor at the
date of acquisition.

The aggregate consideration is HK$300,000,000
(subject to adjustment), which should be satisfied by
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the "Purchaser”) in cash. HK$253,000,000 of
cash consideration was paid. The remaining cash
considerations of HK$30,000,000, HK$11,000,000 (the
"Second Instalment”) and HK$6,000,000 (the “Third
Instalment”) are payable within five business days after
the issue of audited consolidated financial statements of
the Sino Wealth Group for the year ended 31 December
2017, years ending 31 December 2018 and 2019
respectively.
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R-_E—tF+A=-+H ARQRAE
52 B Y& B8 Sino Wealth Investment Co.,
Limited ([Sino Wealth J) & H i B A
A) ([Sino Wealth& & | ) ° Sino Wealth
ESEETERNFBRENBREEZNEZEND
BMEEREBBERLTHERBHRE -
HEESItRmeR TIERBENE
BAEBARERER NEERERE
R

BEEBHAE-_Z—tF+A-1+N\H
ZEEMH (KEHA-ZT—LtFN
A-t+tmHBER-—ZE—+EAA+=H
ZEFTEHERTE)  ARBEKREZE
EE 35 Sino Wealth 2 2 2B 1T A &
Sino Wealth S E AW EE B BIE R E A
ZBREER-

48 {8 /5300,000,000/8 T (7] F A
B) BHRAAR—HEEZEWE
AR ([EFVUBReEMN - RERE
253,000,000 JT & & X+ - FI 6438 &
130,000,000/ 7T * 11,000,000/ 7T
([ =833 ) &6,000,0007 7T ([ 58
=8tk ) B BIFA Sino Wealth £ B
HEEE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. W EE KT B A T (#)

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued) (a) YE&Sino Wealth&E (&)

In addition, as part of the acquisition, if the actual
audited net profit after tax of Beijing An Jia Shi Hang
Financing Guarantee Company Limited (“AJSH") for year
ended 31 December 2017, years ending 31 December
2018 and 2019 (the “Actual Profit”), is less than
RMB10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000
respectively (the “Target Profit”), the vendor will
compensate the Company for the shortfall for an amount
equivalent to the difference between the Target Profit
and the Actual Profit multiplied by 1.2 times.

In such event, the Company shall have the right to deduct
the shortfall from the respective cash considerations
payable to the vendor for year ended 31 December
2017, years ending 31 December 2018 and 2019 (i.e.
2017: HK$30,000,000, 2018: HK$11,000,000; 2019:
HK$6,000,000).

If the Second Instalment and the Third Instalment are
not sufficient to offset the 2018 Shortfall and the 2019
Shortfall respectively, the vendor shall compensate the
amount of difference in cash, in HK$ equivalent to the
amount of RMB or the Purchaser has the right to deduct
the amount of difference from the assets pledged to
the Purchaser under the guarantee letter signed by the
vendor guarantor.

Further details are set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 28 July 2017, 24 August 2017,
13 September 2017 and 20 October 2017 and circular
dated 15 September 2017.

N - ERBWEBEIER —F 2 - Wit
RERTITRMEEZERERAA ([ZX
tT)BE TS —+tF+_A=+—
AtERE BE_FT—N\FER=2F
—NEFEF+_AZ+—HLEFENER
EZEBELRN ([ERREF])H
AME R A K #10,000,0007T A R #&
20,000,0007T & A K #30,000,0007T
([BE&M]) EAFRAREEE
TRZE 2FEHERBEERMEE
A 2 =BT .26

FHBEAT XA ERREHE_ZT
R te 1 _— 7 =Sl -
E_T—NFER-ZFE—NF+HA
=+—BULEFERENTESFNIEBER
€ RE (Bl == —+ 4 :30,000,000/8
e = ] (0)010) @010 ks mmd - o
T — 1% : 6,000,000 7T ) B 1 B A
iy

HE_HANRRE=ZRNERTRINE
H_E—\FrEH2E=_F-NF
Te#Hr BETRANFERNARE S
BHETREMEERE D HET
ﬁ%ﬁ@FAEF%AMJZ%ﬂi
BERTETNEETHIRERED

E—THFBIARAAFABEHR-F
—tFLtAZ+TNAB - ZE—LFN
AZ+tHB ZZE—+tFhA+=H
M_ZE—+F+A_T+THZRMKRA
HA—T—tFNATHERZAN
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued)

37. B KT B A B (#)
(a) Wi Sino Wealth &£ 8 (%)

T R Lt U B Sino Wealth 28 2 &
N RMARE UERRKEBR S K
B EEMCREABENAFEE:

The following table summarises the consideration paid/
payable for the acquisition of Sino Wealth Group, and
the fair value of identified assets acquired and liabilities

assumed at the acquisition date:

HK$'000
FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B MR 776
Deferred tax asset BREBIBEE 12,456
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JE W BR 5K 1,661
Loan and interest receivables JE W E SRR FI B 96,221
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment H b WK e RTEN KB 32,955
Amount due from related parties JFE K Rl 32 75 SR IE 1,591
Restricted bank deposits PR HIRITFERK 8,866
Bank and cash balances IRIT RIS ER 175,287
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals and other payables FE= & M & B h & 1~ 518 (21,521)
Amount due to a shareholder S — B IRERFKIA (238,610)
Liabilities from financial guarantees BMEERAE (50,432)
Tax payables & R T8 (2,391)
Net identifiable assets at fair value UAFREFEZARINEEFE 16,859
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group ERTASEE ZREER 238,610
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WHEBEEE 2 /mE 34,170
Total fair value consideration NEFERERRE 289,639
Consideration satisfied by: REXFFR:
Cash paid EfRE 220,000
Cash payable ERTER & 33,000
Deferred consideration EERE 42,404
Less: contingent consideration receivable L TR A RAME (5,765)
289,639
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEESEEENRESREFH:
Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 220,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B WERNIRe RIREEEY (175,287)
44,713
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. W EE KT B A T (#)

(a) Acquisition of the Sino Wealth Group (Continued) (a) YE&Sino Wealth&E (&)

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
net tangible assets and intangible assets of Sino Wealth
Group, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be
paid/payable by the Group over the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired.

(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation

Pursuant to the conditional sales and purchase agreement
dated 7 March 2017, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Ulmus Creek Holdings
Limited ("Ulmus”) for a total cash consideration of the
sum of HK$8,000,000.

A direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Ulmus is a
corporation licensed and approved by the Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") to carry on Type 4 (advising
on securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO") in Hong Kong.

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

ARPMEZEZEBYAEMZR
&8 M 15 ¥ & % B % 1357 B E Sino
Wealth B B B E K BT & EFHE
ZRFE-

WEEEELAZBEREASEEEN/
BN ZRENRFESNE WA &
RIEEFENRFEZHLD

(b) B8 3 He 5

BEEHE-_ZT—tF=A+tHNE
BKHEEEHZ AR —HEEEE
MBAREERKGHRAENERS
K {€8,000,0007% 7T U B8 Ulmus Creek
Holdings Limited ([Ulmus]) 2 2 &2
BATRRA

Umust —HIEEZEMB AR AE
BHEEHESEBERZES ([RE
FEERMETREBETES R
BRI (TEHFRBAEEN]) T 54
HXAETEY (ABSFREER)LSE
EXHE LY (BEHEEEE)NZE
& o
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation (Continued)

The acquisition was completed on 20 July 2017. The
following table summarises the consideration paid and
payable for the acquisition, and the identified assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, at fair value on 20 July

37. W BB B A A (&)

(b) WiBREMR LM (48)

WEEEER _2E—tF+tA=-+H
TR TRBAMWEBSEEZENKE
NREB E-_Z—+F+A=-+HH
AFEFENEWEEHRNEE R

2017: EEAE:
HK$'000
FHT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 42
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables JE Wt AR X 93
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment Hh fE ORIR - 12 R TBN KIE 95
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 249
Current liabilities nEEE
Accruals and other payables JEtE R R E b BT FIR (452)
Amount due to a director BN —RBEERIE (17)
Amount due to the shareholders &S AR R 5K IB (1,492)
Net liabilities assumed at fair value UAFEFEZAEEETFE (1,482)
Shareholders’ loan assigned to the Group EERETAREE ZREER 1,492
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WESEELACHE 7,990
Total fair value consideration N ERELSE 8,000
Consideration satisfied by: REXHFR:
Cash paid ENEE 6,000
Cash payable ERIRE 2,000
8,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEESEEENRESRE TR
Cash consideration paid ENREeRE 6,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B WEENIRE RREEEY (249)
5,751
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37. W BB B A A (&)

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of the licensed corporation (Continued)

(c)

The directors of the Company have engaged an
independent valuer to determine the fair value of the
net tangible assets and intangible assets of Ulmus and its
subsidiary, in accordance with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be paid/
payable by the Group over the fair value of net liabilities
assumed.

Acquisition of the Access China Group

On 22 December 2016, the Company had completed the
acquisition of Access China Group. Access China Group
is principally engaged in the business of loan referral
services in the PRC.

The consideration for the acquisition is approximately
HK$128,515,000, which includes (i) cash consideration
of HK$80,000,000 and (ii) the allotment and issue of
an aggregate of 194,060,671 ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Consideration Shares”) at issue price of
HK$0.25 per share. The fair value of Consideration Shares
at the date of acquisition amounted to approximately
HK$45,604,000 based on the closing market price at the
date of acquisition.

HK$20,000,000 of cash consideration was settled on the
date of completion. The remaining cash considerations
of HK$30,000,000, HK$20,000,000 and HK$10,000,000
are payable upon the next business day after issue of
audited financial statements of the Beijing Xinnuowei
and its subsidiaries for financial years ended/ending
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively.

(b) WiBRE LM (/8)

(o)

RAESHMERABRIF | T LFFH

ARRAEFEZBBUGEMEZRE
78 B 7% il & 4 B 3 135% & F Ulmus K
HEHMBRRICENEERENEER
BMZRFE-

WEEEELS BB EAEEDN
B ZRENATESAEARE &
FEMATFE B

Y 88 Access China &

0 = — < £ [l e - K
N A B e U BB Access China & B -
Access Chinn BT ZaEHFBEKEE
KBTS o

I BE {8 4 A128,515,000/8 7 ' B2 15
(i) 318 % X {880,000,00078 7T X (ii) 3% 3
TESR0.25F Tl 8 R EITA QA
& $£194,060,67 1A% L @A ([ E K
7)) - BIBWERAHHKTE  RER
R U EE B & QB4 A45,604,000
B IT °

IR & A {820,000,000% ;. E R K H
HAE (T - H #4231 & 8 % 530,000,000
78 7T + 20,000,000/ 7T 10,000,000/
TERtREHUMNENBAREZ
—E-RE ZE—LFRF—N
F+_ A=+ HIVBREENLESE
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. BT B A B ()
() Acquisition of the Access China Group (Continued) (c) WiiE Access China%® (48)
In addition, as part of the acquisition, if the actual AN ERKIBEIEN — &5 - it R®
audited consolidated net profit after tax of Beijing EHEUEEMNBAREBE S —X &
Xinnuowei and its subsidiaries for the year ended/ +—A=+—H - Z%—+F+=A
ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and =+—BERZFE-NF+ZA=1+-—
31 December 2018 (the “Actual Profit”), is less than HIEFENERKEZESMEN ([E
RMB 10,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 £om A1) 2 BIME RS A K #10,000,000
respectively (the “Profit Guarantee”), the vendors 7T AR #20,000,0000T & AR #&
will compensate the Company for the shortfall for an 30,000,0007T ([& FIR&E]) - B A #
amount equivalent to the difference between the Profit MARARIBEITRZE 2EMEER
Guarantee and the Actual Profit multiplied by 1.2 times. i MR B B a2 ZBUEE A2
f& o

In such event, the Company shall have the right to EUHBEBAT AR AEREZEZ
deduct the compensation from the respective cash E—RE ZFT—+LtFEZF—N
considerations payable to the vendor for financial years F+THA=T—"HLUEREERE
ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 (i.e. NTEFOEBERERE (AT
2016: HK$30,000,000, 2017: HK$20,000,000; 2018: —7N% : 30,000,000 L —F—+
HK$10,000,000). Should the cash considerations payable £ :20,000,0008 L =T — N&F:
to the vendor be insufficient to cover the compensation, 10,000,000/ 7T ) 1 BR %l (8 & &8 © i
the Company shall have the right to sell all or part BRNTFTEINREREN R AN H
of the Consideration Shares under escrow, the net BefH AARAERESFMSMAE
proceeds from which shall be equal to the shortfall of the VEZFHELTEENEZHABA R
compensation, to the independent third parties, in the Bl HAGREFHEAESERE
securities market. BRI HREE -

For avoidance of doubt, should the Access China Group 7% R R 0 M Access China & B R
record an actual consolidated loss for any of the financial BHE-_Z—+tHF - \FRZF
years ended/ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019, —NFE+ZA=T—RHILERBEF
the amount shall be deemed as zero. EHRGERGEEE AEBeER
Further details are set out in the Company’s E—THFBIREARFAAHER-F
announcement dated 14 December 2016 and —ANFETZATHBRZ=ZZT—-RF
22 December 2016. +—A=-+=—B8 -
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. BB B A B ()
(c) Acquisition of the Access China Group (Continued) (c) Wii# Access China%® (%48)

T R i g4 UL BB Access China £ E 2
/RN E ARRUWEE B B
RZEENBEBENAFE:

The following table summarises the consideration paid/
payable for the acquisition of Access China Group, and
the fair value of assets and liabilities recognised at the

acquisition date:

HK$'000
FHIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB MR 367
Intangible asset B EE
— information integration platform —ERRKTE 10,904
Available-for-sales investments AHEERE 11,175
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayment HibEWKIE e RFENKIE 19,433
Tax receivables JE W 7 18 1
Bank and cash balances 1T R AR 3,868
Current liabilities REBEE
Receipts in advance TEWKIR (1,616)
Accruals and other payables FE= & M % B h FE 1~ FR 1B (25,664)
Amount due to a shareholder JE T — B B R IE (6,090)
Borrowings BE (14,191)
Tax payables JE 18 (830)
Net liabilities assumed at fair value UAFEFEZRAEEETFE (2,643)
Non-controlling interests FEFEARHE A (776)
Shareholders' loan assigned to the Group HRETASEZRRER 6,090
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WHREBEEE 2 /mE 100,282
Total fair value consideration NHEREHRESE 102,953
Consideration satisfied by: REXHFFR:
Cash paid EfRE 20,000
Fair value of consideration shares REKRD 2 2FE 45,604
Deferred consideration RERE 53,238
Less: contingent consideration receivable B R ARAE (15,889)
102,953
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEEELENRESR L FHE:
Cash consideration paid BENREeRE 20,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalent acquired of B WENIRE KR EEY (3,868)
16,132
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Acquisition of the Access China Group (Continued)

37. W BB B A A (&)

(c) Wi Access China5EE (%)

The directors have engaged an independent valuer to
determine the fair value of the net tangible assets and
intangible assets of Access China Group, in accordance
with HKFRS 13.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be
paid/payable by the Group over the fair value of net
identifiable assets acquired.

(d) Acquisition of the security brokerage service company

and asset management company

According to the conditional sale and purchase
agreements dated 1 September 2015, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Prominence Financials Limited (“PFL") and
Prominence Asset Management Limited (“PAM") for a
total cash consideration of the sum of HK$38,914,000.

PFL is principally engaged in the provision of type 1
(dealing in securities) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") in Hong
Kong. PAM is principally engaged in the provision of type
9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO
in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 37. BT B~ A (4)
(d) Acquisition of the security brokerage service company dUERSZRERBLAREEERE
and asset management company (Continued) aR (%)
The acquisition was completed on 9 March 2016. The net WEEEHER-_ZE—A"F=ZANLAT
identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed, at fair et A FEFENEREDERNE
value are as follows: ENREEEEFENT
PFL PAM
BEkeH BEREEER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Mz BB MR 25 -
Intangible asset — trading right BREE-—RHRE 500 -
Other assets Hh&E 250 -
Current assets REEE
Loans receivables FEWE 5k 2,632 -
Trade receivables JE WL BR 5k 3,086 48
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE -RE Rk
other receivables H th & W RIB 459 =
Amount due from a related party FEW — R BAE T BB - 700
Cash held on behalf of clients RKEFPHEZER 16,687 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 10,195 190
Tax receivable JEY 1R = 9
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETRR X (16,668) &
Accruals and other payables FE=T & M & B th JE 1~ 5k 18 (161) (12)
Obligation under finance leases BEMERE 3) =
Tax payable IR (23) =
Net identified assets acquired DATEFEZEWRE
at fair value CRBIEEFE 16,979 935
Goodwill arising from the acquisiton ~— WIERBEEL 2 HE 14,500 6,500
Total fair value consideration NP ERERRE 31,479 7,435
Net cash outflow arising WEESEELANRSREBHE:
on acquisition:
Cash consideration paid BERNReRE 31,479 7,435
Less: Cash and cash equivalent B WERNIR S RREEEY
acquired of (10,195) (190)
21,284 7,245
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37.ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(d) Acquisition of the security brokerage service company

37. 19 BB T B A A (&)
B EECRBEAIREESE

and asset management company (Continued)

The directors have engaged an independent valuer to
determine the fair value of the net tangible assets and
intangible assets of PFL and PAM, in accordance with
HKFRS 13. The identifiable intangible asset of trading
right is identified.

Goodwill arising from the acquisition represents the
excess of the fair value of the considerations to be paid
by the Group over the fair value of net tangible assets
acquired.

38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(@) On 28 December 2017, the Company disposed of its

entired issued shares of the Everstate Investment Limited
and its subsidiary which in turn has 25% shareholding
interest in Shanghai Rongyu to an independent third
party at cash consideration of HK$50,000.

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of
disposal are as follows:

27 (&)

EROERB I HEMERE LTS
354 R B H1350 B IR S B RR
BEERENAEREN AESEY
ATE-RHEZTRBNEHEET
SEETE

WEEEEL B BEAREEEY

MzRENAFESRERBEELE
ERENRFEZED -

3. LEKB A A
@) R === NSl dA\ =R

B 1% 18 & A {850,000/8 T 7 — & B L
% = 77 i & E 1 Everstate Investment
Limited X E Mt B A 1A 2 ZBIXHE -
Everstate Investment Limited B /&
BhEE 2 25% PRiE o

REEAHNEEREBEINOT

HK$'000

T

Other payable Hh & 1~ K1 )

Net liability disposal of HENEEFE )
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HERMB QRSS!

HK$'000

FAET

Cash consideration received EWEERE 50

Net liability disposal of HENBEFE 2

Gain on disposal & W= 52
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38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 38. L EMEBAA (&)
(a) (Continued) (@) (#&)
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBARNRERAFEE:
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash consideration received ERRERE 50
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances disposal of B HENRERESEED
4 -
50
(b) On 29 October 2017, the Group completed the disposal b) R=ZFE—tFETAZ+NHB F&HE
of 60% interest in an indirectly-owned subsidiary, TERIER(B246,3728 L (HHERAR
Liaoning Nuoli Investments Limited, for a consideration of #210,0007T) HER —HREZEH B A
HK$246,372 (equivalent to RMB210,000). A]Liaoning Nuoli Investments Limited 2
60% HE 5 °
Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of REERHNEEREBEI NN T
disposal are as follows:
HK$'000
FHETT
Property, plant and equipment Y% HWE R 41
Other receivables and prepayment H b B W SRIB A K TR+ 5 IB 253
Bank balances and cash IRITHER KRS 19
Other payables and accruals H qth fE < RRIB K FE 5T B A (138)
Tax payable FE R 18 (28)
Net assets disposed of HERFEE 147
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HENB QRN E:
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received ERHEEKE 246
Net assets disposed of HERFEE (147)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 883
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of Bl 2 25 BT B 2 B 42 W) 48 i %
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity to B AR FEERERERN
profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiary DREERZ RFTEREHE (9)
Gain on disposal & W 973
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38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

38. L EKME AT (#)

(b) (Continued) ) (&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHEEENRESRAFE:
2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received [ A 246
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HEMIRITEBRKIRS (19)
227
(c) On 4 September 2017, the Group completed the disposal © RZZE—tFNANB FAEEBEZT

of 60% interest in an indirectly-owned subsidiary, Xian
Nuoli Asset Management Limited, for a consideration of
HK$14,389 (equivalent to RMB12,000).

Analysis of assets and liabilities as at the date of
disposal are as follows:

mﬂﬂﬁm 3898 L (IHE EAAE%
1ot oooE)ﬁE —ERERBA
THENBEEEERARA TZ@%%

BX Eﬂl

o

REERHNEEREBEINOT

HK$'000

FHEIT

Property, plant and equipment M BRE MR 5

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 12

Net assets disposed of HERFEE 17
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HEMB A RRES:

2017

—E—tF

HK$°000

THERT

Cash consideration received BEWREeRE 14

Net assets disposed of HERNFEE (17)

Non-controlling interests FEVE IR HE A (82)

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of B 25 25 B9 B8 2 A% I 4 T oS

net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity to MEBARN FEEREREN

profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiary DEEBRGZRFTERZH 5

Loss on disposal HEBE (80)
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38.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 8. HEMBRA] (&)
(c) (Continued) (© (£&)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HESHEEENRSRAFE:
HK$'000
FHEIT
Cash consideration received EWEERE 14
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of B HEMIRITERKEIAS (12)
2
39.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. BUBAR & ARRMTEB R A
As mentioned in note 3, Xinsheng and Zhongyuan have been WA A3 - B FE—R"F—H—H
de-consolidated from the consolidated financial statements R EPRERASE 246 % ®
of the Group as from 1 January 2016. KEUHARE AR
Details of the aggregate net assets of the above-mentioned LB AR FEEATEABEIIAT
subsidiaries are set out below:
Immediate
before de-
consolidation
on 1.1.2016
230
R-Z-—XRE
— B —BHH
mEANRA
HK$'000
FHET
Property plant and equipment ER S 817
Repossessed assets el 8 E 41
Pawn loans receivables FEU L E B 3 359,698
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables BNRIE ke REMEKIE 1,232
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 33,834
Amounts due to the Group e A & B 3R (64,966)
Borrowing B8 (195,170)
Other payables and accruals Hi BN RERETER (11,216)
Tax payables eI T IR (713)
Net assets disposed BEHEFEE 123,557
Goodwill EkS 195,996
Cumulative exchange loss in respect of the net assets FEBEMS 2 R ELER 4,925
Net loss on de-consolidation of subsidiaries EUHM B R RGE AR ZEIEF5H 324,478
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BB B ARG AREEZHE R
arising from de-consolidation of subsidiaries BeSEYZREFENN 33,834
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39.DE-CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. BUH A& AR B A 7] (@)

(Continued)

As at the date of this report, the Group had commenced
legal action against Xinsheng, Shanghai Kuailu and
Zhongyuan and the outcome of such legal actions remained
uncertain. As the abovementioned subsidiaries have been
de-consolidated, the directors of the Company considered
the legal actions will not have any adverse impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
resolved that the Group no longer had the power to
manage the Xinsheng and Zhongyuan, and the control over
Xinsheng and Zhongyuan was lost in July 2016. Details of the
deconsolidation were set out in the Group’s announcement
dated 12 August 2016.

40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

In 2011, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“2011
Share Option Scheme”), which will expire on 19 June 2021,
for the purpose of providing incentives or reward to eligible
participants for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group and any invested entity. Under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees (including any executive directors),
non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or services and
customers of the Group; and any persons or entities that
provide research, development or other technological support
to the Group.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days
from the date of the offer of grant of the option by payment
from the participant of HK$1.00. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Board to each grantee, save that such period
shall end in any event not later than ten years from the date
of grant of the option and subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof.
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price for shares under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme will be a price to be determined by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated on the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets on the date of grant of the particular option; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
grant of the particular option; or (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the adoption date. Besides, the maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The total number of shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue for the time being.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of shares in respect of
options granted and remained outstanding under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 184,791,862 (2016: 353,428,000),
representing 2.69% (2016: 8.07%) of the issued shares
of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the
number of shares available for issue under the 2011 Share
Option Scheme is 641,262,454 (2016: 157,755,335),
representing approximately 9.33% (2016: 3.45%) of the
issued shares of the Company.
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2 B R B e S YT AE ¢ Bk (i) B
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Movements of the Company’s share options held by
employees and consultants during the year ended

40. BB X HEET 2l (1)

HE-F—+tF+-A=+—BILFH.
B8 REMAHEADARREN S HE

31 December 2017 are set out below: SN
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
As at for open offer As at Exercise
Category of 1 January at 21 June 31 December Exercise price
Participants 2017 Exercised 2017 Lapsed Exercised 2017 period HKS
RZB-1&
AB=t-8
RZB-t§ BTAH RZB-t§ &
SEALER -B-H B BESE EES. Bfif t=A=+-H s o
Category I: Employees
BB
20.11.2015 30,000,000 = 7,294,520 = = 37,294,520  Note (a) 0.740
“E-Rf+-A=1H K@)
28.12.2016 91,580,000 (1,640,000) 21,868,972 (5,096,918) = 106,712,054 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
ZE-AEtZAZTNA ZERETZAZTARE
ZB- \E e
Note (b)
Bt (o)
Category Il: Consultants
B -BR
28.12.2016 231,848,000 (194,040,000) 9,193,041 - (6,215,753) 40,785,288 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.187
Z2-FTZAZtNR ZB-ETZAZTNRE
ZB-N\FTZAZTER
Note (b)
Hi3E ()
Total 353,428,000 (195,680,000) 38,356,533 (5,096,918) (6,215,753) 184,791,862
5t
Weighted average 0290 0232 029 0187 0.187 0299
exercise price
EFATEE
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B8 IR AT 8 ()

Movements of the Company’s share options held by HE_Z-—R"EF+A=+—RHILFE"

employees and consultants during the year ended EEREEFHERNARIBERENEESH

31 December 2016 are set out below: IR

Number of share options
BREZA
As at As at Exercise
Category of 1 January 31 December  Exercise price
participants 2016 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2016 period HK$
RZ2-AF RZ2-AF TR

SHEALER -fA-H BRHE BXiy:d BA¥ TZA=t-H fEH BT

Category I: Employees

#Hl:EB

20.11.2015 90,000,000 - - (60,000,000) 30,000,000  Note (a) 0.920

ZE-nf+-AZ+A Mt @)

28.12.2016 - 91,580,000 - - 91,580,000  28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.232

—E-AETZAZTNA “F s

“+tNRE-E-N\&
TZRAZTLA

Note (b)

W3 (b)

Category II: Consultants

R BB

28.12.2016 - 231,848,000 - - 231,848,000 28.12.2016-27.12.2018 0.232

ZE-RETZAZTAR it SIS

+-A=tNAZE
ZZ-N\F
TR e
Note (b)
BiFE(b)

Total 90,000,000 323,428,000 - (60,000,000) 353,428,000

B

Weighted average 0.92 0.232 - 0.92 0.29

exercise price

METHTER

Notes: B -

(@) On 20 November 2015, the Company granted a total of (@) RZE—AF+—A=Z+H AQFRE
18,000,000 share options under the Scheme to employees S mAEEEE A 18,000,000
of the Group. The validity period of the options is 30 months ERE -BREZ AR LS BRER
from the date of grant of the options, i.e. from 20 November T HARF30EA (B ZE—hFE+—A
2015 to 19 May 2018. The options will entitle the grantees to Z+HEZZE-NFRA+TNAB) - BR
subscribe for a total of 18,000,000 new shares of HK$0.005 RS T AR AN AT E B TRA.5978
each at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per share. TT R BE & $£18,000,000/% & I [ {E0.00578

TC AR ©
The share options are divided into 3 tranches exercisable BRED R=4 K T3 A Hﬁj@i:%ﬁ
from (i) the expiry date of the Put Option period as stated in *{\%?ﬁﬂjh B - # @ E&fiﬂ% - (0) E
the second supplemental agreement dated 8 January 2016, *H;iz%?u;%jq;g?ﬁé%%i%hﬁ?h%
o . EE23 o /A A = Jl ’ —=
(;g i/lo November 2016, and (iii) 20 May 2017 respectively to CRE+—Ao+R R —E—tEE
ay 2018. A=—+0H-
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

As a result of the share subdivision which was effective on
28 December 2015, the exercise price per share and number of
outstanding share options granted on 20 November 2015 were
adjusted from HK$4.59 to HK$0.92 and from 18,000,000 to
90,000,000 respectively.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of options were adjusted from
HK$0.92 to HK$0.74 and from 30,000,000 to 37,294,520 for
the effects of the open offer of the Company completed on
21 June 2017.

On 28 December 2016, the Company granted a total of
323,428,000 share options under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme to employees and consultants of the Group. The validity
period of the options is 24 months from the date of grant of
the options, i.e. from 28 December 2016 to 28 December 2018.
The options will entitle the grantees to subscribe for a total of
323,428,000 new shares of HK$0.001 each at an exercise price
of HK$0.232 per share.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the exercise
price and remaining number of options were adjusted from
HK$0.232 to HK$0.187 and from 127,748,000 to 158,810,013
for the effects of the open offer of the Company completed on
21 June 2017.

40. BB IR ST 2l (1)
Mizk: (48)

(a)
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40.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued) 40. B8 IR AT 8 ()
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was RESAREEENBRE S A TFEIRED
estimated as at the date of grant, using a Binomial model, HEFA—EAREEERE G W E TR
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which 1R B PR M PR IR 0 MG SR B IR 1 » TR B TR
the options were granted and the following the inputs to the BT ER A e A B -
model used:
Grant date HHBAH 28 December 20 November
2016 2015
—®¥—7F —_T-IOfF
+=A +—A
—+N\H - H
Fair value (HK$) ANEEBT) 0.11 1.89
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BxT) 0.232 4.59
Share price at the date of grant (HK$) R BB IRE (BT) 0.232 4.59
Dividend yield (%) AR B U2 2 (%) = &
Expected volatility (%) ?ﬁﬁﬁ I (%) 91.79 70.58
Risk-free interest rate (%) % A 2 (%) 1.244 0.626
Expected life of options (years) iﬁﬁﬂ E%Hxﬁéi/ﬁﬂ (%) 2.000 2.497
The expected life of the options is based on the contractual BREBHFHDBEBESNFHET K
life and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns VRRIREHIRAITRR N IR - THER /FZ &
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption = B FE 52 R 1R 7%51%5}2% AEIRERE H
that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, RAUBREBRER

which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

41.0PERATING LEASES 4188 ETHLY
The Group as lessee EEBEREEA
2017 2016
—E—+tF T—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FERT FHEIT
Minimum lease payments paid under FARBEEHAOARMAE
operating leases in respect of TN REHRERE
office properties during the year 11,918 11,105
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41.0OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

—tFt+t-_A=+—RLFEE

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

4188 = FH 4 (&)
AEBEREKBA ()

REREER AEERE T BEELE
AR THEHB AN RARKERER
T Z AENT

2017 2016

—E—4tLFE —T—EF

HKS$’'000 HK$'000

TR FAT

Within one year firﬁ 6,367 11,315
In the second to fifth year inclusive “EEFLE (BEEEME) 19 4,299
6,386 15,614

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to
three years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

REHERBRAEEEETERPEMLE
ETHAZEYERMNNEAS -ALHETF

BRHE—ZE=%F-
AEBEERHAA

RBEHRR AEECHRREFRREDN

with tenants for the following future minimum payments for TARREEFIBEBEFEI LG4 -
storage facilities.

2017 2016
:ﬁ—‘tﬂi 7 /\f'E
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
Within one year —FNRA 3,311 1,592
In the second to fifth year inclusive “HEEFELF (BEEEMSE) - 2,257
3,311 3,849

Warehouse storage income earned during the year was
HK$6,518,000 (2016: HK$8,904,000).

42.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, the Group and the
Company did not have any significant capital commitments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

43.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group is required to participate in a defined contribution
scheme, the MPF Scheme, in respect of its employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Both the Group and its employees contribute 5% of
the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme. The maximum
contribution for each employee is limited to HK$18,000
(2016: HK$18,000) per annum.

The employees of PRC subsidiaries are members of defined
contribution plans organised by PRC municipal and provincial
government authorities in the PRC. The PRC subsidiaries are
required to make monthly contributions to these plans at
a fixed percentage of the employee’s basic salary. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme in the PRC is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. The local government authority is
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes for the year
amounted to HK$1,121,000 (2016: HK$537,000).

44.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Assets with the following carrying amounts have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 33):

43 B RAE N ET &

AEEEAHEEREELQHETHAHNE
g estdl -BEETEMNEERAE
EMEETRAITRBAITEAZINES
BE-AEEEEEEYEKREBEHIK
KE5% MBS EER R - TR E
EGmEHRREATFI18,000E T (==
— 754 118,000/ 7T) °

REIFE A B R B AT BR A I
B8 = 3% 19 TE R LKA S RO AK B - BT B
RRAGRAREEEAFSNETEA DL
[A) 5% % &1 8 i 5K - AN SR B 5t B AR IR AR 7
AR — B ERRBEZEELRED
R 7 BT # B 8 B mR K E 8 S
EHRIRE

AKFEERIKREFETE M HEIKAE1,121,000
BT (T — /N5 : 537,000 7T) °
BEEH

AEEERERZ —REBTEE (M
B)MERZEEMNFR@ENT

44

2017 2016

—E—+tF —T—RHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHETT

Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 102,527 102,883
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERA 25,040 23,994
Bank deposits RITHFR - 27,918
127,567 154,795

45.NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Part of consideration for the acquisition of Access China
Group, that occurred during the year ended 31 December
2016 comprised issuance of 194,060,671 shares. Further
details of the acquisition are set out in note 37(c) above.

45.3EIB R 5

BE-_ZT—E+-_A=+—BLEEEK
BB Access China S BIFTEE 2 RER
FEE%17194,060,67 1% 10 - BRI BB F 18
B — D FEIBFE N £ XM FE37(0) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

46.CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 46.HARNEENBEE

The Group had no significant contingent assets or liabilities
as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

RZB—+FR_FT—RF+_A=1+—
H AEBEVTESEASREERKAB-

47.RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 47.7 B AN TR 5

During the year, the Group had certain transactions with
related parties. Details of these transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and are as follows:

FR ARERBEATRTETRS:
BE-FT L&+ A=+ -ALEER
292 HEMT

Transaction with related parties HEEALTZRS
2017 2016
—E-—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Brokerage commission income (Note a) g mas A (Fista) 383 279
Consultancy fee income (Note b) BRI ZERA (FizEb) 4,849 —
Interest income (Note ¢) FEWA (FizEc) 559 -

Notes: Bt eE

(@) The Group received commission income from a director of a
subsidiary for providing securities brokerage services.

(b) The Group received consultancy fee income from a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group for
providing consultancy services.

(0 The Group received interest income from a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group for the
loan granted.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group effected the
following material non-recurring transaction:

(i) On 15 March 2016, the Company issued the 2015 Convertible
Note in the principal amount of HK$42,000,000 with
conversion price of HK$0.24 (after adjustment of share
subdivision) to the related companies.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is approximately HK$8,237,000
(2016: approximately HK$11,880,000) as disclosed in notes
12 and 13.
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48.SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

Place of
incorporation

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

48.M1 B X ]

Proportion of nominal
value of issued
share capital/registered

Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ALK ERTRERE AARMBERTRAERE
£ B E LERAEMER HEMEXREELH TEER
2017 2016
ZB-tF ZT-RE
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
=3 & B %
Delight Link Enterprises Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% - 100% - Provision of
Limited administrative
services to group
companies
RECLEXARAH 0 ERRA2ET BESEYNGE S
TB R
Spring Chance Limited BVI Ordinary US$1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
KEARAT EERUHEE TRRFNIET REEK
ARREIERBRAR  PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Industrial property
(transliterated as RMB80,000,000 development
Taicang Keycharm
Storage Company
Limited)
ARERRRERAR +E aMERARE ERIZAYVERA
80,000,0007T
AERMNEHBERRAF  PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Trading of goods
(transliterated as RMB5,000,000
Taicang Haopu Trading
Company Limited®)
ARENEHBERRA  HE AMERARE EmEH
5,000,0007T
LBhBREL: PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100%  Provision of
BRAT RMBS5,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Shanghai Yousheng
Investment Consulting
Limited")
FREBRERS i AMERARY RERBERRSE
BRAF 5,000,0007T
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48.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

194

Issued and fully

—+tF+-_A=+—HBItEFEE
48.MT B A Al (&)

Proportion of nominal

Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL ERTRAR AARFRERTRAEE
£ EXHH EERA EMER HEMEXEELH IERH
“E—+F —T-RF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE & B Ak
HBRRE AR PRC Registered capital - 100% o 100%  Provision of
BRARF RMB1,000,000 consultancy services
(transliterated as
Shanghai Junning
Investment Consultng
Limited®)
TERRRERA h AMERARK REBRERS
AR A 1,000,0007T
Greater China Financing ~ HK Ordinary HK$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of
Limited money lending
APEREFRAA B TRRAVET RUEE
Greater China Wealth HK Ordinary - 100% = 100%  Provision of insurance
& Risk Management HK$2,000,000 brokerage services
Limited
APEERER B Ep il RERB LIRS
BRAF 2,000,000% 70
Prominence Financials HK Ordinary - 100% =5 100%  Provision of securities
Limited HK$18,000,000 brokerage services
BREHERAA BB EEilieN RUBFELRE
18,000,000/ 7T
Prominence Asset HK Ordinary - 100% = 100%  Provision of assets
Management Limited HK$1,000,000 management
services
REAEEERBRRA FA LA RREEEERE
1,000,000/ 7T
IR EE’&W%EE}E PRC Registered capital = 100% = 100%  Provision of finance
BRA RMB100,000,000 referral and
(transliterated as Beijing consultancy services
Xin Nuo Wei Assets
Management Limited®)
EREHNEEER e AMERARE RHREMAN K
BRAF 100,000,0007C & AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

48.SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 48.M0 B~ A (|
Issued and fully Proportion of nominal
Place of paid ordinary value of issued
incorporation  share capital/ share capital/registered
Name and operation registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
AL R ERTRAR EARFRERTRAEE/
£ ESE EERAEMER HEMEXEELH TERH
2017 2016
“E-tF —F-AF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE Gk B &

Spruce Light Asset HK Ordinary - 100% = - Provision of assets
Management Company HK$5,000,000 management
Limited services

EMEEERARRA FAE Rl RUEEEEERE

5,000,000/ 7T

TRERUITREER  PRC Registered capital - 100% = — Provision of financial
BRAF RMB200,000,000 guarantee and
(transliterated as consulting services

Beijing An Jia Shi Hang
Financial Guarantee

Company Limited®)
ERZRUTRERR HH HMERARE REBEERR
BRAT 200,000,0007T R AR
*  The English transliteration of Chinese name is included in fORNEREORXTEERMBEMBAR
this report for reference only and should not be regarded HE TEESHEER R HM-
as its official English name.
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, FRINHESRABTEFZEARSEEED
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results BEMNARGIMBAR -EFERA JH
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries HtMEARNFEERREAN TR

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the N EREAR BEMB AR 2 EITEM
end of the financial year. BSES-
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e R RME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE
49.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE  49. AT B A FlaykEzs TElk /&
FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES SEENE] ,AIE
The Company AT
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RHF
HKS$'000 HK$ OOO
Unlisted shares, at cost JE_ETMRR - A A 376,602 279,739
Acquisition g - 96,863
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERIREEE (279,739) (279,739)
96,863 96,863
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE U B B8~ Bl kI8 1,070,985 856,127
Less: impairment loss recognised B B RERR /WTEESTE (608,580) (621,031)
462,405 235,096
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEAT BB~ Bl 08 1,715 744
Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free FEU TENHBRARREAEERE 28

and are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

50.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 507282 A MY BF 7S B R

COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—tF —FT—RF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LN o 2 96,863 96,863
Interests in associates RN Iz O - -
Contingent consideration receivable FEW S A RAE 4,078 15,102
100,941 111,965
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NETE ] 462,405 235,096
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits E fib fE U FKIE « TS I M IE & 474 605
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRNIRE 69,605 105,595
532,484 341,296
Current liabilities REBAEE
Other payables and accruals Hi N KIBRERTE A 1,544 806
Deferred consideration BEERE 19,475 96,595
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NETE 1,715 744
22,734 98,145
Net current assets RBEEFE 509,750 243,151
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBES 610,691 355,116
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible notes Al AR R 5,654 5,070
Deferred consideration EERE 8,385 24,283
14,039 29,353
Net assets FEE 596,652 325,763
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Share capital AR A 6,870 4,380
Share premium 10 mE 1,947,494 1,659,410
Contributed surplus ERHARR 64,379 64,379
Convertible notes equity reserve AR IR o 9,775 9,775
Share options reserve MERR R 1 23,945 44,704
Accumulated losses RETEE (1,455,811)  (1,456,885)
Total equity AT 596,652 325,763
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51.RESERVES

(a) Share premium

—tFt+t-_A=+—RLFEE

51. %
(a) R wsE

(b)

(9]

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value. The
application of the share premium accounts is governed
by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and the New
Bye-Laws of the Company.

Share options reserve

Share options reserve represents the portion of the grant
date fair value of the unexercised share options of the
Company.

Convertible notes equity reserve

The convertible notes equity reserve represents the equity
component (conversion right) of convertible notes issued
by the Company. Items included in convertible notes
equity reserve will not reclassified to profit or loss.

(d) Translation reserve

(e)

Exchange differences relating to the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the translation
reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the foreign operations.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains and
losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale
financial assets that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income, net of amounts reclassified to
profit or loss when those available-for-sale financial assets
are disposed of or are determined to be impaired.

198 Greater China Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2017

B fn st B 48 FIR B @ A BB B 1%
BITRID P EE 25 B - I {0 B R
ZRAXBRE-NN-FREER
ARRRWF R B ADRIRE

(b) BBRRRE R 15

8 PR £ 48 8 AN 2 B [l R 7T (5 P SCHE
B AR FERD

TRRREEGREE

MR EEERFEEEAQAGEET
ARSIy (ERE) o &t
AR EEERFEENEETSE
FoEEBE-

(d) EX##E

h$$lﬁ%¥ﬁﬁ§@ﬁmﬁ%m

EEMESAEEZNEENERIE
R%@E&Kﬁ@iﬁ% 5 HE R & R
R Rt - REREHERITHNE
AELZERHEBIRBEREF D

*EETE/\O

(e) Eftifete

EhFHEHENELEERERRAESE
ﬁT%ﬁﬁ MEEMES 2 Rt

aRkER-BEHERZSTAHLEESR
BEIZFAHRLESHEENRTE
SAEER EFREEEHIRER

N s
zS o
annl



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

51.RESERVES (Continued)

(f) Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group's PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Articles of Association of the subsidiaries
and associates incorporated in the PRC comprising the
Group, it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits of the PRC the subsidiaries and
associates, after offsetting any prior years’ losses as
determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the
statutory surplus reserve fund before distributing the net
profit. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
fund reaches 50% of the share capital of the PRC the
subsidiaries and associates, any further appropriation is
at the discretion of shareholders. The statutory surplus
reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses, if
any, and may be converted into share capital by issuing
new shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholding or by increasing the par value of the shares
currently held by them, provided that the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of share capital.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

52.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

52.

MEEHELZAEAR

TRFANAEEREEHELZABEED
HB ERREMFREEEY -BELD
EXZAERASRECHIRKERERE
BRAKBGEARERERDIBRABER
BABRERENAR-

Convertible
Borrowings notes Total
B8 FABRREE st
(Note 33) (Note 34)
( Bt &EE33) (Ft&E34)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FATT
At 1 January 2017 A =25 — ek e = 113,066 5,070 118,136
Financing cash flows BRERESRE 36,041 - 36,041
Foreign exchange translation INERE 9,986 . 9,986
Amortisation of discount on convertible — A] # A% Z & 378 28 2
notes 55 - 584 584
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+4F
oi-— H=+—H 159,093 5,654 164,747
53.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 53. 8 N2 fe B 12

200

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for equity holders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amounts of dividends paid to equity holders, return capital to
equity holders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements for (i) a subsidiary registered under the
Insurance Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the
"“ICO") which are subject to the relevant minimum
capital requirement; and (ii) three subsidiaries which are
regulated entities under the SFO and subject to the relevant
minimum paid-up share capital and minimum liquid capital
requirements under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R"). Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the capital level of these
entities to ensure compliance with the minimum capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R and ICO.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

53.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Particularly for the financial guarantee operation the Group
monitors regularly the residual balance of outstanding
guarantees for single customers and multiples of the total
outstanding guarantees in relation to net assets and paid-in
capital of the subsidiary in the Group engaging in guarantee
business, so as to keep the capital risk within an acceptable
limit. The decision to manage the net assets and registered
capital of the subsidiary in the Group to meet the needs of
developing guarantee business rests with the directors.

The Group has no other material exposure to capital
requirements externally imposed with regard to the Group
other than described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's
strategy remained unchanged. The Group monitors capital on
the basis of the gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

The management considers the gearing ratio at the year
ended date is as follows:

ERERERE )

LEABEEREEM S AKETEHE
RE-FPHMARIMERKBELEAHELE
lfﬁé%ﬁ*1%%f“él’ﬂﬁ% RIEERENE
BREARNARDPEREBEOEE 1M
B AR BRI B A XA E A IR
REE B R R R FE E REEME AN Am
REBEREREBOFRKAPREIRANES -

Bk EX R E Sl RSB E A B AN
SE SN ERHEINE AR TE K E AR o

BEE_T— t¢+ A=+—HBILFE"-

AEENREYEET - AEERFEEN
afE tTﬁ*? §$ AL RTVIREE HER

FRARRRIHA NGRS -

EEERSNFEANERABLRNT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF TN

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FTHET T

Total borrowings BEEHEE 159,093 113,066
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR AIHEA AEGE R 714,829 20080,
Gearing ratio BEREEL 22% 27%
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE
54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 542 T A
(a). Categories of financial instruments (. EMIASE
2017 2016
—E—tFE —T—RE
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets EEEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AtEESHEE 25,521 58,475
Financial assets at fair value through BERFEFAER
profit or loss ZEREE
— Contingent consideration receivables — — i sk A KB 9,879 15,102
— Unlisted investment fund —JELEMIREES 22,410 -
Loans and receivables B W GRIA
— Loans and interests receivables —}E%Zf)f/m&ﬂtu 189,891 37,061
— Trade and other receivables — UG BR 3 X EL At e U 508 34,877 31,379
— Deposits — e 49,028 5,311
— Cash held on behalf of clients - REFEEZHR® 2,066 15,746
— Pledged bank deposits —BEERRITEX - 27,918
— Restricted bank deposits —XREIRITER 9,064 -
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHRNIRE 410,117 240,969
752,853 431,961
Financial liabilities EtHmaesE
— Trade and other payables — JE A~ R R % B A B < SR IE 45,443 41,136
— Borrowings —fBE 159,093 113,066
— Deferred considerations —BERE 71,293 120,878
— Convertible notes — A AR R E 5,654 5,070
281,483 280,150
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54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b). Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk or
combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial
business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk
and return and minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed
to identify and analyse these risks, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and procedures to reflect changes
in markets and products.

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, contingent consideration
receivables, unlisted investment fund loans and interests
receivables, contingent consideration receivables, trade
and other receivables, deposits cash held on behalf of
clients, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, other payables, borrowings, deferred
considerations and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

204

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group has entered into financial guarantee contracts in
which it has guaranteed the lenders the repayment of loans
entered into by customers of the Group. The Group has the
obligation to compensate lenders for the losses they would
suffer if customers fail to repay.

The Group has taken measures to identify credit risks arising
from financial guarantees issued. The Group manages credit
risk at every stage along the approval process, including
pre-transaction, in-transaction and post-transaction
monitoring processes. The Group conducts due diligence
and evaluates customers by internal credit assessment
system during the pre-approval process. Financial guarantees
issuance is subject to approval of the management.

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the Group
conducts on-site inspection and ongoing post transaction
reviews focusing on various aspects, including but not limited
to customers’ product markets, operating income, assets
and liabilities, cash flows from operating activities to detect
potential risks. The Group takes proactive preventive actions
based on the risk analysis and design contingency plans
accordingly.

When a certain number of customers undertake the same
business activities, stay in the same geographical locations,
or bear similar economic features for their industries, their
ability to fulfill contracts will be affected by the same
economic changes. Concentration of credit risk reflects
the sensitivity of the Group’s operating results to specific
industries or geographical locations. As the Group mainly
operates its financial guarantee businesses in the PRC, there
exists a certain level of geographical concentration risk for its
guarantee portfolios in that it might be affected by changes
in the PRC economic conditions.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial guarantees issued and outstanding amounted to
HK$419,175,000 as at 31 December 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade receivables from
warehouse storage, insurance brokerage and general trading
business, the management of the Group has a credit policy
in place for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts on an ongoing
basis. The Group only extends credit to customers based on
careful evaluation of the customers’ financial conditions and
credit history. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivables at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Credit evaluations are performed on customers requiring
credit terms. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments and current abilities to pay and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 48%
(31 December 2016: 34%) and 96% (31 December 2016:
99%) of trade receivables were due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the insurance brokerage business. These five
largest customers of respective business segments have
good historical repayment records and low default rates.
Management performs periodic evaluations to ensure the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 54. 5T A (&)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk on securities brokerage
business and loan financing business and other financial
services, the directors of the respective operating subsidiaries
compile the credit and risk management policies, to approve
credit limits and to determine any debt recovery action on
those delinquent receivables. In addition, the directors of
the respective operating subsidiaries review the recoverable
amount of trade receivable and the receivables from margin
clients are secured by client’s pledged securities which are
listed equity securities in Hong Kong, as disclosed in note
25 respectively on an individual and collective basis at each
reporting date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 39%
and 100% (31 December 2016: 100% from five largest
customers) of loans and interests receivables from loan
financing business was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers as at 31 December
2017. The management is of the view that the allowance
made is adequate taking into account the historical
experience in the collection of loans and interest receivables
from these largest customers. The Group does not have
significant concentration of credit risk on receivables from
securities brokerage business, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on cash held on behalf of clients, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant foreign currency
risk as most of its monetary assets and monetary
liabilities are denominated in the functional currency of
the individual group entity. The management is of the
opinion that the Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk is minimal. Accordingly, no foreign exchange risk
sensitivity analysis is presented. The significant balance
carried in the translation reserve account is occasioned
by the translation of the financial statements of the
Group's subsidiaries into the presentation currency of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group at each
reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE
54. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5458 T B ()
Market risk (Continued) misERE (&)

(i) P&z

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate borrowings and loans receivables.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to receivables from cash and margin clients,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances.

The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to fair value interest rate risk and
cash flow interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
financial instruments at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming that the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 100 basis
points (2016: 100 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible changes in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2016:
100 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the net effect of Group’s post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
increase/decrease by HK$3,569,000 (post-tax loss for
the year ended 31 December 2016: decrease/increase by
HK$1,716,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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54 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) SR T A (#)
Market risk (Continued) migERE (&)
(iii) Equity price risk (i) /1% 18 /2 [

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities which are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets. The fair value
of these financial instruments will be affected either
positively or negatively, amongst others, by the changes
in the closing market prices of the relevant listed equity
securities. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and in PRC. Listed
investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio
have been chosen based on their longer term growth
potential and are monitored regularly for performance
against expectations. The management manages this
risk exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk and return profiles and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (2016: 10%) higher/lower, and held other
variables constant, the other component of equity of the
Group would increase/decrease by HK$2,552,000 (2016:
HK$4,172,000), as a result of changes in the fair value of
listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined by assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting date
and has been applied to the Group’s investments at
that date. In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, and to ensure
compliance with FRR. In the management of the liquidity
risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitors the current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants regularly to ensure sufficient working
capital are maintained and adequate committed lines of
funding from reputable financial institutions meet its liquidity
requirement.

The table below analyses the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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54.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

210

Liquidity table

As at 31 December 2017

545 T A ()
REBEEE

R-ZE—tH+=-A=+—H

Weighted
average Total Carrying
effective Less than 13 3 months More than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1year Tyear  cashflows  31.12.2017
RZE-tf
+ZA
MmEF AEREE =t-H2
EBFz SR-BR -Z=fBF =fAZ-% -ENE RELE EHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL T T
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTESRERE
Trade and other payables ERERREER TR = 24,396 8,098 12,949 = 45,443 45,443
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-ES 7.38% 12,533 1,052 62,460 128,429 204,474 159,093
Convertible notes THREE
- non-interest bearing TR - - - - 5,654 5,654 5,654
Deferred considerations BERE
— non-interest bearing —5tR - - - 48,807 22,486 71,293 71,293
36,929 9,150 124,216 156,569 326,863 281,482
Guarantees issued BEHER
Maximum amount quaranteed BRRZERSE - 146,912 229,100 43,163 - 419,175 419,175
As at 31 December 2016 I e AN S e = by =
Weighted
average More Total Carrying
effective Less than 1-3 3 months than  undiscounted amount at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1 year cash flows ~ 31.12.2016
RZZ—1F
+-A
T FSiE! =+-H
ERFE  OR-@A -2=@EF ZEAE-% —FHE RERELE ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHL FAL FHIL FHL FHL
Non-derivative financial FECRERE
liabilities
Trade payables and FERERREER TR
other payables - 40,852 - 284 - 41,136 41,136
Borrowings - fixed rate FE-T8 6.66% 11,701 1,069 49,827 65,027 127,624 113,066
Convertible notes THREE-THHE
- non-interest bearing - - - - 5,070 5,070 5,070
Deferred consideration BERE-THE
- non-interest bearing - - - 96,595 24,283 120,878 120,878
52,553 1,069 146,706 94,380 294,708 280,150

Guarantees issued
Maximum amount guaranteed

BELER
EERZEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017

55. AN Bt =
() AEEMERERATENBHSRE
EWATE
AEEFHLMEENS RS KR
ATEHE  TRIBHMAET RS
SHAERSCBABI ATENER
(o H 2R S E R R 8 AR -

R-B—tF+=A=+—HWQ¥F

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® E=R H=R #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER THER TERT THERT
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AftHESREE:
- Listed equity securities (Note a) — FmRAESR (Mitta) 25,521 - - 25,521
Financial assets through profit or loss:  #EBEBEIIRZ S BHEE
- Contingent consideration receivables — B sk AR IE (FizEc)
(note c) - - 9,879 9,879
~ Unlisted investment fund (note d) —FEMIREES (M3Ed) - 22,410 - 22,410
Total st 25,521 22,410 9,879 57,810
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 Z—RF+ZA=+T—HHRF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-1 E-& E=/ st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT TR FAL FHAL
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AftHEEMEE:
— Listed equity securities (Note a) — FIRAES (Ka) 41,724 = = 41,724
— Wealth management products -HEEEER (MiEb)
(note b) - - 16,751 16,751
Financial assets through profit or loss:  EBEZRVIE 2 S REE
- Contingent consideration (note ¢) ~ — kAR (E (KfzEc) - - 15,102 15,102
Total FoBy 41,724 - 31,853 73,577

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The group's policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

HE_ZT—tFR-_FT—X~"F+=A
=+ HLEFE YERFE—KHEZFE
AR EEE O NEEARENE= R
AEBZHBRRENREE A ZREH
RAFESHME &R
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e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 &#HZE - ZT—+F+_-_A=+—HILFE

55.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 55. 2 FEETE (&)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes:

(@) The valuation techniques and key inputs used of the listed
equity securities, classified as the available-for-sale financial
assets, for Level 1 fair value measurement are quoted bid
prices in an active market.

(b) The investment principal is RMB15,000,000 (HK$16,751,000)
and it is fair valued using a discounted cash flow approach
and main input used by the Group is estimated yield rate
written in contracts with the counterparty. The fair value is
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

(c) The fair value of the contingent consideration receivables
are based on the valuations performed by an independent
professional valuer, using a Monte Carlo simulation, which
are reviewed by and approved by the directors of the
Company.

As the Guaranteed Profits relating to the acquisition of
Access China Group and Sino Wealth Group covers a
period of more than one year, there are more interactions
to be assessed for the results. Monte Carlo simulation is
therefore adopted as the simulation produces distribution
of possible outcome values. By assuming probability
distributions, variables can have different probabilities of
different outcomes occurring. Probability distributions are
a much more realistic way of describing uncertainty in
variables of the result.

A decrease in the probability of fulfillment of Guaranteed
Profits would result in a decrease in the fair value
measurement of contingent consideration receivables and
a decrease in discount rate would result in an increase in
the fair value measurement of contingent consideration
receivables, and vice versa.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the contingent consideration receivables are based
on the management’s best estimates. The value of the
contingent consideration receivables varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

55.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(i) Fair values of financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(c) (Continued)

The key inputs used of contingent consideration receivables
in relation to acquisition of Access China Group for the
Level 3 fair value measurement at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

Significant
unobservable inputs 2017 Range 2016 Range

Volatility 36.91% 32.25%-46.36%
Discount rate 13.11%-13.27% 14.41%-18.04%
Time to settlement

date (in year) 0.19-1.19 0.19-2.19

The key inputs of contingent consideration receivable in
relation to acquisition of Sino Wealth Group for the Level 3
fair value measurement at the end of reporting period are
as follows:

Significant
unobservable inputs 2017 Range 2016 Range

Volatility 35.64% NA
Discount rate 11.62%-12.02% NA
Time to settlement

Date (in year) 0.18-2.18 NA

Due to the variety of basis of determination used in
profit forecast, it is not practicable to provide any
meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical assumptions
concerning future profitability of acquired business and the
potential impact on the fair value changes on contingent
consideration receivables at the end of reporting period.

(d) The fair value of unlisted investment fund is determined
based on the net asset value with reference to the prices
of underlying investment portfolio quoted by fund
administrator.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE—-ZT—tHF+_A=1+—HItFE

55.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

55. N F{EET= (&)
(i) E=RATFEHBYE

Available-for-
Financial sale
assets through financial
profit or loss: assets:
BBERIK AHHE
LEMEE: tHEE:
-Wealth
-Contingent  management
considerations products Total
-FARE -HEEEEM @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RFE-A—H - - -
Additions NE = 16,751 16,751
Arising in acquisition of RRENEARESE
subsidiaries (note 37(c)) (M#E37(c)) 15,889 . 15,889
Change in fair value recognised FARERBERANLTEED
in profit or loss during the year (787) - (787)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE-—RET-A=T—H
1 January 2017 E=T—t%—-HA—H 15,102 16,751 31,853
Arising in acquisition of RRBEHBEARESE
subsidiaries (note 37(a)) (HtzE37(0)) 5,765 L 5,765
Disposal & - (17,001) (17,001)
Change in fair value recognised FARERRANATES
in profit or loss during the year (10,988) - (10,988)
Exchange realignment B 5 3 E - 250 250
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+E+_A=1+—H 9,879 - 9,879

Gi)EFUAFEIENEBEER QMR
ZATE

ARAEERAE KHEEKXNAINEREZ
cREEMcHBENRAEBEHEE
RZE—+ttFRER_FT—-—XEF+=H
=t+—HNAFELTEERER-

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost are not material different from
their fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RIS E
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014 31.12.2013
BZ BZE BE BE Bz
“E—tF ZT-RF —hF —MmF —T-=F
+=A T=A +=A el T=A
=t+-H =+—H =t=H = A =+—H
LEE EEE EEFE EEE EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT AT AT AT
RESULTS £
Continuing operations BEGEEK
Revenue ON 130,652 75,175 115,956 S5HIBE 32,963
Cost of sales HEBAR (62,969) (35,636) - (42,090) (21,544)
Gross profit EHM 67,683 39,539 115,956 13,043 11,419
Other income, gains Hi A hezs R
and losses B 89,103 (218,969) 121,549 4,098 4,262
Selling and $HE RD KA
distribution costs - - - - (659)
Administrative and THREEMEE
other operating 53
expenses (99,797) (82,187) (83,304) (31,391) (29,416)
Finance costs BB (16,340) (15,200) (29,398) (13,365) (15,731)
Share of (loss) profit of il A=
associates (B18) &M - (98,410) 9,324 = 1
Impairment loss on BEZRERRE
goodwill (14,650) - - - -
Impairment loss on REE A AR
interests in associates EEE - (267,410) P 4 -
Net loss on BUR&R & AR
de-consolidation of HBARZ
subsidiaries BRFR - (324,478) £ = A
Profit (loss) before tax BB ATE RN (E8) 25,999 (967,115) 134,127 (27,615) (30,125)
Income tax FREH 43 (3,435) (17,997) 8,221 S
Profit (loss) for the year FRHEMN (BE) 26,042 (970,550) 116,130 (19,394) (30,125)
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company AR EHEE A 26,020 (970,550) 116,130 (19,575) (30,045)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE¥ERR % 22 = = 181 (80)
26,042 (970,550) 116,130 (19,394) (30,125)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BEBE
31.12.2017  31.12.2016  31.12.2015  31.12.2014  31.12.2013
—2—tF —T-RF T—hF ZT-HWHF ZT—=F
+=A s +=A +=A +=A
=18 = ) =+—H =+—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FAET FAET FET FAET
ASSETS AND EEHEE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 1,065,243 706,346 1,670,266 309,660 388,499
Total liabilities BafE (350,414) (284,343) (508,521) (200,195) (257,400)
Non-controlling interests  JE¥2 A% 25 - (776) - — (196)
Equity attributable to VNI YN
owners of the Company  fEfh#E S 714,829 421,227 1,161,745 109,465 130,903
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